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Key Milestones

TERRE

Introduce Executive Vice-Chairman and Acquire 51% shares of Physiotherapy
| Chief Executive Officer of New World Centre

Development Company Limited (stock ’ s . =

code: 17), Dr. Cheng Chi Kong, Adrian JP, IR L 0 519% B

and Aspex Management as strategic

shareholders
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Appoint Ms. Wong Ka Ki Ada as Executive S Appoint Mr. Lu Lyn Wade Leslie as
Director, Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Executive Director and Co-CEO
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ZEIRBRITANTES  BRRKES
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D
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Acquire 70% issued share capital of Premier Acquire 55% issued share capital of Bayley
Medical Group (BVI) Limited which operates & Jackson Dental Surgeons Limited which
five medical service centres operates seven dental clinics
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Key Milestones

TEBiRE

-
Include in MSCI Hong Kong Strategic Collaboration Memorandum Acquire 51% equity interests of
Small Cap Index with China Medical System (Stock King Equity, Eternal Harvest,
)\ MISCI 38/ B IR 453 Code: 867) L o ader vhich
. . e operate two veterinary hospitals
B BE 1 225 (AR D X5k : 867) 5T M EKAK and veterinary imaging centres
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Acquire of 51% issued share capital of Strategic collaboration Memorandum with

Animal Medical Centre Prenetics Limited ‘;'
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Acquire entire healthcare portfolio of HKR Include in 8 index series of the Hang Seng
International Limited (stock code: 480) Composite Index and included as an eligible
stock of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
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Financial Highlights and Five Year Summary
G RERhFEHRE

2022
—g-Z
HK$°000
THT
Revenue WA 2,919,500 2,080,403 1,948,501 1,852,452 1,307,639
EBITDA! BRTE REHA
ZBF0 536,364 397,354 460,414 502,552 368,342
Profit before tax Sieynhyl 321,411 265,896 360,523 450,080 330,154
Profit for the year FRRF 270,503 225,593 310,272 384,505 278,136
Profit attributable to owners of ANAIER NEL
the Company gl 197,501 192,865 286,576 361,106 279,224
Basic eamnings per share (HK cents) S RRERRFH (L) 171 18.8 29.1 36.7 28.5

2022
—E-C-F
HK$°000
FER
Total assets BERE 4,860,608 3,790,481 2,555,269 2,346,984 1,982,981
Total liabilities BREE 2,510,052 2,159,695 1,385,736 1,181,087 1,145,467
Net assets EEFE 2,350,556 1,630,786 1,169,533 1,165,897 837,514
Financial Metrics BB EE
EBITDA Margin® BHmEREHA
ZBFEe 18.4% 19.1% 23.6% 27.1% 28.1%
Net profit margin® R X 9.3% 10.8% 15.9% 20.8% 21.3%
Current ratio® BN E 1.11x 1.07x 0.98x 1.25x 1.24x
Quick ratio® RELLEO 1.04x 1.04x 0.93x 1.20x 1.21x
Return on equity® PR 7 O 11.5% 13.8% 26.5% 33.0% 33.2%
Return on average total assets”! THLEERGED 6.3% 7.1% 12.7% 17.8% 17.5%
Dividend per share (HK cents) FRARE (Bl 14.4 156.9 23.0 35.0 27.0
EC Healthcare 4 Annual Report 2021/22



Financial Highlights and Five Year Summary
MGEHMERTFEHE

Notes:

W&
EBITDA equals earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned 1. ERMMEREBHEAT 2 BHNENRRGAFE  FHIE - B
property, plant and equipment and amortisation. EBITDA is not a standard BEVE BMEMLBETEREHANAET - BRI
measure under HKFRS. The Company’s management believes that EBITDA, EREHEAT 2 BN IR AR RS R T HIRLE
as a proxy of operating cash flow generated by the Group’s businesses, FTEFE - ARAREEERR - BB E REHEAT
provide investors with useful supplementary information to assess the ZBIMERTEBEBMSEERSMOREK B
performance of the Group. REERUAERNBRTER  UFHEREEHRR
The following table sets out the reconciliation of the EBITDA and profit before TEREZ A FTR B BB T 8 R 8 A 2 B R ERR
tax for the periods indicated: Tt AR A B H R
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-BHLEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Profit before tax MR T BT A 321,411 265,896
Finance costs B RSB AR 48,907 23,648
Depreciation-owned property, plant and equipment  ITE—ABYE - BE REE 96,031 77,547
Amortisation of intangible assets EmAEE 71,379 31,968
Less: Bank and other interest income B RTT REA A B A
(note 6 to the financial statements) (BI B mRMIE6) (1,364) (1,705)
EBITDA BRITE NE#Em 2 AT 536,364 397,354
EBITDA Margin equals earmnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned 2. EBE REHN 2 BRI XERTBEENRTF
property, plant and equipment and amortisation over total revenue of the B BIE gEDE BERIENERBHEIN
financial year. BFBRAZEIA ©
Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for the same 3. JF R ) 2R S A ) MR A B ERRI A
period.
Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end of 4, MBI EERTRFERNRBEERUTBEE
the financial year.
Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities 5. RELEEENVRFERORDEERTFERNUR
as at the end of the financial year. A&
Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the ending balance of 6. A% N [B] 3 3= 5 5 G A0S I BR DA B BUF T2 Y A 2 4R 5E
total equity of the financial year. ZERGER -
Return on average total assets equals profit for the year divided by the 7. FHREEBREERFERNGFRAMBEENE
arithmetic mean of the beginning and ending balances of total assets of the EREZEVRFERESRZ BIlTTH9E -
financial year.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16, Leases on 1 April 2019 using the 8. TEBERZZE-NFHNA-—BERKEITERE

modified retrospective approach. Accordingly, the figures for each of the years
ended 31 March 2017, 2018 and 2019 are not restated and therefore may not
be comparable.

BERR 5
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Geographical Coverage
M B &
Total 147 services points covering Greater China (as at Mar 31, 2022)
RHEEBEREZHRILEL147TBARBE R (BE2022F3A31H)

Mainland China FREl X & Greater Bay Area, China (exclude
Hong Kong) RE XK EE(FREFE)

ast HRFL OO
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear shareholders,
ZEHAIARR -

EC Healthcare succeeded in grasping
opportunities and coping with volatility
on the market that characterized the
financial year ended 31 March 2022.
We bolstered our leadership in the
healthcare industry by steadily
expanding our market share and forging
ahead with business diversification.
Such initiatives have furthersenriched
the ecosystem of our businesses.

202284 F £1 58 B M = =B R
B HFH—F - RAEREERIRD
TEEBWNBUER  mHHREE
IR - ¥ STk FIRA - £

TN L%E_i%% .

We believe in finding a way through adaptation. The pandemic has
been raging for two and a half years, forcing the Group to suspend
business several times and thus depressing the volume of medical
tourists’ visits. During the fifth wave of the pandemic in Hong Kong, we
were compelled to close up shop for 104 days, the longest period of
business suspension in our Company’s history. However, adversity and
pressure only hardened our resolve to stand united in taking on the
persistent challenges. While dedicating ourselves to pandemic relief
work, we also kept on building up our business. We were actively
exploring the possibilities of growing with more diverse businesses on
the external market and, at the same time, enhancing the capability of
our internal systems.

BERR 7

BRIE  BAE - REMFLNRBEBLE
RERHIER  BREEAETALITE &
AERLRREMRAERRMKET L LHREN
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wESE R BERIEHKRE - RENTR
XERAHNRE  RFPRBFLEEAD  HEi%
BISMEM Z LZTTEREE - ERERAR
FERBEES ©

FE®RE 2021/22



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Through the joint effort by all walks of life, the pandemic has been
stabilized and brought under control. | would like to express my
gratitude to all our customers and business partners for their trust in
EC Healthcare. Your unwavering support has encouraged the Group to
take on the challenges and has enabled it to maintain industry
leadership with its co-owners despite adversities. | would also like to
thank all my colleagues for their strong sense of cohesiveness and
dedication. It is your excellent adaptability and execution capability that
have enabled the Group to press on with its effort to consolidate the
fragmented healthcare market through corporatization and to keep
scaling new heights in business growth.

Challenges like this always evoke memories of the trying times | had
been through at the age of 13. My family had started out as a household
in a public housing estate but, thanks to my father’s devotion, made it to
the middle class. Unfortunately, my father suffered from a stroke and a
delay in treatment. My family then lost its economic pillar. The incident
inspired me at a young age with determination to address the pain points
of the traditional healthcare market through a reform. Although the
healthcare market has a bright prospect, it is still very fragmented and
not yet corporatized. EC Healthcare is set on spearheading the
consolidation of the market. It aims to shape it into an efficient,
transparent consumer healthcare market by redistributing resources and
putting customers first.

It is heartening to see the Group stay in the forefront of the industry,
but | always remain alert to the possibility of being overtaken by
competitors. It is because maintaining a leading market position is a
never-ending game — we must navigate the ever-changing market or
even blaze a trail while numerous competitors are trying to catch up
with us. Only through great perseverance, inquisitiveness, tenacious
innovation and unrelenting striving for perfection under the guidance of
our belief can we keep deepening the Group’s economic moats and
thus maintain its market leadership.

EC Healthcare 8
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Closely tied to mainland China and yet globally oriented, Hong Kong
boasts economic freedom, a well-established legal system and
advanced healthcare services. The unique combination of these
advantages makes the city an ideal soil to realize our aspirations. Born
and raised in such a promising place as Hong Kong, we are imbued
with the Lion Rock Spirit that has marked the city’s perseverance to go
from rags to riches. This spirit has permeated the Group’s development
— we advocate servant leadership, create value with various
enterprises as our business partners and share the fruits of the success
through a mechanism for mutual trust. We always cherish cooperation,
open-mindedness, trust and dedication to excellence in service. We
also encourage our co-owners of our business to think big with humility
and thus carry on EC Healthcare’s entrepreneurial spirit.

| am confident about the Group’s future development because we have
proven capable of internalizing systematically the experience gained
from long-term practice and have crystallized it into EC Healthcare’s
distinct logic behind its corporate management. As a result, we have
been raising our operational efficiency consistently and have developed
a business model of a scalable healthcare business. In the future, EC
Healthcare will press ahead with its business strategy of diversifying its
one-stop healthcare services. It will also keep on conducting
technological innovation, building up its brand of customer service and
fostering a culture of co-ownership. We hope to consolidate the market
through both the Group’s organic growth and mergers and
acquisitions. This will enable us to meet the customers’ needs
comprehensively and enrich our enclosed healthcare ecosystem. The
Group will gradually develop itself into a leading platform for healthcare
in Asia, bringing health, beauty and joy to the world.

BERRERE 9
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| would like to express my deepest appreciation to the co-owners,
management team and all fellow talents for their extraordinary
commitment, cohesive teamwork, dedication and contribution. They
are one of our most important assets contributing to the Group’s
success. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my utmost gratitude to all of our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support. We will continue to
leverage on our unparalleled position and deepen our impact as the
leading medical service provider in Hong Kong™ and striving for
excellence. In turn we will create an investment opportunity that is both
fulfiling and financially solid for our stakeholders.

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

23 June 2022

EC Healthcare 10
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EEMNDNRETEABRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TANG Chi Fai, Eddy

TRE - ITHRHRATES

B

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TANG Chi Fai, aged 43, is the Chairman of the Board, the CEO, our
executive Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is a
controlling shareholder of the Company and he founded our Group on
23 November 2005. He is responsible for formulating Group’s strategy,
system, corporate culture, managing the board and C-suite platform
development. Mr. Tang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in management of the
aesthetic medical and medical healthcare industries. Mr. Tang has
diversified experiences ranging from the initial establishment and
business development of medical aesthetic clinics and beauty centres,
the development of marketing strategies and maintenance of sales
channels.

From September 1998 to May 2001, Mr. Tang attended the University
of Hong Kong where he was enrolled in the bachelor of medicine and
the bachelor of surgery programmes before deciding to pursue a
different career path. From September 2001 to February 2005, Mr.
Tang enrolled in the bachelor of business administration in accounting
and finance at the University of Hong Kong and worked on a part-time
basis before deciding to switch to full-time employment. Mr. Tang
obtained Certificate IV in Training and Assessment from Northern
Melbourne Institute of Technical and Further Education in September
2009 and the executive master of business administration degree from
the University of Hull in January 2014. Mr. Tang is an Elizabeth
Wordsworth Fellow at St. Hugh’s College, University of Oxford.

BERRERE 11
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
EELEREBEAEHE

BRITRARFRATES

LU Lyn Wade, Leslie =&
Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

LU Lyn Wade Leslie, aged 42, joined the Group in August 2021 and
is the co-chief executive officer of the Group. He focus on Group’s high
level strategy, systems building, implementation and cultural alignment.

Mr. Lu is a seasoned corporate executive with 21 years of
management experience across multiple industry verticals. Mr. Lu
worked in Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited as Deputy Chief
Digital Officer. Before that, Mr. Lu was an executive at Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited during 2001-2007 & 2008-2020. His roles include
General Manager Digital, General Manager Product, managerial
positions in airline planning, cargo, flight operations, customer
relationship management as well as oversea station at Thailand,
Vietnam and United States.

Mr. Lu graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”) with a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering in
2001 and a master’s degree in Global Finance in 2009 from New York
University and HKUST.

EC Healthcare 12
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

BERVBERNMIES

f'»

LEE Heung Wing, Levin Z=A14%

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

i

LEE Heung Wing, aged 41, joined the Group as corporate finance
director in March 2016 and was responsible for corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions matters and has become the chief financial
officer of the Group since July 2019. Mr. Lee is responsible for
supervising capital market activities, evaluating M&A targets, and
setting financial plan for the Group.

Mr. Lee has over 17 years of professional experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Lee obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance from the University of
Hong Kong in 2004 and a postgraduate diploma in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Lee became a
member and practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 2007 and 2015, respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lee founded his own certified public accountant and
consultancy firm in 2015, principally engaged in business and
accounting consultation services. Prior to 2015 and after his
graduation, Mr. Lee worked in assurance department of Ernst & Young
and his last position was senior manager which he acquired intensive
financial reporting and corporate governance experience.

BERE 13
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

BRRERENARRERE

WONG Ka Ki, Ada T 5%
Chief Strategy Officer and Chief Investment Officer, Executive Director

RITES

WONG Ka Ki Ada, aged 41, joined the Group in October 2021, and is
the chief strategy officer and chief investment officer of the Group. She
is responsible for formulating strategy to transform the Group into
Asia’s leading healthcare platform, as well as building healthcare
ecosystem through acquisition and strategic partnership. She also
focuses on driving the Group’s ESG strategy.

Ms. Wong has 20 years of professional experience in the investment,
finance and real estate industries. Prior to joining the Group in 2021,
Ms. Wong had been the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the “Champion REIT
Manager”), the manager of Champion REIT (Hong Kong stock code:
2778) since 2016.

Prior to joining Champion REIT, Ms. Wong worked at Citigroup and J.P.
Morgan’s investment banking division to offer strategic advices to a
number of blue chip corporates. She had also executed numbers of
landmark IPOs, capital markets fund-raisings and strategic M&A
transactions.

Ms. Wong graduated from University of Michigan (Ann Arbor) — Ross
School of Business with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree.
She was the Chairperson for Asia Pacific Real Asset Associations Hong
Kong Chapters. She is a Fellow member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and a Fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Ms. Wong was honored with the titles of Distinguished
Sustainability Leadership Award 2021 by Hong Kong Management
Association, Best CEO in The Asset ESG Corporate Award 2020, and
Best CEO by FinanceAsia in 2020.

EC Healthcare 14
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
EELEREBEAEHE

BEREBERNTES

WONG Chi Cheung, Gemini

Chief Digital Officer and Executive Director

= =
b=

WONG Chi Cheung, aged 49, joined the Group in August 2018, and
is the chief digital officer of the Group responsible for digital and IT
transformation. Mr. Wong is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Wong has over 22 years of professional experience in digital
product development, eCommerce, digital marketing and consumer
experience design. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the
director of digital business of Hong Kong Disneyland, responsible for
the development of consumer direct channel and digital guest’s
experience since 2013. Mr. Wong joined Langham Hospitality Group
as a group director of e-business responsible for direct channel and all
online business development for the Langham Hospitality Group in
2013. Mr. Wong held various positions including head of e-business
team and program manager of Cathay Group in Cathay Pacific Airways
and/or its subsidiaries (the “Cathay Group”), which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 293), during the period from
2000 to 2012. Mr. Wong founded an IT consultancy company
principally engaged in offering IT solutions to medical service providers
in 1996.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration with

major in Information and Systems Management from Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1996.

BERRERE 15
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FHTES

LUK Kun Shing, Ben BE#%
Chief Information Officer and Non-Executive Director
Bl BRI EHITES

LUK Kun Shing Ben, aged 43, has more than 10 years of experience
in the aesthetic medical industry, and over 18 years of experience in
the information technology industry. Prior to joining our Group in March
2010, from January 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Luk served as a
software engineer at Google (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of
Google Inc., specialising in internet-related services and products.
From December 2003 to December 2010, he was a software engineer
at Google Inc., in Mountain View, California, the United States and
involved in the implementation of Google Maps.

Mr. Luk graduated from Cornell University with a bachelor of science
degree in computer science in August 2000 and Stanford University
with a master of science degree in computer science in June 2003. Mr.
Luk was appointed as the Engineering Site Lead at Google Beijing in
2017. The Board believes that his role in Google Beijing will allow him
to be in touch with the state-of-the-art technology and Mr. Luk will
continue to advise the Company to enhance its IT systems and access
to the latest IT resources.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

)

b o

BUIFRTES

MA Ching Nam, aged 69, was appointed as our Independent Non-
Executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Ma is also a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ma has
been practising law for more than 40 years. He was admitted as a solicitor
in England and Wales, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He currently
serves as Senior Partner of Hastings & Co, Solicitors & Notaries, a law firm
in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is also a Notary Public, China Appointed Attesting
Officer and Civil Celebrant. He was the President of the Hong Kong
Society of Notaries from 2007 to 2013.

Mr. Ma currently serves as directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited,
Heptacontinental Group of companies, Ma Kam Ming Company
Limited, Ma Kam Ming Charitable Foundation and Ma’s Enterprises
Company Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Time Watch Investments Limited (Stock Code: 2033) and an
Independent Non-Executive Director of JY Grandmark Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2231), both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma was Chairman of Po Leung Kuk from
2019 to 2020.

Mr. Ma is also a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Grantham Hospital in Hong Kong, and a council member of Hong
Kong St. John Ambulance. He has been appointed as a member of
Political and Consultative Conference in Hunan Province, PRC. He was
also the past Chairman of St. Paul’s Co-educational College Alumni
Association. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Hull with a
bachelor of science degree in economics with honours in 1977.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

LAM Chi Hang Josekin #1717
Independent Non-Executive Director
B FHITES

LAM Chi Hang Josekin, aged 43, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 14 September 2017. Mr. Lam is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee, as well as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lam has extensive knowledge and over 21 years of experience in
business consultancy and financial industry. Prior to setting up and
running his own business consultancy and real estate brokerage firms
in 2009 and 2014 respectively, Mr. Lam was a consultant at Bain &
Co, Inc , a management consulting Company. Mr. Lam was the acting
chief executive officer of Sanook.com, a subsidiary of Tencent Holdings
Limited (“Tencent”), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 700). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam last
held the position as a director of strategy department of Tencent. Mr.
Lam graduated from Tufts University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Quantitative Economics and International Relations in May 2001 and
the University of Chicago Booth School of Business with a Master of
Business Administration in June 2007.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

LOOK Andrew PR

Independent Non-Executive Director
B FHITES

LOOK Andrew, aged 57, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Look is also a member of
each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Look holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University of
Toronto and has over 28 years’ experience in the equity investment
analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From 2000 to 2008,
Mr. Look served in Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”) as the head of
Hong Kong research, strategy and product. He was rated as the best
Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by the Asiamoney magazine, a
leading monthly financial and capital markets publication for corporate
and finance readers and investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006
and 2007. Mr. Look is currently an independent non-executive director
of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1446), CITIC
Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Ka Shui International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 822) and L.K. Technology Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 558), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a company delisted
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016) from
September 2010 to September 2016, an independent non-executive
director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1466, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from September
2014 to December 2016 and an independent non-executive director of
Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock Code: 1415, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from April 2017 to December 2018.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHU Chun Pu kZEEE

Chief Business Officer
FHaE

Dr. CHU Chun Pu, aged 44, joined the Group as the chairman of New
York Medical Group (“NYMG”) in October 2016 when the Group
acquired NYMG. Dr. Chu has become the chief business officer of the
Group since September 2020 and is responsible for leading the top
management in medical services along their entire value chain. Dr. Chu
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Dr. Chu is a
registered chiropractor in Hong Kong and has over 19 years of
professional experience. Dr. Chu is a fellow of the Royal College of
Chiropractors, is the Chairman of Chiropractic Doctors Association of
Hong Kong, and is the Advisory Peer Group of the Open University of
Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Chu was the founder of
NYMG and responsible for the overall management and strategic
planning and development. Prior to establishing NYMG, Dr. Chu had
previously practice in New York, the United States and Vancouver,
Canada. Dr. Chu obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science from
Queen’s University, Canada in 1998, and Doctor of Chiropractic from
New York Chiropractic College in 2002. Dr. Chu is the spouse of Ms.
Mak Wing Man.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
EELEREBEAEHE

MAK Wing Man 23
Chief Operation Officer

w s =
B AR

MAK Wing Man, aged 42, joined the Group as the managing director BKE - 4258 EAEBERZZ—RF+ AYE

of NYMG in October 2016 when the Group acquired NYMG. Ms. Mak NYMGHE HEENYMGRI E S BLEMMARSE
has become the chief operating officer of the Group in December 2020 c BUTH T _EFFZAKAREENE
and has been responsible for operations and post-acquisition BRE WEBERERKBEERES BT ER
integration. Ms. Mak has over 15 years of professional experience in BEXBBEETMABE 1I6FEELR - Ea R
medical business management. Ms. Mak obtained a degree of —EE-FREEARBEAEBNMEEINER

Bachelor of Business Administration in Marketing from the Hong Kong BLEM - RMAREERZA - EL T EF
University of Science and Technology in 2001. Prior to joining the NYMGHIESHLIE  TEERELETENE
Group, Ms. Mak was the managing director of NYMG and responsible HERE - BERTARKEEBTTHORES -

for the overall operations management and business development. Ms.

Mak is the spouse of Dr. Chu Chun Pu.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R MO

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY EEER
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Leading market consolidator with multi-brand strategy
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Being the leading consolidator of
Hong Kong'’s fragmented healthcare
market, we adopt a multi-specialist
brand strategy with over 40 brands
spanning across service segment of
medical, aesthetic medical and
beauty and wellness. Each brand
distinctively addresses the need of
different customer segments and
demonstrates service and product
leadership to establish top-of-mind
awareness in the market. DR
REBORN has maintained leading
sales for 14 consecutive years with its
continuous investment in bringing
leading aesthetic medical solutions
and top-of-class service facility to our
customers. As our brand portfolio
grows, we further reinforce our
one-stop total care service
proposition to our customers which
maximizes our capturing of our
customers’ lifetime value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
MvEEJ: njnﬁ& Tﬁ

Customer- Our customer-centric approach places strong emphasis on satisfying our
centric customers’ needs. With excellent customer service provided by our professional

- teams, we have built a loyal customer base through our enclosed ecosystem overq
ggfv';ggcr?]g:’glur the years. We are encouraged to see strong engagement with them which are

well-supported by the numbers below:
BEUAEREHN : \ o
BERKE SEBFURTAEL  AORMREFPT R SERBSFHNIEEEERRRTE

ETRRBENTR  UBBEERPREEKALRERELRE - KB +5
RERNETPERETNMIE - iEBN TESBIRER

FY22 FY21
SECCBE B -HF
Number of unique customers BUYRFHE 182,300 155,863
Percentage of existing customers ) ERFRAILED 64.3% 58.9%
Percentage of cross brand customers @ S mEHE R PR e 27.5% 27.1%
Repurchase rate @ BEEEERO 90.2% 81.0%
Customers’ satisfaction rate @ EEMER® 99.96% 99.99%
Note: &t
(1)  Based on revenue for the year ©) PARZBF SF AU AGE
2 Number of customers who purchased services from more than one brand @) ZHMERNHEEZR —EM RS T P EERAZ
for the year divided by total number of customers for the year MERFERFH
3) Customers of previous financial year contribution for the current year ) T ERFPRAFETRZBAR E—0F
divided by the total revenue in previous financial year FEULON
4 100% minus the percentage of material unfavourable feedback of total @) 100% M EAFELWARERTFIRENE D
revenue for the year. £t

Our significant investment in digitalization reflects our commitment to an insight-
driven and digitally-enabled approach in creating customer value and unleash
deep synergies across our acquired businesses. Our integrated data and digital
ecosystem allow our innovation in ways of giving our customers with
convenience and control in the way we serve them, improving our speed-to-
market and relevance of our offer, empowering our frontline teams to deliver
seamless and personalized services while achieving operational efficiency at
scale.

Enabling innovation with our
commitment in driving %lyﬁ){ EREEARR ERAKREER  BRTE@HNR
digitalization BE RTEBIE DT Tﬁ'ﬁ%}fﬁw%fﬁ{ém%:ﬁ Hﬁﬂ;‘%@ Y
3 > = = &b 415 7 E’JT@UHAI/WEﬁ— : (
BAB L REE A AIHAT P e

B8RS AT HILIRTS - BRI AR L A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Building a vertically
integrated healthcare
n ecosystem
411 REMRBS KRR
FRERARS

The Group is building a vertically integrated healthcare ecosystem
through collaboration with strategic partners in the five major
areas:

SEBBERTARRBMBHZEE  BSEE—EARNERE
EBARBANAREARERRM °

Technology %%

To bring service and operational innovation with
best-in-class technology via strategic

{é} partnerships.
BB EMBIL - AR RY & AIFTK
_T’Z

Telecom E:fl
(o) To provide new service propositions, including
O.f ?0 telemedicine for their corporate & residential
I( )| clients.
ONVO ArEREREFREAEEEEREANNTY
REARTS

Insurance Rk

To develop new health insurance products and
customer experience proposition while driving
cost and operational efficiency.
FMEEFRRRBRERREMNETFER  ARE
R ARIRTHE LR

Property EitiE

To collaborate with landlords to tailor-made
medicalgrade buildings for our Group’s own use
which maximize operational efficiency.
HETOER A B R ERERAAE - 1R
FHE B RBE

Pharmaceutical H%

To explore strategic partnerships in drug
registration, distribution, prescription decision-
support while providing data for drug discovery.
BREKAE  EEBURMMEY M - HE -
BRITRRELR

R
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Alignment of interests
through Co-
ownership scheme
BREREEAGEE
REERRELHLA

Talent is our greatest asset; our Company’s success is
reliant on professional and self-motivated employees. We
offer Co-ownership scheme to our core talents in order to
achieve value alignment through their shareholdings in our
Company. We continue to invest in talents to allow them
excel and beyond in each position. We provide a wide-
range of trainings, including an online learning platform “EC
University” for our employees to learn at their own pace
and build their business acumen. We also offer career
coaching to drive their long-term individual growth.

KERAT REENEE - BENKINBETFHEER
BEZENAT - RECKHEEZL AL HETE

e BREERRERELLE -

& LAETER B BEKE - &

LERR =¥ PN 38 TRHZ bt

BERS BE A 1T B H AR Tt - RE MR HBE SRR EE N
B BEEHATNRERBEAKE °

Sustainability
AFRER

Our business philosophy centres upon sustainability. We
continue our utmost effort to integrate sustainable
development into our business, in creating long-term value
for all our stakeholders and communities. We are
committed to drive action on the relevant United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), which provide a
blueprint to achieve a sustainable future and underpin our
sustainability strategy.

AHEEREBREAAEIANLLEROEE - EHEN
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R B 36 AN o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIE BT Mo

Resilient results from
aesthetic medical &
beauty and wellness
services segment
ZEERBENEREL
RIEEBE R R EZT N

During FY22, revenue contributed by aesthetic medical
and beauty and wellness services increased by 10.2%
YoY to HK$1,091.2 million. Revenue from Hong Kong
remains stable at HK$804.7 million, due to the
Compulsory Closure during the fourth quarter of the
FY22. Revenue from Mainland China increased by 28.4%
YoY to HK$173.2 million due to the brand capital
established over FY22. Revenue from Macau surged
119.6% YoY to HK$113.4 million due to a strong recovery
of medical tourism.

RIEZZHFEEXRBEEREABESBERMBA
1,001.28 &7t A EF10.2%  EFREFEEL 2
WAMIZIET  F8047TEEEL TEZINFENFE
CTREIGEEFE  SEN T _HFERIMBLERE
N B KERARLL EF284% F173.2B 8B T ¢
SRR BRI AR NEEE - AP BIRPIRAKIE £
F119.6% E1134BEBTT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As Hong Kong’s leading private healthcare service provider, the Group
stepped up during the COVID-19 pandemic to provide a wide range of
anti-pandemic measures to the public. For example, we offered telemedicine
and drug delivery services through our clinics as well as government-approved
nucleic acid tests (RT-PCR) and antibody tests through our accredited
laboratories. The Group also provided COVID-19 vaccinations to the public
and has joined hands with charitable organizations to donate rapid test kits to

. n . those in need.
Embracing social responsibility

by stepping up our response in SEFEREARLNREBRBERGKE  EREHREGEAELER
the community during COV|D_19 1T - B2 & BFR iR a b REHRZERERS  HERE 5
= S 31 S HE ) i 5 B8 K AR ES - 7 RETIRIE BT R A TR ES
XEHE RORE RELERE R B R R RS o 9 B AEEBHTREHREES
JESTRRTS - o

Strong growth in medical
segment

s BERBEEBERAY

The Group continues to gain market share in the healthcare services
industry through both organic expansion and M&A growth. Revenue
from the Group’s medical services segment rose by 64.6% YoY to
HK$1,689.0 million, boosting its revenue contribution to 57.9%, of
which organic expansion and M&A completed during FY22
accounted for 95.0% and 5.0% respectively. Organic growth is
driven by surged demand for COVID-19 related services and rising
healthcare sentiment.

During FY22, the total valuation of acquisitions completed in medical
segment was HK$460.7 million, spanning across dental, and various
medical specialties. The Group’s suite of medical services spans 29
specialist disciplines, and our headcount of full-time and exclusive
registered practitioners has increased to 251.

FN - SEERRHERREERFERERERMENMSH
He FREEBES PUWRARL EF64.6%E1,680.0E ST * 1h
L — BRI E57.9% » EEN T — — B E e BERGU A
FAAERER R G ERME L £ 55 95.0% K 5.0% c AEHKEE
BR B AR B R RS SR AU R R BB A AR HEE) o

ZT T BF - SEAHIT460.7 B SETAEENKHRE  BET
BRZEBRSEN - REBEREGENE -SRI BEEBESH
#EE20ME 2REMEBBEEKRABE - FHEREBIA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIE BT Mo

OUTLOOK

Navigate through
market headwinds to

|“'| | drive organic growth
IC@\l AT

FEETALEER

While Hong Kong local consumption was boosted by the Hong
Kong Government’s consumption vouchers and gradually
recovers from post relaxation of social distancing measures, the
recessionary market backdrop could still pose headwinds to our
businesses. Yet, the medical market is relatively resilient and
public-private partnership will continue to increase Hong Kong’s
private medical spending in the long run. Potential reopening of
Hong Kong and Mainland China’s border would reinstate demand
from Mainland tourists, which could offset the impact of the
challenging operation environment.

BELRRTBABTERRELIERNER  RBUFIREHE
BLEREMRK  MBAREEREN TTEADSEER
%%%ﬂ%Tﬂ%i EXEERERETLEEIERS AR
HfME S RREBRERAANAERIEDTEREBED
B ANETE AN o RSN - BEE R KB A B ERIKE - HE
R BB B0 BB TR 1 AR IR A b AR R (R WO B P IRIR -

Diversified M&A growth
and realization of
synergies by IT investment
RELIKHAE
BEZTWRHBREBEREM

As part of our acquisition strategy, we will diversify within medical
and beauty sectors, which allow us to further increase in service
offerings to our customers to better meet their needs. For example,
we saw a surge in demand in pet businesses and we started to
consolidate in veterinary segment. This segment could become
one of our key growth engines in the future. At the same time, our
continuous investment in our IT infrastructure and capability will
give us service and cost leadership among our peers while
maximizing synergies for our acquired business.

AREE

L R e S g () = e

building for our own use so a
efficiency.

%Hﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁéﬁﬂﬁ

(=l B’JE%MK%%@U(EM&%}% ;

Building a sustainable
business
ELTEIIE%E%

rQO‘Q REEL %

At EC Healthcare, we embrace sustainability whole-
heartedly and it is a one of the key differentiators that
allows us to have a competitive advantage over others.
We are committed to uphold sustainability principles,
especially on pledging to net zero, social responsibilities
and strengthening corporate governance practice. Moving
forward, we will excel through our sustainability journey
together with our much-valued stakeholders. We will also
be proactive in continuously refining our strategies for the
overall welfare of our Company and the greater
community.

BEEERANFGLASEEREENERN - ARAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by 40.3% from HK$2,080.4 million for FY21 to
HK$2,919.5 million for FY22, primarily attributable to the significant
increase in the revenue generated from medical segment during
the Reporting Period.

Medical

Medical represents all medical services (excluding aesthetic medical
services) and dental services offered by the Group. Our revenue from
medical segment represents 57.9% of the Group’s total revenue (2021:
49.3%) and increased significantly by 64.6% from HK$1,025.9 million
for FY21 to HK$1,689.0 million for FY22, primarily attributable to the
continued development of new medical services and broadening of
services spectrum through organic expansion and acquisition of other
medical establishments during the Reporting Period.

Aesthetic Medical and Beauty and Wellness Services

Aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services represent
aesthetics medical, traditional beauty, haircare and ancillary wellness
services offered by the Group and the sale of skincare, healthcare and
beauty products. Our revenue from aesthetic medical and beauty and
wellness services represents 37.4% of the Group’s total revenue (2021:
47.6%) and increased by 10.2% from HK$990.4 million for FY21 to
HK$1,091.2 million for FY22, primarily attributable to an increasingly
diversified offering and brand capital established over the years, despite
the volatile environment.

Other Services

Other services mainly represent multi-channel networking and related
services and veterinary services.

Our revenue from other services represents 4.8% of the total revenue
(2021: 3.1%) and increased by 117.3% from HK$64.1 million for FY21
to HK$139.3 million for FY22, primarily attributable to the expansion
into the veterinary sector during the Reporting Period.

Operating Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
business segments of the operations for the Reporting Period is set out
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other net income and gains

For FY22, other net income and gains were approximately HK$46.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$58.7 million or
55.9% when compared to FY21, primarily due to the decrease in
government grants, which mainly represent subsidies received under
the Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong Government,
from HK$75.3 million for FY21 to HK$2.3 million for FY22.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Our cost of inventories and consumables represents 12.0% of the total
revenue (2021: 11.3%), which increased by 48.6% from HK$235.3
million for FY21 to HK$349.6 million for FY22, primarily attrioutable to
the increase in the volume of medication and service consumables
used, which was in line with the increase in revenue.

Registered practitioner expenses

For FY22, we incurred Registered Practitioner expenses of
approximately HK$655.9 million, representing 22.5% of the total
revenue (2021: 21.6%) and an increase of approximately HK$207.2
million or 46.2% as compared to FY21, primarily attributable to the
increase in the number of full-time and exclusive Registered
Practitioners from 139 as at 31 March 2021 to 251 as at 31 March
2022.

Employee benefit expenses and remuneration policy

For FY22, we incurred employee benefit expenses of approximately
HK$728.6 million, representing 25.0% of the total revenue (2021:
27.9%) and an increase of approximately HK$148.2 million or 25.5%
as compared to FY21, primarily due to the increase in salaries paid to
additional employees during the Reporting Period. Our overall
headcount (excluding Registered Practitioners) was 2,674 as at 31
March 2022 (as at 31 March 2021: 2,323).
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The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented employees by offering
them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries and bonuses
were determined with reference to their duties, work experience,
performance and prevailing market practices. The Group also
participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong,
and provides employees with medical insurance coverage.

Certain share options have been granted during FY22.

Marketing and advertising expenses

For FY22, the Group incurred marketing and advertising expenses of
approximately HK$139.4 million, representing 4.8% of the total revenue
(2021: 5.3%) and an increase of approximately HK$30.0 million or
27.4% as compared to FY21, primarily due to the positive synergy
resulting from the Group’s acquisition of a multi-channel networking
company and development of online platform since 2020, which
allowed us to secure new customers more efficiently and effectively.

Rental and related expenses and depreciation of
right-of-use assets

For FY22, the Group incurred rental and related expenses and
depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$326.0 million
(2021: HK$247.9 million), representing 11.2% of the total revenue and
an increase of 31.5% as compared to FY21, which was in line with the
increase in the g.f.a. of service centres and clinics to approximately
534,000 sq. ft. as at 31 March 2022 (as at 31 March 2021: 398,000
sq. ft.).

Credit card expenses

For FY22, the Group incurred credit card expenses of approximately
HK$64.9 million, representing 2.2% of the total revenue (2021: 2.4%)
and an increase of approximately HK$15.6 million or 31.7% as
compared to FY21.

EC Healthcare 32

AEERBANERNEENE - BUIBBRHEA

BRERONFMSBRERE N LT BOES - B
BWFHERIEATISERRE - TIEER - RIR
RBETHSENMERE - REBETNEESHR
S ATERFTE - SRR BIREEERRR -

TR CBE ETEBRESERE -

EHEREERX

T BT ARBEEANI104BEETLY
BHEREEMRY  HRRAN4I8N (T —F
5.3%) BT —BFEINL30.08EEB LK
274%  FTEERAEEE T _TFWRESE
EHBE AR TEENRITHBRME - WHE
WLEFE  FRMPEEREREWBETES -

HEREBREXUAREREEERE

R CBF AEBELAHES REBRAZ U R
FRAREENENG260FE88 (T _—4F:
2A7TOEEBABTL) HRIWARNI2%  BZFT
Z— B FHING81.5%  ERISH LR 2 FTHEE
EEHEENZ T _—_F=ZA=1+—B%
534,000 F A R(R=_E-_—F=A=+—8:
398,000 F 5 R) —%K »

FRFRX

ZECUF  AEEEANCAIEEBILNE
BRI R RAN22%( =T = —F:
2.4%) BT —BFENN156 B E BT
31.7% °

Annual Report 2021/22



Management Discussion and Analysis
BB wm &k

Administrative and other expenses

For FY22, the Group incurred administrative and other expenses of
approximately HK$162.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$45.6 million or 39.0% as compared to FY21,
primarily due to the broadening of services spectrum.

Profit Before Tax

For FY22, the Group has profit before tax of approximately HK$321.4
million, representing 11.0% of the total revenue. The increase in the
profit before tax as compared to that of FY21 was due to our
integrated multi-discipline strategy.

Income Tax Expense

For FY22, the Group incurred income tax expense of approximately
HK$50.9 million, representing an increase of approximately HK$10.6
million or 26.3% as compared to FY21, primarily due to the increase in
profit before tax.

Profit for the Year/Profit Margin

For FY22, the Group recorded profit of approximately HK$270.5
million, representing an increase of HK$44.9 million or 19.9% as
compared to FY21, primarily due to our development of new
businesses and our integrated multi-discipline strategy. Our profit
margin decreased from 10.8% for FY21 to 9.3% for FY22.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits of HK$872.2 million as at 31 March
2022. Our net current assets excluding lease liabilities, was HK$470.9
million. With our steady cash inflow from operations, coupled with
sufficient cash and bank balances, we have adequate liquidity and
financial resources to meet the current working capital requirements as
well as to fund its budgeted expansion plans in the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2022, a majority of our cash and bank balances were
Hong Kong dollar.

Issuance of Convertible Bonds and Warrants

On 18 November 2020, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with each of Goldman Sachs Asia Strategic Il Pte. Ltd
(“GS”), Waven World Limited (“GAW”) and OAP Ill (HK) Limited
(“OrbiMed”), pursuant to which:

(1)  GS has conditionally agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$234,000,000 at initial
conversion price of HK$5.69 per conversion share and warrants
in the aggregate amount of HK$273,000,000 at initial
subscription price of HK$6.17 per warrant share;

(2)  OrbiMed has conditionally agreed to subscribe for convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$31,200,000 at
initial conversion price of HK$5.69 per conversion share and
warrants in the aggregate amount of HK$36,400,000 at initial
subscription price of HK$6.17 per warrant share;

(8) GAW has conditionally agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds

in the aggregate principal amount of HK$39,000,000 at initial
conversion price of HK$5.21 per conversion share.
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The Directors believe that the introduction of each of GS and GAW as
a strategic investor to the Group shall empower the Group’s access to
global resources in business development and financing and the
increased investment from OrbiMed as an existing shareholder to the
Company would be an appropriate means of fund raising for the
Company.

The completion of the subscription of the convertible bonds took place
(i) on 5 February 2021 for GS and GAW and (ii) on 8 February 2021 for
OrbiMed. The net price, after deducting such fees, costs and
expenses, was approximately HK$5.61 per conversion share.

Details of the subscriptions were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 November 2020 and circular dated 9 January
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The net proceeds received from the issuance of convertible bonds and
the exercise of warrants were fully utilised as at 31 March 2022
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according to the intended use previously announced by the Company BEARBHEBANT
as follows:
Net Proceeds from the issuance of convertible bonds BITURRESNAMBRIEFE
Utilised  Actual amount Unutilised
Planned amountup utilised during amount as
Intended use of net proceeds amount to to 31 March  the Reporting at 31 March
as announced be utilised 2021 Period 2022
EZ®
—E--F REEHE R-B-—F
T EIST =A=+-H MER =RA=+-H
FARHASREFERERE BANSE HWEBRLE EBHALE MABRLE
HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Expand the clinic network of BARAREEERS
the Company in Hong Kong and KR NP i
the Greater Bay Area in the PRC 121.3 65.0 56.3 -
Mergers and Acquisitions AMRNESERE 136.4 - 136.4 -
General corporate purposes —RE¥RRE 455 455 - -
Total 4=t 303.2 1105 192.7 -
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Net Proceeds from the allotment of new shares upon

THEARERREBHROAEREF

exercise of warrants -]
Utilised  Actual amount Unutilised
Planned amountup utilised during amount as
Intended use of net proceeds amount to to 31 March  the Reporting at 31 March
as announced be utilised 2021 Period 2022
B2

—EBE--f IR % HI R=B=ZF
BE e =A=t-A HER =A=t-A
FAmNREREFERERE BANEE MEBRLE EBALE MABRELE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEBT BEBT

Expand the clinic network of BARKARERERTRAAER

the Company in Hong Kong and S LS

the Greater Bay Area in the PRC 108.9 - 108.9 -
Mergers and Acquisitions B RNEERE 122.5 - 122.5 -
General corporate purposes —RE¥ERR 40.8 40.8 - -
Total 272.2 40.8 231.4 -

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 16 April 2021, the Company and the placing agent, Haitong
International Securities Company Limited, entered into a placing
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to place through
the placing agent an aggregate of 29,636,000 placing shares on a best
effort basis at the placing price of HK$7.8 per placing share. The
closing price of the Company’s shares was HK$7.68 on the date of the
placing agreement and the aggregate nominal value of the placing
shares was HK$296.40. The placing was completed on 28 April 2021
and all 29,636,000 placing shares have been successfully placed by
the placing agent to Dr. Cheng Chi Kong, Adrian JP (as his personal
investment) and Aspex Master Fund (“Aspex”). The net proceeds were
approximately HK$231.0 million with net issue price of approximately
HK$7.79 per placing share.
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The Directors believe that the placing would introduce strategic
investors to the Group to (i) empower the Group’s development in
Hong Kong and Mainland China through leveraging on the placees’
resources in real estate and capital markets; and (ii) optimise the
shareholders base of the Company. The Company intended to apply
the net proceeds from the placing in full for (i) expansion of clinic
network of the Group in Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area in the
PRGC; (i) mergers and acquisitions; and (i) general corporate purposes
of the Group. The net proceeds were used according to the intended
use previously announced by the Company. For further details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19 April 2021 and
28 April 2021.

The net proceeds were fully utilised as at 31 March 2022 according to
the intended use previously announced by the Company.

Intended use of net proceeds
as announced
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E—REERE
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Actual amount Unutilised

Planned utilised during amount as
amount to the Reporting at 31 March
be utilised Period 2022
RBEHE K=ZZ==F

=BT WEE =A=+-—H
BRANSHE EHALE ORBALE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BERT BEBT
231.0 231.0 -
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Placing of existing shares and the top-up subscription
of new shares under general mandate

On 8 July 2021, the Company, Union Medical Care Holding Limited
(“Union Medical Care”) and the placing agent, Haitong International
Securities Company Limited, entered into an agreement of placing of
existing shares and top-up subscription, pursuant to which (i) the
placing agent agreed to act as an agent of the Union Medical Care to
procure Mr. Cheng Chi Kong, Adrian JP and Aspex (collectively,
“Purchasers”), on a best effort basis, to purchase a total of 27,972,413
shares at placing price of HK$14.50 per share; and (i) the Union
Medical Care conditionally agreed to subscriber for, and the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue to the Union Medical Care, a
total of 17,213,793 new shares at the subscription price of HK$14.50
per share. The closing price of the Company’s shares was HK$14.94
on the date of the agreement and the aggregate nominal value of the
subscription shares of HK$172.14. The placing of existing shares and
the top-up subscription of new shares under general mandate were
completed on 9 July 2021 and 19 July 2021, respectively. The net
proceeds were approximately HK$248.8 million, pursuant to which a
total of 17,213,793 new shares were allotted and issued at net issue
price of approximately HK$14.46 per share.

The Directors believe that the placing would enable the Group to have
a stronger relationship with the strategic investors to (i) empower the
Group’s development in Hong Kong and Mainland China through
leveraging on the Purchasers’ resources in real estates and capital
markets; and (i) optimise the shareholders base of the Company. The
Company intends to apply the net proceeds in full from the placing for
(i) expansion of clinic network of the Group in Hong Kong and the
Greater Bay Area in the PRGC; (ii) mergers and acquisitions; and (iii)
general corporate purposes of the Group. For further details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8, 14 and 20 July
2021. As at 31 March 2022, the details of the use of net proceeds are
set out in the table below.

EC Healthcare 38

EERAERORBE - REELERN
w0 3 # AR A7

R-ZZE=—F+A/\A " A27]  Union Medical
Care Holding Limited ([ Union Medical Care ]) & B¢
ERBERERESBRARG VESHRAERN
RAEERFRENGZE Bt (EERERE
&£ Union Medical Care #) 032 AR &5 1) E %R
FENERISEAE - KFa K Aspex (i (TE 5 )
EREETEREKH14508 T E & &
27,972,413 % f% 15 X (iij)Union Medical Care B
FHRERE  MARRBKHRELRREES
fi% 14.50 7 7T [ Union Medical Care it 3 & 2174
17,213,793 Bk 1) © AR DA I 2 aE B
R TEA14.948 L MABABROHEEDE
BAT214%5 7T - IMER BN RARE — MR E T
ERTNREIRMNDOIR_EZ—FtANAK
ZTE—FEATNBEK - IEFIBFRAR
2488EEBAT Bt BERFEFTEERY
14.4678 04 BB R EE1T17,213,793MRFTAR ) ©

EERE LESHEBFEASEMAKKIEERRE
VEEBEBE N)EBRREEFNEENRE
ATISHER - REAEEREBRHE A
BRE R)VBICADRNRRER - K2 RS
REEEMERBFEEHAR () EARERR
HEERTEXERNZIELE (I RKES
B R()AE@MH—MEERAR - BB
15 BREARQARABEA-_ZT-_—FtANH"
TR +THNAGE RZZTEZ=_F=A
=+—H FIEREFERARFEHNTE -

Annual Report 2021/22



Management Discussion and Analysis
BB wm &k

The net proceeds were used according to the intended use previously
announced by the Company and the Directors do not intend to change
the use of the net proceeds. It is intended that the remaining unutilized
amount will be fully utilized by December 2023.

ZE IS SRIRF R TR R R B SR AT A e E A
BTABHA BEETRETAEKRFENA
®oMRTAPBLEHRN B _=F+_AFIE
HBEM -

Actual amount Unutilised
Planned utilised during amount as Expected
Intended use of net proceeds amountto  the Reporting at 31 March timeline of
as announced be utilised Period 2022  full utilisation
R &R RZIB-ZfF
HEBT HER =A=1+-H EeEAm
FRAGHFASRERERER R BANEE EaftE HAEALE R R
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Expand the clinic network of BAKRRREREKF 99.5 - 99.5 By December
the Company in Hong Kong and RNERRZD g 2023
the Greater Bay Area in the PRC RZZEZ=F
=R
Mergers and Acquisitions BHRNEEE 112.0 112.0 -
General corporate purposes —REE¥RRE 37.3 37.3 -
Total st 248.8 149.3 99.5
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS H#%EF

Subscription of 30% shareholding interest in the JV
Company and Potential Lease

On 5 June 2022, Healthy Cameron Property Limited (“Healthy
Cameron”), and Union (Group) Investment Limited (“Union Group”),
both being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant
to which Healthy Cameron conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
Creative Profit Development Limited (the “JV Company”) conditionally
agreed to allot and issue to Healthy Cameron, 7,200 ordinary shares in
the JV Company (the “Subscription Shares”), which will represent 30%
of the total enlarged issued share capital of the JV Company
immediately after the closing of the subscription of the Subscription
Shares. Union Group has agreed to guarantee the performance by
Healthy Cameron of certain obligations under the Subscription
Agreement.
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Under the Subscription Agreement, the Group (including Healthy
Cameron) shall invest up to HK$275,000,000.00 to the JV Company.
The JV Company is a joint venture company established by the existing
shareholders of the JV Company for the purpose of the development,
management and operation of the building to be constructed on the
combined sites of the land parcels located Cameron Road and
Granville Circuit, Tsim Sha Tsui (the “Building”). The JV Company
currently owns and possesses the title to the parcels of land together
with the existing buildings erected thereon and intends to re-develop
the same into the Building with an estimated lettable floor area of
approximately 103,000 square feets mainly for medical centre and
other clinical use.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, Healthy Cameron Op (HK)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has also
undertaken to lease all of the floor areas of the for an initial term of 5
years following completion of the development of the Building.

The Group will customise medical space configurations in the Building
designed to accommodate specialised medical equipment, enabling
the Group to deliver one-stop premium medical and medical aesthetic
services. The Group plans to consolidate its scattered clinics across
different buildings in Kowloon and anticipates the purpose-built
property to drive business growth and improve overall operational
efficiency. The Building is expected to complete construction by the
fourth quarter of 2024.

The aforesaid transactions constitute discloseable transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules. For further details of the Subscription
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6
June 2022.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditure during FY22 was primarily related to the
establishment of new clinics and services centres, purchases of
operation equipment, which mainly included medical, dental and
beauty devices, and expenditure in leasehold improvements. We
financed our capital expenditure mainly through cash flows generated
from operating activities.

Capital Commitment

The Board has approved to establish imaging centers and integrated
medical clinics and entered into agreements to acquire certain
property, plant and equipment, with aggregate capital expenditure of
approximately HK$200 million as at 31 March 2022,

In addition, the Group was committed at 31 March 2022 to enter into
few new leases that is not yet commenced, the aggregate lease
payments without considering the extension options amounted to
HK$44.9 million.

INDEBTEDNESS
Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had convertible bonds of HK$235.7
million and lease liabilities, except for those relating to the properties
leased for own use, of HK$0.6 million.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities
and guarantees.
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Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2022, investment properties of HK$197.1 million,
ownership interests in land and building held for own use of HK$33.5
million and time deposits of HK$2.0 million were pledged for certain
banking facilities.

Further, operation equipment of HK$1.4 million was pledged under
financing arrangement with banks.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals total debt (excluding lease liabilities relating to
properties leased for own use) divided by total equity. As at 31 March
2022, the Group had interest-bearing liabilities, except for the
properties leased for own use, of HK$236.3 million and the gearing
ratio is 10.1%.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group carries out certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly
pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S.
dollar against Renminbi.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk
by closely monitoring the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates and
will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s outstanding convertible bonds were
on fixed interest rates. The management does not consider the Group
has significant interest rate risk.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has entered into the following
significant investments and acquisitions.

(a) Discloseable transaction — Acquisition of
veterinary business

On 15 June 2021, High Group Corporation Limited (“High
Group”), being an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as the purchaser), entered into the first sale and
purchase agreement with Dr. Tiong Hai Hean (“Dr. Tiong”) and
Dr. Tan Shyue Wei (“Dr. Tan”) (as the sellers), each held 50%
issued share capital in King Equity Investments Limited (“King
Equity”) respectively, to acquire an aggregate of 51% issued
share capital in King Equity, comprising 25.5% and 25.5% from
each of Dr. Tiong and Dr. Tan, respectively. The aggregate
consideration for the acquisition of the 51% issued share capital
in King Equity is HK$48,300,000.

On 15 June 2021, High Group (as the purchaser) entered into the
second sale and purchase agreement with Dr. Tiong (as the
seller), who held 100%, 95% and 85% issued share capital of
Eternal Harvest International Limited (“Eternal Harvest”), Hong
Kong Veterinary Imaging Center Limited (“HKVIC”) and Crown
Leader Limited (“Crown Leader”) respectively, to acquire 51%
issued share capital in each of Eternal Harvest, HKVIC and
Crown Leader. The consideration for the acquisitions of the 51%
issued share capital in Eternal Harvest, HKVIC and Crown Leader
are HK$17,700,000, HK$850,000, and HK$850,000 respectively.

King Equity, Eternal Harvest, HKVIC and Crown Leader are
principally engaged in the provision of veterinary services in Hong
Kong. As at the date of the first sale and purchase agreement,
the aforesaid companies operate two veterinary hospitals and
two veterinary imaging centres in Hong Kong.

The Company aims to consolidate the veterinary market and
promote corporatization for veterinary business.
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(b)

(i) Each of Dr. Tiong and Dr. Tan guarantees to each of the
purchaser and the Company that the net profit of King Equity;
and (i) Dr. Tiong guarantees to each of the purchaser and the
Company that the aggregate net profit of Eternal Harvest, HKVIC
and Crown Leader, ending each profit guaranteed year shall be
no less than such designated guaranteed amount respectively
from the year ending 31 March 2022 to the year ending 31
March 2028. If the target amount is not met, the relevant
guarantors shall pay a shortfall to the purchaser, subject to any
compensation payback by the purchaser to them.

Completion of the above acquisitions took place on 20 August
2021. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 15 June 2021 and 20 August 2021.

Discloseable transaction — Acquisition of
Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited

On 5 November 2021, Jade Master International Limited (as the
purchaser) (“Jade Master”), being a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 70% equity interests in Premier Medical Group (BVI)
Limited (“PMC”), at the consideration of HK$100,000,000, which
was owned by 16 registered medical practitioners.

PMC is principally engaged in the operation of five medical
service centres in Hong Kong with over 30 registered medical
practitioners offering 18 medical specialties and allied health
services. Upon completion of the acquisition 31 December 2021,
PMC became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

A revenue guarantee arrangement is included in the agreement.
Under the arrangement, the sellers and seller guarantors agreed
to guarantee the total audited revenue of PMC shall be no less
than HK$1,176.7 million. The sellers and seller guarantor shall
compensate Jade Master for any shortfall attributable to Jade
Master in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement.
Based on the latest management account, management
expected that the guarantee revenue for FY22 could be met.

The acquisition was part of the Group’s expansion strategy in
medical service. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 8 November and 31 December 2021.
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(c) Discloseable and connected transaction —
Acquisition of Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons
Limited

On 29 November 2021, Union Dental Holding Limited entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with the sellers to acquire
55% equity interests in Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons
Limited. The transaction constitute a discloseable and connected
transaction of the Company. For details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” of this section.

(d) Discloseable transaction — Acquisition of
Excellent Power Investments Limited
(i.e. GenRx Healthcare Group)

On 16 February 2022, Union (Group) Investment Limited (as
purchaser), being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a subsidiary of
HKR International Limited (stock code: 480) to acquire 100%
issued share capital and the sale loan of Excellent Power
Investments Limited (“Excellent Power”) at a total consideration
of HK$68.0 million to be settled by cash. Excellent Power carries
on its business with the brand name “GenRx Healthcare Group”.

Excellent Power operates a comprehensive healthcare service
network in Hong Kong and Macau, covering specialist services that
focus on chronic disease management and dental care, supported
by medical diagnostic services. It administrates a comprehensive
medical network of over 250 affiliated clinics, providing general
practitioners, specialists and physiotherapy services.

This acquisition was completed on 31 March 2022. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
February 2022 and 31 March 2022 respectively.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Company during the Reporting Period, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period and there is
no plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

There are other transactions entered into by the Group in the prior
years which profit guarantees have been given. However, those profit
guarantee periods have not yet expired as at 31 March 2022 nor the
date of this annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has entered into the following
connected transaction:

(a) Discloseable and connected transaction —
Acquisition of Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons
Limited

On 29 November 2021, the Company, Union Dental Holding
Limited (as purchaser), being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Union Dental”), entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the sellers (“‘B&J Sellers”) to acquire 55% equity
interests in Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons Limited (“B&J”), at
a consideration of HK$129,423,950, which was satisfied (i) as to
HK$119,424,057 in cash; and (i) approximately HK$9,999,893
by the allotment and issue of 796,360 consideration shares at
issue price of HK12.557 per consideration shares. B&J is
principally engaged in the operation of seven dental clinics in
Hong Kong with 32 practicing dentists.

One of the B&J Sellers is an associate of Mr. Look Andrew, an
independent non-executive Director, the B&J Sellers are therefore
connected persons of the Company as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As more than one of the applicable
percentage ratios calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the acquisition contemplated under the
agreement are more than 5% but all applicable percentage ratios
are less than 25%, the transaction constitutes a discloseable and
connected transaction of the Company. The acquisition and
issue of consideration shares, but for Rule 14A.37 of the Listing
Rules, are subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
applied for, and on 17 December 2021, the Stock Exchange has
granted, a waiver from the requirement for the Company to
convene a general meeting under Rule 14A.37 of the Listing
Rules.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the agreement.
Under the arrangement, the B&J Sellers and guarantors agreed
to guarantee the profit generated by B&J for the coming 7 years
shall be no less than HK$120 million. The B&J Sellers and the
guarantor shall compensate the shortfall of the profit attributable
to Union Dental in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement. Based on the latest management account, the
management expected that the profit guarantee for FY22 could
be met.
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The acquisition was part of the Group’s expansion strategy in
medical specialist operations.

The acquisition was completed on 17 January 2022. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
November 2021, 20 December 2021, 31 December 2021 and
17 January 2022 and circular dated 13 January 2022.

Connected transaction — Tenancy agreements of
Fung House

On 20 December 2021, the Company entered into six tenancy
agreements (“Tenancy Agreements”) with the landlord (the
“Landlord”) to lease seven floors of Fung House, 19-20
Connaught Road Central with a total of gross floor area of
approximately 22,226 square feets. The lease terms under four
of the Tenancy Agreements were for four years and nine months
commencing from 1 January 2022 while two of the Tenancy
Agreements were for five years commencing from 1 June 2022.
The floors will be used in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company, which includes medical centre, beauty
service centre, dental centre, health management centre, clinics,
medical laboratory, office and/or other similar operations. The
value of right-of-use assets to be recognised by the Group under
the Tenancy Agreements is approximately HK$86.6 million in
accordance with HKFRS 16. The aggregate fixed monthly rentals
for the Tenancy Agreements is HK$1,506,811, exclusive of
government rates, government rent, management fee, air-
conditioning charges and all other outgoings. During FY22, the
aggregate amount of rentals paid by the Group to the Landlord
were HK$1.9 million.

Given the Landlord is an associate of Mr. Lu Lyn Wade Leslie, an
executive Director and co-chief executive officer of the Company,
the Landlord is therefore a connected person of the Company.
The entering into of the tenancy agreements constitute
connected transactions of the Company.

For details of the lease transactions, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 20 December 2021.
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Overview of our Sustainability Goals

The Group endeavours to incorporate sustainability as a key element of
its future growth strategy. In 2022, the Group signed its inaugural dual-
tranche sustainability-linked facility, the first-of-its-kind for a healthcare
services provider in Hong Kong. This transaction reinforces our status
as a leading industry pioneer and our commitment to sustainability in
the long-term.

As a next step, we have identified 13 focus areas that will form the
pillars of our ESG strategy and outline our approach to promote a
culture of sustainability across the Group. These priorities have been
mapped against eight of the United Nations’ Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) that we believe are most relevant to our business:

AHEEREREE

REBEGIFEREEAEBERRILRERKD
FEEREZ— - AEER-_Z__FRAEETBE
BFRERRSREENFEEI L AIFERERER
HEBEEFMAR - BAKFHER T RMNITE
NREEHA W REE T RMERRATHEERE
BYHGE ©

Hig - WPAIMEL T 13 EER A - ZFAEKE
RAREIRE - @ REABRE AT - WM
RAEBARHETAHEREREN T - LEE
AERCHBARAFEERBGTRMARSE
BMEBEBIE RS EZB KRS :

Respective SDGs Focus Area 2030 Target 2022 Update
HEEEERAE | L —B=Z2EEE ZECCFEN
Environment Energy Formalize the adoption of energy- Phased roll-out of energy-efficient
B BEIR efficient lighting and loT to optimize lighting and loT devices, including
energy consumption across our new service points
B AFaER service network 7 BE B ST AR 7% B 2 P Rl R B
B ARSTRUETOR SECAESERARERYBERE RERYEER
PAB ML R (B AR TS 4B 4% BV R IR #E
& Recorded energy intensity of
1,688.46 kWh per HK$1 million of
revenue
HERREEATEEBTIKIA
1,688.46F LK
Water Standardize the installation of Our purpose-built medical building
K equipment with water-efficient will be developed and designed with
1 ﬁ;ﬁffgﬂ features to reduce the impact of water efficiency in mind
AND PRODUGTON water consumption BMEPEENBERNERERE R
m RELEKERIERE - M RKYE  RETREREAKEE
Recorded water intensity of 14.72m°
1 RRTH per HK$1 million of revenue
BERAKEEREEEBTKRA
@ 14,7237 755k
Waste Implement the best practices of Recorded hazardous waste intensity
BEEY) waste management procedures of 0.0005 tonnes per HK$1 million of

BEREERNBHEE

1 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

EC Healthcare

across business units to monitor and
minimize waste generation
BEBHHEREENEEREFNR
FEEBUEEWRDEEMES
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revenue and non-hazardous waste
intensity of 0.0243 tonnes per HK$1
million of revenue
BEEEEENEEREREB T
A0.0005M M SER EREENEE /T
BEBTIA0.02430
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Respective SDGs Focus Area
HEEEERAE | L
Social Well-being
e il

R4 62 EEELEAE
GOOD HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING

e

MRIFE
GENDER EQUALITY

2030 Target

—E-2HFEE

Develop an employee wellness
program to promote health and well-
being

#I5E B THREERAT 8l AeE I AR AL

2022 Update
—ECCEEH

Arranged various workshops and
leisure activities for employees
REIZHEZRIENRNE RERE
)

Purchase of pandemic prevention
supplies (such as protective masks)
for employees

RETBEMEYME WHRAE)

Training and
development
SRR

17 EEREEBNBHEE
PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

Annual increase in the average
training hours of employees

B T3 B FE m

Create a tailored training and
development plan for the main
business units
REEXEBHPITIE TR RER
il

Organize sustainability training for all
Board members and employees
RIMBESENERETHABIHE
BRI

Ongoing training sessions offered

through online and offline channels
BB EAR T RBRAFFEI IS
FIFRE

Safety
25

Maintain a zero-fatality and injury-at-
work rate among our employees

HRRMETMTRCRTHE

No fatalities or workplace injuries
reported
BT T EENERE

Stakeholder engagement
RHE2HE

Annual increase in the resources
dedicated to stakeholder
engagement

BEENMANFSNELENER

Create a strategy for continued
stakeholder engagement
HITE B R 0 5 2 BB

An independent ESG consultant
conducted a stakeholder
engagement exercise
BEFBERE e RELSEMET
ROHEZETE

Community investment

HEERE

Double the total volunteer service
hours'

AR PR TS AR BN

Cooperated with 50 partners in

12 districts to provide vaccination
services since the outbreak of
COVID-19
BAIAEMRSERELAR - E12(8
R EB0R A ER TG iR R E
RS

Diversity and inclusion
ZRRERN

" Compared to base year 2022
T PA2022 FREEELLE

Promote gender equality via
education and sharing
BBHE R ZREMTE

49

Females currently hold 60% of senior
management roles

B AR R ERE BRALH60%Hm L ITHE
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Sustainability Approach

AR R T #t

Respective SDGs
HEHEERAE

Governance
[ NVAN
B /B

16 M - EZwE

IRAHENE
PEACE, JUSTICE AND
STRONG INSTITUTIONS

17 EERERANBHEE
PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

EC Healthcare

Focus Area

BHEE

2030 Target
—E=ZEER

2022 Update
—ECCEEH

Board Increase the Board’s participation in Established the Sustainability
£ sustainability issues Working Group, reporting to the
ENEFeHAREREABENS  Boad
iz} B AT HERE T VE - WRE
EeER
ESG Policy Improve governance by using best Set clear ESG targets and

B B REBHR

practices in documentation and
regulatory procedures
BREXHEEREERFTER
REBRRNEE QKT

sustainability strategy
HIERENERE  HERERER
KAl F AR B R B

Anti-corruption
[ 55 B

Implement anti-corruption policy to
strengthen internal control

HERBRBR - h05e A EBE

To establish AML policy
il 5E R SR HUR

Quality management
EEEe

Develop quality management policy
to ensure consistent delivery of
services across our brands
HIEBEERECR - AR
an W — B0 AR5
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Action plans have been developed to
comply with industry standard
operations

BIETTEIR BN R ITRITERIE

Annual Report 2021/22



Awards and Recognitions
3ET8 Nz aT

Corporate Awards ¥ s8

]“l ‘ lnstitutional
\ nvestor

2022 ASIA (EX-JAPAN) EXECUTIVE TEAM
MOST HONORED COMPANY

EC HEALTHCARE
- Core Asia Best IR Team

Results

EY Entrepreneur Of The Year EY Entrepreneur Of The D) PN
(EQY) 2021 Health Sciences & Year 2021 — Winner,
Wellness Category Winner Hong Kong/Macau, China

TR 8 001 BER 2SR 5 001 — The Most Honoured Company

> pl S \ BEEO %
BEAfR R T RIHR REEE SRPIAEE Best CEO

Asia ex- BEERHTE
Mainland E;eiﬁcmz@ o
China Eifi/ﬁi%,wni
S Best Investor Relations Program

EE 7)“ E B[4 41

i th B RIEREEBERIER
(BB KBE) Best ESG
RERE  HERABRRE
Best Investor Relations Professional

REREERETS

REREEBERER

Best CEO

BEERHTE

Best CFO

Asia Small REMBEE

and Midcap Best Investor Relations Program

The 21st Capital Outstanding gf’g{jg‘% & iifi% mERA

Golden Stock Award — Enterprise Awards BB e R AT
Best IR Team HEBEEREREE — Best Investor Relations Professional
B E IR B CEARTE)E 21 E BEREEBRES
[ A 3R 2R

ESG Award
BRI HERDEEREE

Green Office and Eco-Health
Inno ESG Prize Awards Workplace Awards Labelling
Inno ESG Prize Kﬁ% Scheme — Autumn 2021

tRAR @A 2021 FIRBRIFPHAE

HERA — Hong Kong ESG
Reporting Awards

BB ESGHE A (HERA)
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Awards and Recognitions
3PN

Brand Awards [R5 E

BRI EANRRE
9 DR REBORN

Dysport — Highest Sales Achievement
for Consecutive 14 Years from 2008-2021
within Hong Kong
BB 14F Dysport® 2B HETE
2008-2021

2011-2021

AR+—EFATEEE
99 DR REBORN

Restylance — Highest Sales Achievement
for Consecutive 11 Years from 2011-2021
within Hong Kong
2011-2021 F 4 11 4F
Restylane® 275 H 2@ 5

EC Healthcare

2010-2021 W 12%
EERREREERL

9 DR REBORN

o w5 -
e L
Botox — Highest Sales Achievement
for Consecutive 12 Years from 2010-2021
within Hong Kong

=

BB 12F Botox® 2B HHETE
2010-2021

B TEOXANE

Teoxane Teosyal Most Dynamic
Award 2021

BEIRTLEAHER

[ -
2010-2021 BilN12§
FEENEREESRL
9 DR REEORN

o s
== ~

Jevéderm — Highest Sales Achievement
for Consecutive 12 Years from 2010-2021
within Hong Kong
EEA12F Juvéderm® B BT E
2010-2021

Teoxand Best Sales
Diamond
Award Twoxand

HEBEZE# A #2021

Ultherapy Transducers Winner
Highest Achievement

2021 FEE AR HE W E

Highest Sales Achievement
for Consecutive 14 years within Hong Kong

SEEAUEDEPNE T E
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Co-Owners
BHIREEA

OVERVIEW

The reasons, purposes and objectives of the Co-Ownership Plan are to
incentivise skilled and experienced Eligible Participants to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group in order to create value for the
Shareholders, by providing Eligible Participants with an opportunity to
acquire equity interests in the Company according to the Co-
Ownership Plan, and further aligning their interests with those of the
long term Shareholders. For details of the Co-Ownership Plan, please
refer to the Company’s circular dated 31 March 2020.

As of 31 March 2022, the total number of talents participating in the
Co-Ownership Plan is 126.

APPROVAL

On 21 February 2020, the Board approved the adoption of the Co-
Ownership Plan. On 16 April 2020, the following resolutions as set out
in the notice of the EGM dated 31 March 2020 were duly passed by
the Independent Shareholders by way of poll at the EGM: (i) the
Scheme Mandate be granted to the Directors to exercise all the
powers of the Company to allot and issue a total maximum number of
new Shares of 39,411,097 (up to 4% of the issued Shares on the day
of the EGM); (i) Connected Purchase of Award Shares up to the Award
Share Limit; and (i) the Connected Grants of Award Shares up to the
Award Share Limit.

(*Unless otherwise indicated, terms used herein shall have the same meanings as
ascribed to them in the circular of the Company dated 31 March 2020.)

BERR 53

e

BREBEAGEZRA - B KB ERABERRR
ERAGEMEEEESEREREZT CEEE
SHEERFERSEERNATRE  WiE—SEHE
Flam s R EARRERT — B MBS E R
EEVHERSEAAEEZ RRERRIFERNS
71 RIRRAEEE - BAREE AT AN
15 BREARRHEA-_TE_TF=A=1+—
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RZE-=—F=A=+—H #HREEAFED
2EAHBAEELE126F °

it

R-TE-TE-_A-+—H E5SIERMKE

REBAGE - RZZTEZTFWMA+/8 ' NA
HAE—ZT_TF=-A=+—HNRERFIRSHE
EMEHNU TRBEDEB YRR ABRRERIA
G FURERAFAERNEBR : (B TESTE
B DMTE ARG BN E KRBT HE
%39,411,007 R (TR BRFEFFIANEE
BETRMN4%)  ((\EEEEEERNHEERE
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Co-Owners
FREIEA

® Eddy Tang E}E51E
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
- THEBE R ITES

Gone the stormy winds, the obstacles this year did not derail our progress. Instead, it forced
us to become swifter in adapting to different situations. Sharing the same core value of
professionalism, our co-owners always run the business with an entrepreneurial mindset,
regardless of the boom and bust of the short-term cycle. They are the true ironclads of EC
Healthcare.

FEERR - SFNERLARRRFIAES - AR - HEERMERDEETBABER
FHEREEZOBEEENFREBABREUACERBREEER  TIEHNERER
GO E - RERBERENEERLNE -

® Levin Lee O
Executive Directors & Chief Financial Officer

WTEERERMBE

While 2022 has been a tough year, we have created miracles with our closely connected co-
owners. We continue to welcome purpose-driven leaders to join the co-ownership scheme so that
all can replicate a piece of their success. In the meantime, let’s celebrate the achievements we
have created altogether!

AT FRREN—F BRFRERARS % HRAETE - HIIARRA O RER
DARBRRERNBEEMATRERAGS - ERNESAER - BRI - ERMA—EE
BIRPIFTEIE RO RO TE |

® Gemini Wong & & B

Executive Directors & Chief Digital Officer
HOTEEREFEBE

Co-ownership makes a difference. When our colleagues are also the owner of the
business, they enjoy not only the employee benefits but are entitled to reap a fraction of
their contribution to EC Healthcare.

FIREEAMEIFNEE ERMNAETREENTEER  BETMEZFEFARE
THzE » MEEHRARHEHMERIPRINERERZ

® EricChu R EB ® Iris Mak EikE
Chief Business Officer Chief Operating Officer
[ LERE

The COVID-19 rampage has taken a
heavy toll on many people, both

Co-ownership builds upon the basis of
talent delegation and empowerment. We
physically and mentally, but our co- entrust and empower our talents to “lead
owners remained dedicated in their and co-own” through purpose-driven

profession and served thousands of leadership and a co-winning mentality.

FRE IR A B R S e Y

£ RABEATBBUBRHERAIE
BRARNOEAELS [REHE] -

customers with an integrity heart.

MR EMRRSEELHFTE AEK T D
LFHRETE  BHMANFREREA
MATBER  WAERANLAKT
LERERRMERS -

EC Healthcare 54 Annual Report 2021/22



Co-Owners
FREIEA

® KellyTsang ¥EFE

Associate Director, Accounting &1 &I 4285

Witnessing the rapid growth of the Company, | am proud to have joined
early to make a difference in transforming our vision into reality. If we have
the tenacity to stick with our mission, the market will eventually recognize
our commitment to bringing health, beauty, and happiness to everyone.

BHEF—FNARBLREFQARNREERE  RAKBESRER/RE - ]
N RBHRIFRANED - FEHERUL RS EATREE - X
EMSEARHYAGE o

= L B Our employees have shown greater
Karl Wong =35 @
© o mH commitment after becoming co-

owners. They understand the
importance of their work can greatly
impact the business, thus giving a
higher regard in maximizing the value

Project Manager 18 B #& 12

® CeciliaLee ZEE 0

Assistant General Manager #4842

Yani Lau %'J —= ﬁ)’t ® creation for our customers.
0N
Project Manager & B #8128 BMOEIEXNARREEAR
RIFHE AR ZER - B FmMEEE
Tim Ho {A]f{ K @ ITHEMNEEY  AIHARELS
Assistant General Manager AR E : e £ 75 % P &AL E
R B IR MR AT HT BAEREEEE RAIEM -

® Julie Chow FZE i

Director, Medical % & 24225

The Great Wall Culture — an umbrella term covering 35 distinct cultural values
voted by 800 employees — stresses the importance of “leadership and co-
ownership.” We empower talents to gear up and co-own, exercising
entrepreneurship in running the Company in an Eddy-like fashion.

MR — —EREISB TR CEBEBANAE - B800HETHRE — BHF[4F
FHAINEEN - HPEEAT ERRBERBRETBHELETIS - B2 EHL
A, -

® Maggie Lam FKBE[] ®  Being a co-owner means every decision we have

Senior Consultant 225 Ea RS made will probably have a greater influence on
altering the future chain of events of the Company.

® Katylp EZE This process has helped us consider every
Sales Director & #EE possible consequence and the benefits for

s different stakeholders. It has made us become
® Daniel Chow S F4H @ better managers.

e IERBIRERABRE RIS —BRET b
h HARRRRELEAYE - HBRRERIET
FIH19 2 4 A3 H1 85 R T P 1k RO Rl

RIS AEHOERE -
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Investor Relations Report
WEAMERS

INVESTOR CALENDAR

29 November 2021
—Eo—F+—H-tNH

21 January 2022

T -F—HA=-+—H

23 June 2022

—EFXAZ+T=H

18 to 23 August 2022 (Both days inclusive)

—E-—E \A+N\BET=ZB(EREMABEEN)

23 August 2022
—E__FA\HAZ+T=H
6 September 2022

—TE-_FNAH
20 September 2022
—E-—FhhA=+AH

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The year has been daunting for most investor relations professionals.
Nevertheless, we have never let our guard down as a result of the
COVID-19 outbreak. We were highly adaptive in switching to the online
environment, ensuring the best deliverance of two-way communication
between the Company, shareholders and the whole investment
community. For example, in addition to having a virtual visit at the
Langham Place headquarters, we held several reverse roadshows
successfully at our Shenzhen headquarters to provide the most up-to-
date information to mainland investors. Through various channels
including domestic and international roadshows, investor meetings,
annual general meetings, company meetings, teleconferences and
emails, we have made transparent, efficient and timely communication
with our shareholders, analysts, fund managers and potential investors.

EC Healthcare 56

REEH

2021/22 interim results announcement

TR/ CFPEEERE

Payment of interim dividend

AR R

2021/22 annual results announcement

TR T CFEREERNE

Closure of Register of Members (for
determination of shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at annual general
meeting)

HiEHER MBI ELFE (T REFE
BREBFAEGWNE FREZRREHD)

Annual General Meeting

BREBFERE

Record date for determination of shareholders
who qualify for the final dividend (if approved)

8% B A (LARERE & BB IERR BAR B (it )&)
ZREFH)

Payment of final dividend in form of cash
(if approved)

R H A RIS (L)

REEBE

HRAZ BB EEREERALNE  AMFR
RIEWROIERATE - BEMU - RAKK
RN ERE SR IEMMRED - RMERER
MERE  BERAQAE  RERRBEKERZHE
R IFBEREREE - Dl BRIELARY
BEBZ BRI BAIERYEERN BN Z AR
FRREE) UAARMREERNEEERN - &
BAMNBINKE REEGH  RRBEFK
g Q6eH EEEZNEBBEAFZER
B BMERR - D BB NEERE
EERERE - BRKRENIR
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Investor Relations Report
KREEBERS

The inclusion of our stock in the Hang Seng Composite Index and
MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index thus the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect has marked another significant achievement and
milestone for the Group. Mainland investors can trade our shares
directly as we become an investment target through the Stock
Connect. It fully demonstrates the market’s high recognition of the
Group’s long-term value and growth potential. We extend our sincere
gratitude to the long-term supporters who share high convictions with
us to create a better future.

This year, our emphasis has been put on ensuring a free flow of
information to all interested parties. To achieve the said objectives, we
have an ambitious plan to digitalize the whole investor journey, from
point of touch to maintaining long-term supportive relationships. The
digitalization process begins with attracting sources of the public
domain into our closely-managed private pools. To infiltrate investors at
multiple levels, we are powered by big data analytics to locate investors
with different expectations and concerns. In the meantime, the Group
has spared no effort to maintain diversified communication channels
with the capital market through virtual roadshow, participating in online
roadshows and one-to-one meetings so that investors could keep
abreast of the latest developments of the Group.

Apart from proactively engaging with the investment communities, we
also treasure the two-way communication with investors through our
feedback mechanism. We noticed there were raising interests
regarding the additional disclosure of ESG issues, consolidation
strategies and corporate governance practices. In particular, several
concerns were brought-up including 1) adopting international
frameworks such as GRI, UNSDG, CDP and TCFD to strengthen the
ESG context; 2) continuing to improve board independence and board
diversity, and establishing anti-corruption policy; 3) shedding more light
on our long-term M&A strategy; and 4) disclosing long-term operational
targets and aligning management’s compensation with performance.
We discussed the matter with the Board and agreed to work with the
concerned investors in providing supplementary disclosure to the
public without compromising our internal protocol. Ultimately, the
investor relations team is made of the people and for the people, and
hence we continue to welcome valuable feedback from investors at all
levels.

During the Reporting Period, our management team and IR team
attended over 450 one-on-one and Group meetings and actively
participated in investor conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong
Kong, Shenzhen, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Beijing meetings with over
1,500 investors.

BRREE 57

HPNRRENAEEFA BB EMSCIEE
ERHEE - UKRAREBENSAEENS—H
BEAKB R BIRME - BEERMBBEHLBKA
BRERH - MR EE AT ABER R ZH IR
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NNBRERA - RAARHERFERRESE
BIEE R ARSI E R BREH
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BRIBERSEEEMEIN - RPITERBBR B
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Investor Relations Report
KREEBERERS

SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
NCIEE ]
Listing

il
Stock Code
A& 5
Listing Date
A
Board lot

BFEEEM

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2022

R-BE-—F=A=+—HAHDETEALN

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

EC Healthcare — Corporate Communications and Investor Relations

Department
Tel: (852) 3975 4798
Email: ir@echealthcare.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or
address of shareholders, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or
dividend cheques, registrations and requests for copies of annual or
interim report, please contact the Company’s branch share registrar

and transfer office:

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.

Suite 1601, 16/F

Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

EC Healthcare

RO ER

EC Healthcare
BERREE
The Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEABARHAERATER

2138

2138

11 March 2016
—ET-R"F=A+—H

1,000 shares

1,000 A& B 10

1,178,372,267 shares
(subsequently increased to 1,178,377,267
23 June 2022)

1,178,372,267 &% 15
(Rl E - —F A -+=A&
1,178,377,267 BER%17)

REEBER
BEME - CEEAREAEBED

T iE ¢ (852) 3975 4798
FEL : ir@echealthcare.com

BRERBHERERA

B MTRERERRGLRMUEE - K
NEE  BRRRIREZFZURELRREF
B HRE) WEH - FHREARARNES

BRSO

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.
BB

SRAEP 285

HERE

1611601 =
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Corporate Governance Report
TEBERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board acknowledges the vital importance of good governance to
the Group’s success and sustainability by providing a framework for
the Company to formulate its business strategies and policies, and to
enhance its transparency, accountability and shareholder value.

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (effective from 1 January
2022). The Company has complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code during the Reporting Period, save for the deviation from
code provision C.2.1 as disclosed below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made to all
the Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Co-owners, senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside information,
have also been requested to comply with the Model Code. No incident
of non-compliance with the Model Code by such co-owners,
employees was noted by the Company during the Reporting Period.

BERRER 59
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWmE

THE BOARD AND THE DIRECTORS
Board Composition

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 23 August 2021)

Lee Heung Wing (Chief Financial Officer)

Wong Ka Ki Ada (Chief Strategy Officer and Chief Investment Officer)
(appointed On 11 October 2021)

Wong Chi Cheung (Chief Digital Officer)

Lee Gabriel (resigned on 1 October 2021)

Non-Executive Directors
Luk Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)
Dr. Wang Steven Dasong (resigned on 19 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs, each an “INED”)

Ma Ching Nam

Lam Chi Hang Josekin

Look Andrew

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules to have three independent non-
executive Directors who represent one-third of the Board and with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each INED a written annual confirmation
that he satisfied the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) has assessed the independence of each
INED and the Company considers that each of their independence is in
compliance with the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period and as
at the date of this annual report. Each INED will inform the Company in
writing as soon as practicable if there is any change of circumstances
with may affect his independence.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Directors do not have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
able to perform a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategies. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 11 to 19 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report
PEERWmE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, the roles of the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEQ”) have been performed by Mr. Tang Chi Fai (“Mr. Tang”).
Although the dual roles of the Chairman and the CEO constitute a
deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board
believes that having Mr. Tang acting as both the Chairman and the
CEO provides a strong and consistent leadership to the Company and
allows the Company to have more effective planning and management.
Further, in view of Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in the industry,
personal profile and roles in the Group and the historical development
of the Group as mentioned in the Prospectus under the section headed
“Our History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” and publications
of the Company from time to time, the Board considers that it is
appropriate and beneficial to the business prospects of the Group that
Mr. Tang continues to act as both the Chairman and the CEO. Mr. Lu
Lyn Wade Leslie, an executive Director, was appointed as a co-chief
executive officer (the “Co-CEQ”) with effect from 23 August 2021. The
Board will keep regularly reviewing the operations of the Company
under Mr. Tang’s leadership, and considers that the balance of power
and authority has been maintaining amongst each of the Board
members, the Co-CEO, and the management team of the Group (the
“Management”), when the respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairman and the CEO are being divided in writing and carried out as
below:

The role of the Chairman focuses on the formulation and determination
of the overall strategies, direction and goal of the Group. The Chairman
is also responsible for leading the Board to effective management of
the Company by, among others, ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures, encouraging the Directors to make full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board, developing a culture of
openness and active discussion among the Directors so that Board
decisions could fairly reflect consensus.

The CEO and the Co-CEQO, within the powers delegated by the Board
from time to time, are responsible for day-to-day management of the
Company and to implement strategies and major policies decided by
the Board with the support of other executive Directors and the
Management.
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Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with the
code provision on board diversity. Under such policy, the Nomination
Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review, assess and
recommend any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of
any directors to the Board from time to time after considering a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience, to accommodate
the Company’s business model and specific needs.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The executive Directors are responsible for formulating the Company’s
corporate strategies, monitoring its implementation and reviewing
operational and financial performance of the Group.

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
have diversified industry expertise and professional knowledge, and
provides advisory, adequate check and balances for effective and
constructive contribution to the executive Directors to safeguard the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Board makes decisions on major aspects of the Company’s
business operations and other matters, including but not limited to
approving and monitoring key policies, material transactions, business
plans, annual budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
annual and interim results, major capital expenditure and appointment
of Directors.

Delegation to Management

The day-to-day operational management and administration functions
of the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of functions of corporate
governance. During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the
functions as set out in code provision A.2 of the CG Code.
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Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment, re-election, rotation, and removal of
the Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering
the suitability of an individual to act as a Director and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-election of
Directors, succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of the INEDs as set out below under sub-section
headed “NOMINATION COMMITTEE”.

All other Directors entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with our Company for a term of three (3) years, which
shall be renewed as determined by the Board or the shareholders.
Their term of office each is the period up to his retirement by rotation or
retirement, but they are eligible for re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company may by
ordinary resolution at general meetings of the Company elect any
person to be a Director. The Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that each Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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Induction and Continuing Professional Development

of Directors

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Directors have attended the following
trainings during the Reporting Period on various regulatory topics:

EENARBIRFEERRE

ARRGBAMAEE2EBESEERNE—F
RENMEMKRE 2 MBRXE  ERESERR
EHEARTABEATHESS(ELER - EF
ERHmEHAEH2ETIABSRE S SKEMNE
Al

Nature of Trainings

EIME
Type 1 Type 2
bRl FA2
Executive Directors BITES
Tang Chi Fai SR v v/
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie (appointed on EEER_ZE=_—FN\A
23 August 2021) —+=HEZEE) v/ v
LLee Heung Wing EJEES v v/
Wong Ka Ki Ada (appointed on FRB(WR-_ZE-_—F+A
11 October 2021) +—RAEEE) 4 4
Wong Chi Cheung =ik S v/ v
Lee Gabriel (resigned on 1 October 2021) Tz (RE_—%F
+A—HBET) v/ v
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Luk Kun Shing Ben SR v 4
Dr. Wang Steven Dasong (resigned on TAMEL(R=_T=—%F
19 July 2021) +A+NABHTE) v v
INEDs BIUFHTES
Ma Ching Nam L] v v/
Lam Chi Hang Josekin METT v v/
Look Andrew PER v/ v
Type of trainings: HFoliELE
1. Reading materials. 1. BIEMEL o
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HREEIRE g% wiE TIES, g -
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Supply of and Access to Information

Notices of regular Board meetings and draft agendas thereof are made
available to the Directors with sufficient times and at least 14 or 3 days
respectively in advance to encourage the Directors’ involvement. All
Directors have full and timely access to the Management for any
information to enable them to make informed decisions at the Board
meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company ensures that the
regulatory Board procedures are followed.

Relevant members of the Management are usually invited to attend the
Board meetings to promote an effective communication within the
Group. Each Director is authorized to hire external consultants or
experts for independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses to discharge the Director’s responsibilities.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the
attendance records of each Director during the Reporting Period are as
follows:

B AR R EBD

REBEE2H EXeTHeaBSREAER
A2 BIR RR SRS R A R B D 14 S B R ATER
TEE 2REFHTHEEFTEIIMNEERES
3 & B USRS (B MIERE PR 2 EAE
e ARBMARINERREST ST EIEFEE
1@ e

HEAEEENERTESLEESTSSH - UE
EAEBMAZERNEE - SRESERERAIN
EENKERSKBEYEERR - BAALRAR
EIE UBTESEE -

EERZEERENHETE

RBEME EFRB2EEE MEEFOH
RSt R

Meeting attendance/eligible to attend

BEHER SERME
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
=g EREES REZES FHEES BRRKRE
Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai A 13/14 N/AZ i@ A 4/4 N/AT A 11
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie (Note) 2B 1& (KisE) 8/8 N/ATNE N/ANE N/ANE N/ANE
Lee Heung Wing ENEES 14/14 N/ATEH N/ATEHR N/ATNER 1/1
Wong Ka Ki Ada (Note) TRH (M) 5/5 N/ATE A N/AE A N/ANEA N/ANE A
Wong Chi Cheung B 14/14 N/ATNEH N/ATNEHR N/ATER 1/1
Lee Gabriel (Note) TR (ME) 9/9 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/AZNE A 1/1
Non-executive directors  JE#{TES
Luk Kun Shing Ben BEFR 11/14 N/ATEH N/ATEHR N/ATER 11
Dr. Wang Steven Dasong ~ E A&+
(Note) ) 4/4 N/ATE B N/ATNE B N/ATNE 4/4
INEDs BYFHTES
Ma Ching Nam Nt 13/14 2/2 N/A T~ i A 4/4 1/1
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 13/14 2/2 3/4 3/4 1/1
Look Andrew RER 14/14 2/2 4/4 4/4 11

Note: Lu Lyn Wade Leslie was appointed on 23 August 2021. Wong Ka Ki Ada was
appointed on 11 October 2021. Lee Gabriel resigned on 1 October 2021. Dr.

Wang Steven Dasong resigned on 19 July 2021.
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The Board has established three Board committees on 19 February
2016, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee. Each of the aforesaid committees reports to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations. Each committee or
committee member is authorized to hire outside consultants or experts
for independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses to
discharge their responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with its written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision D.3.3 of the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are set out in the
written terms of reference which include reviewing and supervising the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, and providing advices and comments to the Board.
During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Look Andrew as its chairman, and
Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin as its members, all
of whom are INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the Management, the external auditor of the Company and an
external professional engaged by the Company to review the interim
results and report for 2021/2022 and annual results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2022 and the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and to consider significant issues on
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit functions, the scope of work and appointment of external auditor,
connected transactions and arrangements of the Company for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code adopting a model of making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference which include regular
monitoring of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin as
its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew as its
members, all of whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held four
meetings for considering and recommending to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors
and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are set
out in the written terms of reference which include selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, review of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessment of the independence of
INEDs.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Tang as its chairman,
executive Director, and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin and Mr. Look
Andrew as its members, both of whom are INEDs.

Directors’ nomination policy

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from
Board members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members. The factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board member,
diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held four
meetings and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommmendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors with reference to the board diversity policy adopted by the
Company and assessed the independence of INEDs.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond fulfills the
requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and is responsible for,
inter alia, provision of advice to the Board on corporate governance
matters and regulatory compliance during the Reporting Period. Mr.
Siu had taken no less than 15 hours of professional training during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the remuneration paid to KPMG in
respect of the annual audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and non-audit services
which represent tax compliance services and executive research
services amounted to approximately HK$2,880,000 and HK$490,000,
respectively. In addition, HK$1,083,000 was charged by other auditors
for statutory audit of financial statements for certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Save as disclosed above, there was no remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditors of the Company for other non-audit
services during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Board and the Audit Committee were satisfied with KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, of their findings, independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit fees. KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, are proposed for re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2022 to give a true and fair presentation of the financial position of the
Company in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and for timely financial disclosures under the
Listing Rules and any other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement as to the auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report on
pages 109 to 111 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed and being implemented to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Directors and the management would identify any risks associated
with the businesses of the Group by considering both internal and
external factors and events from time to time which include but not limit
to political, economic, technology, environmental, social and human
resources. Two approaches are used for risk identification and
evaluation, which are (1) to identify the root causes of risks, that is,
identify the undesirable events or things that could go wrong and then
identify the potential impacts of each factor and event on the businesses
of the Group; and (2) to identify all the essential functions that the
Group are performing or businesses objectives that the Group are
achieving and then identify all the possible modes by which such
functions might fail to perform. Five strategies are adopted by the
Company to manage risks, including (1) to accept the risk, (2) to avoid
the risk, (3) to transfer the risk, (4) to mitigate the risk, or (5) to exploit
the risk.

The Company has engaged an external professional firm to further its
internal audit function and to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company in respect of the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management for the Reporting Period
and discussed its findings with the Audit Committee and then reported
to the Board. The Board is not aware of any areas of concern that
would have a material impact on the financial position or businesses of
the Group and considers that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company are generally adequate and effective and that
the Company could maintain the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has been implementing a policy within the Group to
ensure that all unpublished inside information of the Group shall be
kept confidential until such information is published on the websites of
the Company at www.echealthcare.com and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk in accordance with
requirements of the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and
regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may deposit at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong as set out below a written requisition which specifies the
transaction of any business at such meeting and is signed by the
requisitionists to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board. However, there are no provision merely
allowing shareholders to put forward new resolution at a general
meeting under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands or the
Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution
may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting following the aforesaid procedures.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office
or at the registered office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at
least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to require an extraordinary general
meeting or propose a person for election as a Director are detailed in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association published on the
websites of the Company at www.echealthcare.com and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.
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The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar serves the
shareholders with respect to all share registration matters. Specific
enquiries of shareholders and other stakeholders to the Board could
be sent in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company by mail to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong set out
below:

EC Healthcare

L50, Langham Place Office Tower,
8 Argyle Street,
Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ rights are further protected when separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including but not limited to election or re-election of individual
director at annual general meeting. All resolutions proposed at
shareholders’ meetings are put to vote by poll in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

In February 2016, the Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy. Under the policy, the Company communicates
with its shareholders and investors through various means. Timely
publication of interim and annual results announcements on the latest
development of the Company and press release on the Company’s
website at www.echealthcare.com and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk could keep the
shareholders updated of the Company’s financial position and latest
development. Shareholders are highly recommended to pay attention
to these public information. Annual general meetings could provide an
effective forum for the shareholders to share their views with the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Directors and the external auditor of the Company would
be available at the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions about the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022 and the business and prospects of the
Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Reporting Period.

Resolutions to amend the Memorandum and Articles of Association will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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eport of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present their report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company is the provision of medical and
healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2022 by businesses including geographical segment information is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The geographical
location of customers is determined based on the location where our
services or goods are provided or delivered.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of the likely
future development in the Group’s business are set out in the sections
headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 7 to 10 and 22 to 47 of this
annual report respectively. Certain financial key performance indicators
which complement and supplement our financial disclosures are set
out on page 2 of this annual report.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

The following highlights some of the key risks that affect our business:

Reputation Risk

We rely significantly on our brand image and reputation. Any failure to
maintain and enhance, or any damage to, our brand image or
reputation could materially and adversely affect the level of market
recognition of, and confidence on our services, and in turn our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
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Talent Risk

If we are unable to attract and retain skilled Registered Practitioners
and other competent staff, our business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Customer Risk

QOur service focuses on improving our customers’ health condition and
physical appearance, and customers have varying expectations of the
magnitude of improvement that may result from our services. If we falil
to properly manage a customer’s expectations of the results from our
services, a customer may in turn be dissatisfied with the results of our
service, and a disappointed customer may, among others, request
refunds, complain to the media and/or the Hong Kong Consumer
Council and file legal claims against us. Such actions from a customer
may have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, and
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes that business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company mainly engaging business in Hong Kong, the
Group is subject to various laws and regulations, including, among
others, Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). The Listing Rules is also applicable to the Company.
Being an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability, it is also subject to the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in more
than one jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in those
jurisdictions. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units in the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief on the
date of this annual report, the Company has complied in all material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that co-owners, talents, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Staff

Our staff members are regarded as one of the most important assets
of the Group. The Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff
with a fair and harmonious workplace. We offer competitive
remuneration packages and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group intends
to grant share options to outstanding employees to recognise and
reward the employees who have contributed to the Group’s
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings
to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company and
our industry, and medical related knowledge and skill sets.

Customers

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. We are
committed to providing the best customer experience to our
customers. Meanwhile, we have a customer phone survey system in
order to further our active solicitation of customer feedback.
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Suppliers

Reliable and quality suppliers are of equal importance in facilitating us
to provide services with high standards of safety and professionalism.
When selecting suppliers, we consider, among other factors, the
suppliers’ reputation, safety record, track record of performance,
quality of goods supplied, price competitiveness, punctuality of
delivery, relationship with our Group, completeness of certification and
credentials provided, service quality and product offerings. We regularly
review and assess our suppliers’ performance and their qualifications
to ensure the quality of our suppliers and that such suppliers have
obtained the applicable licenses (if any), and update our approved
supplier list accordingly.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 280 of this
annual report.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of medical and
healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of 4.2 HK
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2022. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on
or around 20 September 2022 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 6 September
2022 (record date). Details of the dividend for the year ended 31 March
2022 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Board would consider, inter alia, the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividend to the shareholders:

1. financial results of the Company;

2. shareholders’ interests;

3. general business conditions, strategies and future expansion
needs of the Company;

4.  the Company’s capital requirements;

5. the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its
subsidiaries;

6. possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Company; and

7. the amount of profit that can be distributed under applicable
accounting standards and other factors that the Board may
deem relevant and appropriate.

Any dividend shall be declared by the Company in accordance with the
Cayman Islands Companies Law, the Memorandum and Articles of the
Company and other applicable laws and regulations, and shall not
affect the normal operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy, as appropriate, which will
include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy and
approve any amendments thereto if necessary.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and reserves
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands amounted to HK$1,364,063,000 (2021: HK$815,671,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$297,000 (2021: HK$3,344,000).

INDEBTEDNESS

The Group’s indebtedness as at 31 March 2022 is set out on notes 25,
28 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2016 by way of a
written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the Company and the
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for 10 years from the
Listing Date (both dates inclusive).

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme, during
the Reporting Period:

Name or category
of participant

BEAN
ERIRH

Directors
iz

LEE Gabriel
355

LU Lyn Wade Lesie
Ak

LEE Heung Wing

BE

WONG Ka Ki Ada
55

Asat 1 April
2021

R=B=-%
mE-R

5,020,000

735,000

735,000

735,000

100,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

2,500,000

EC Healthcare

Granted Exercised
during the during the
Reporting Reporting

Period Period

REEEE  REEHE
R WA

- (1345000
(Note 1) (H5E1)

10,000,000 -

(Note 20) (Fifz£20)

2,500,000 =

(Note 21) (Ffz£21)

8,000,000 =

(Note 22) (iz22)

Expired
during the
Reporting
Period

REE
HEREN

Cancelled
during the
Reporting

Period

MEE
Lol

Lapsed
during the
Reporting
Period

it
ERERAN

78

Forfeited
during the
Reporting
Period

MEE
HERRK

(3,675,000

(735,000

(735,000

(735,000

BT S

BIBRBERMEE  ARRAR T —RF_A
THAREBARRERE-RROEMAREREK
MBS B ([RERIERT 81)) - M AERt BIR
ETRMEA T FRA(BRERERA) AMMAK

1o

TREERREREARDRRIEBREB)E

I O 2
Date of

As 31 March grant of
2022 share options

it ERE
EfEr={ RHAH
- 26/09/116

- 18/09/17

- 0211018

- 16/1019

10,000,000 2400921

- 1810917

100,000 0211018
1,000,000 1200719
1,000,000 16/1019
2,500,000 16/03/21
2,500,000 011221
8,000,000 011221

Closing price
of share
immediately
before the
date of grant
HK$ per shares
REERY
REARS
LG
BRER

2.56

255

4n

578

10.80

255

4n

708

578

6.5

1200

1200

Exercised period
of share option

BREGGED

01/01/17-31/12/26
(Note 1) (1)

01/01/27-17/09/27
(Note 2) (f3£2)

03/01/28-01/10/28
(Note 10)(Hi5£10)

02/01/29-15/10/29
(Note 15) ¥z 15)

26/09/22-23/09/31
(Note 20 (¥i5£20)

01/01/18-31/12/21
Note 4) (i£4)

02/01/19-01/10/28
(Note 11)(HizE11)

02/01/20-11/07/24
(Note 14)(HizE 14)

16/10/19-15/10/29
(Note 16) (¥i516)

16/03/20-14/03/31
(Note 18) (¥i5£18)

0112/22-30/11/31
(Note 21) (MizE21)

0112/22-30/11/31
(Note 22) (Hi5£22)

Exercise
price of
share options
HKS per share

308

303

489

518

11.60

350

6.00

708

700

6.5

1330

1330
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WONG Chi Cheung 500,000 21/08/18 49 02/01/19-20/08/28
EHE (Note 8)(Fiz8)

1,500,000 = = = = = - 1,500,000 28/11/18 528 02/0119-27/11/28
(Note 12) (Hi&12)
- 450,000 = = = = = 450,000 011221 1200 01/12/22-30/11/31
Note 23) (Hf£23) (Note 23)(Hz23)
INED
BuFuGES
Ma Ching Nam 300,000 - 300,000) = = = = - 21/08/18 549 02/01/19-20/08/28 600
Bl Note 8)(#38) (Note 8)(Ff38)
Employees and
consultants (Note 24)
EERER (i)
In aggregate 500,000 - (500,000) - 4 = s = 18/09/17 255 01/01/18-31/12121 303
a5 (Note 3)(F£3) (Note 3)(Fif3)
185,000 - (155,000) - - 5 S = 18/09/17 255 01/01/18-31/12121 350
(Note 4) (H3t4) (Note 4)(FizE4)
- - - - - - = = 051217 377 0104180412127 400
(Note 5)(Fif5)
- - - - - - - = 24/05/18 592 03/07/18-23/05/28 59
- - - - - - - - 24/05/18 592 02/0119-23/05/28 660
- - - - - - - - 24/05/18 592 02/01/20-23/05/28 790
- - - - - - - - 24/05/18 59 04/01/21-23/05/28 950
(Note 6) (Fi36)
100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 10/07/18 522 020119-3112123 660
(Note 7) (Fi37)
100000 - (50,000) - - - - 50,000 07/09/18 507 02/01/19-06/09/28 600
(Note 9) (#3t9) (Note 9)(Fi50)
482500 - (190,000) - - - 2500 290,000 02/10/18 471 0201190110128 600
Note 11) (Hz11) (Note 11) (3£ 11)
95,000 - - - - - - 95,000 /118 528 020119-27/11/28 600
(Note 12) (H£12)
150,000 - - - - - - 150,000 0200719 600 02/01/20-01/07/23 600
(Note 13) (£13)
150,000 = (50,000) - - - - 100,000 05/03/20 499 05/03/20-07/11/29 600
(Note 17)(Hi£17) (Note 17) (3£ 17)
= 380,000 - - - - - 380,000 29/07/21 1232 29/07/21-28/07/31 1246
(Note 19) Btz 19) (Note 19) (P 19)

15,857,500 21,330,000 (2,590,000 - -

(5,882,500 28,715,000
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Notes:
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The Total of 7,350,000 share options shall be execisable in ten equal tranches
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026. The weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$14.36.

The Total of 735,000 share options shall be execisable in one tranche from 1
January 2027 to 17 September 2027.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be execisable in four equal
tranches from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021. The weighted average
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$11.89.

The Total of 860,000 share options shall be execisable in four equal tranches
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021. The weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$12.08.

The Total of 300,000 share options shall be execisable in three equal tranches
from 1 April 2018 to 4 December 2027.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be execisable in four tranches from
3 July 2018 to 23 May 2028.

The Total of 100,000 share options, shall be execisable in five equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2023.

The Total of 800,000 share options shall be execisable in four tranches from 2
January 2019 to 20 August 2028. The weighted average closing price of the
Shares immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$13.80.

The Total of 100,000 share options shall be execisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 6 September 2028. The weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$11.30.

The Total of 735,000 share options shall be execisable in one tranche from 3
January 2028 to 1 October 2028.

The Total of 840,000 share options shall be execisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 1 October 2028. The weighted average closing price
of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$11.30.

The Total of 1,620,000 share options, shall be execisable in seven tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 27 November 2028.
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The Total of 150,000 share options shall be execisable in three equal tranches
from 2 January 2020 to 1 July 2023.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be execisable in four equal
tranches from 2 January 2020 to 11 July 2024.

The Total of 735,000 share options shall be execisable in one tranche from 2
January 2029 to 15 October 2029.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be execisable in five tranches from
16 October 2019 to 15 October 2029.

The Total of 150,000 share options shall be execisable in one tranche from 5
March 2020 to 7 November 2029. The weighted average closing price of the
Shares immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$11.30.

The Total of 2,500,000 share options shall be execisable in eight tranches
from 15 March 2022 to 14 March 2031.

The Total of 380,000 share options shall be execisable in four tranches from
29 July 2021 to 28 July 2031. The estimated fair value per share was
HK$4.65, totalling HK$1,767,000.

The Total of 10,000,000 share options shall be execisable in ten tranches from
26 September 2022 July 2021 to 23 September 2031. The estimated fair
value per share was HK$5.44, totalling HK$54,400,000.

The Total of 2,500,000 share options shall be execisable in four tranches from
1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031. The estimated fair value per share
was HK$5.84, totalling HK$14,600,000.

The Total of 8,000,000 share options shall be execisable in five tranches from
1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031. The estimated fair value per share
was HK$5.85, totalling HK$46,800,000.

The Total of 450,000 share options shall be execisable in nine tranches from 1
December 2022 to 30 November 2031. The estimated fair value per share

was HK$5.81, totalling HK$2,614,500.

All grantees in this category are employees or staff of the Group.
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Additional information in relation to the share options under the Share H= —FZA=+—HILFEEBERE
Option Scheme in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021: aJr%JIET,E%Hx% KR ER -

A. Share Options Granted during the year ended 31 A BE-E-_—F=A=+t—HL#F
March 2021 ERTFHEBRE

Executive Directors HTES

Lee Heung Wing FRI% 15/03/21 2,500,000 6.55 3.08 7,700,000
B. Share Options Exercised during the year ended B. 82— -_—f=A=+—HL#F

31 March 2021 ERITEREERRE

Executive Directors HITER
LEE Gabriel FER 1,950,000 3.03 453
LEE Heung Wing EEES 100,000 3.50 5.70
Sub-total Nt 2,050,000
Employees EE 145,000 3.03 5.79
60,000 350 5.48
42,500 6.00 7.46
Sub-total Nt 247,500
a0%.L. e 2,297,500
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Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for the
Grantees (as defined below) for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-time or
part-time employees, potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers, clients, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, has contributed
or will contribute to the development, growth or benefit of the Group
(collectively, the “Eligible Participants” or “Grantees”) and whom the Board
may in its absolute discretion select.

Maximum Number of shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date, which is
98,000,000 shares, being 9.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The limit may be refreshed
at any time provided that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option Scheme, the
maximum limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of our Company must
not in aggregate exceed such number of shares which represent 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of our Company or subsidiaries if such grant will result in this
30% limit being exceeded.
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Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the grant of
share options to the Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders,
unless approved by the shareholders at general meeting in the manner
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the maximum entitiement of each Eligible
Participant is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding options granted and to be granted to such
Grantee (including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the Group in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of grant.

Option Period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to be
notified by the Board, provided no option period shall exceed 10 years.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be held
before it is Exercised

There is no requirement of minimum period for which an Option must
be held before exercise under the Share Option Scheme. The period
within which an option may be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, provided
that such period is consistent with any other terms and condition of the
Share Option Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the Share Option Scheme set
out in the offer document from time to time.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer; and (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of a
share.
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The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both dates inclusive), i.e. 10 March 2026, unless otherwise terminated
earlier.

Share options granted other than those under Share
Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in connection with the
acquisition of additional 24% equity interest in Hong Kong Pain and
Wellness Solution Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, during the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group issued
warrants which allow the sellers to subscribe an aggregate number of
10,000,000 shares of the Company within 1-5 years at an exercise
price of HK$4.20. The warrants would vest in stages in 5 years
following the completion of the acquisition, 2,000,000 shares were
allotted and issued upon exercise of the relevant warrants during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2022, the warrants granted to the sellers had a
remaining contractual life of 3.4 years.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 27 June 2016 with a summary of the Share Award
Scheme rules published in the announcement dated 29 June 2016. On
30 September 2016, the Company entered into a deed of variation to
the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Deed of Variation”) to
make certain changes to the said trust deed, to the effect that as from
30 September 2016, all core connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company be excluded from participating in the
Share Award Scheme. Under the Share Award Scheme, the Group’s
employees, selected by the Board are entitled to participate.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group.
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The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the Board
and the independent trustee in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from the date of adoption
for 10 years or such date of early termination as determined by the
Board, provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting
right of any eligible persons selected for participation in the Share
Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. As at 31 March 2020, all awarded shares
granted were forfeited. During the Reporting Period, no awarded
shares were granted.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

TANG Chi Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

LU Lyn Wade Leslie (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 23 August 2021)

LEE Heung Wing (Chief Financial Officer)

WONG Ka Ki Ada (Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Investment Officer)
(appointed on 11 October 2021)

WONG Chi Cheung (Chief Digital Officer)

LEE Gabiriel (Chief Operating Officer) (resigned on 1 October 2021)

Non-Executive Directors

LUK Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)
Dr. WANG Steven Dasong (resigned on 19 July 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

MA Ching Nam
LOOK Andrew
LAM Chi Hang Josekin
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors against any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 11 to 21 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed below or in this annual report, there has been no
change in information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Dr. Wang Steven Dasong resigned as a non-executive Director with
effect from 19 July 2021.

Mr. Lu Lyn Wade Leslie was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 23 August 2021.

Mr. Lee Gabriel resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1
October 2021.

Ms. Wong Ka Ki Ada was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 11 October 2021.

Mr. Look Andrew was appointed as an independent non-executive

Director of L.K. Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 00558) with
effect from 1 April 2022.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. After review by the
Nomination Committee, the Company considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent during the
Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors and
the five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March 2022 is
set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract or a letter of appointment with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

On 21 February 2020, the Board approved the conditional adoption of
the Co-Ownership Plan. The Co-Ownership Plan was approved by the
Shareholders at the EGM on 16 April 2020. Capitalized terms used
herein in connection with the Co-Ownership Plan shall have the same
meanings as ascribed to them in the circular of the Company dated 31
March 2020. For details of the Co-Ownership Plan, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 31 March 2020. Under the Co-
Ownership Plan and as of 31 March 2020:

(i) Mr. Lee Heung Wing and Mr. Wong Chi Cheung, each an
executive Director and an Eligible Participant, accepted
HK$2,024,298 and HK$2,000,000, respectively, as Investment
Amounts under the Co-Ownership Plan.

(i)  The Plan Trustees may satisfy the settlement of the grant of
Award Shares to the relevant Grantee by means of purchasing
such Shares held by the Connected Sellers, i.e. Mr. Tang Chi Fai
(an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company) and Mr. Lee Gabriel (an executive Director).

Save as disclosed above and in this annual report, no Director or his
connected entity had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the Reporting Period and required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts” above and elsewhere in this
annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group’s business in which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of the
controlling shareholder’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, save for the competing businesses as
disclosed below, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
other than the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang was interested in a
company which is not included in the Group (the “Relevant Company”).

Name of the
Relevant Company Nature of business
HELRER ERHE Exg
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited Supply of skincare and Mr. Tang
(“Healthy Concept”) (note 1) beauty products/
Operation of call centre
(note 2)

Healthy Concept (HK) Limited &R S #1E R E=RER, Bt

)

Board of Directors

EERHRFERBHESR

RBEMEAR - BT XRBENSFEBI  HE
EENERIMBEEREERB BRI EREK
BRENER (BRAEEIN) PHAEMNER XA
RIE ETRAIE 810 RMRE T AKE -

RAERAH - B ERETEH AR LA A
(TERBA 7)) R A M2 -

Size of business

ERHRE

Revenue in 2021: less than
HK$5.1 million

Net profit in 2021: less than
HK$3.4 million (note 3)

ZTZZ—FIRAC

([Healthy Concept ) EETE L () LREABEBT
(B3E1) ZEZ—FFEEH
LR3.A4EEST (MFES)
Notes: Bt 5E
1. Healthy Concept is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong 1. Healthy Concept 2 —FRR —EE X XFRHA =+ /<H
with limited liability on 26 May 2006, and is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang. BEREBEOTMAIOBRAREABEELE
A -

2. Healthy Concept operates its business in Hong Kong. Its target customers in
respect of the supply of skincare and beauty products are primarily aesthetic
medical or traditional beauty service providers. Separately, it also operates a
call centre which targets individual customers. The personnel of the call centre
contact individual customers and refer them to the providers of body
screening services, beauty products and beauty services, respectively, for
referral income. However, Healthy Concept does not provide any aesthetic
medical or traditional beauty services, nor body screening services.

3. The figures are determined by reference to the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021 of the Relevant Company.

The Group offers a broad range of services and products, including
medical services, aesthetic medical services, beauty and wellness
services, skincare, healthcare and beauty products, primarily of private-
label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Swissline, Suissebeaute and
re:HEALTH. The Group does not focus on mass market retailing of
products and substantially all skincare, healthcare and beauty products
are sold to the customers of the Group’s services.
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2. Healthy Concept £ &84 & X7 - BB EE
EREAEGNEERFIEABEXAUERE
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DREN FE SR - EREMMEDRGEES
LAEERE N UL A » 2ATM » Healthy Concept 3 £ 12 fft
B BEAREREDRF GRS R -

3. HFELEZRBARNBE_T-_—F=A=+—H
I FRE 2 EEZIBHMRETE

AEBEREEZHRELESR  BDEBERY
EERBERY  EARBLERE - #E - RER
ERAER FEZREEBXRaRBRER=2H.
Swissline + ¥ 8 # & re:HEALTH ° 7K & B3 &
PFEERRAZMSEE  HRAFHEE#
B REREDERHEETFTAEERBHES -
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The Directors are of the view that the Group’s business activities are
clearly delineated from that of the Relevant Company, since the Group
does not focus on the supply and distribution of medical consumables,
devices and equipment, or skincare, healthcare and beauty products.
Instead, the Group only focuses on (i) applying medical consumables,
devices and equipment during the course of provision of services; and
(i) selling skincare, healthcare and beauty products to the customers of
the Group’s services. In contrast, the Relevant Company focuses on
the supply and distribution of such goods to aesthetic medical service
providers and traditional beauty service providers in Hong Kong.
Furthermore, the Relevant Company does not supply and distribute
any skincare, healthcare and beauty products of the Group’s private-
label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Swissline, Suissebeaute and
re:HEALTH.

In light the above, the Directors are of the view that the businesses
conducted by the Relevant Company do not form part of, and are not
in line with, the core business of the Group, and as such, do not
compete and are unlikely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business.

Deed of Non-competition

As disclosed in the Prospectus, pursuant to the non-competition
undertakings set out in the deed of non-competition dated 19 February
2016, each of Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding Limited
(“Union Medical Care”), our controlling shareholders, have undertaken
to the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) that,
amongst other things, each of them is not or will not, and will procure
each of their respective close associates not to, to be interested,
involved or engaged in or concerned with, directly or indirectly, any
business which is in any respect in competition with or similar to or is
likely to be in competition with the business of the Group during the
period commencing from the Listing Date and ending on the
occurrence of the earliest of (i) the day on which its shares cease to be
listed on the Stock Exchange or other recognised stock exchange; (ii)
the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical Care cease to be
controlling shareholder(s) of the Company; and (iii) the day on which
Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical Care beneficially own or are interested
in all the issued ordinary shares of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-competition and are of the view that
the controlling shareholders have complied with its undertakings given
under the deed of non-competition for the year ended 31 March 2022.
As at 31 March 2022, no new business opportunity has been notified
by the controlling shareholders.

BERRER 91

EERAAEENER B EEMARNERE
RS S EAREEWES FRHER D IH
BEREM  ERRERE NEERE RERE
RER - AR - AEE R BFR () EREREH
BAEPERAEEREM  ERREE Ri)AARE
ERFSEFPLE#EE REREDEM - B2 Y
b AR R ERABE BN E S ERRGREE
ERERERARBIREEHEER D HEEZEEM °
gEoh - AR EER D HASEE B R Mg
=R 2 - Swissline © 3% HT HE & re:HEALTH Y (£
S RERERER °

EREXL - EFERR - HERRFRER
TERAEEZORBEHN—82 BRBZLEBN
—0 At WEH A TAFRREHAEBRER
BREEREESRS -

THFRE

BMINBREREE  REBHA-ZT—XRF=
BTN B THRFZIEFHES N5 F RS B
% 4 I & % B% % Union Medical Care Holding
Limited ([ Union Medical Care) & & & 6] A& 2 7
(BEARGRARREMBAR) &HE(EPEE)
BESETERETE @ WHEFERSSERH
AT EERBEE UL RN FE - S2Ep)E
YOS R A EEARE B EEEKFEF A
BB BRENEMER - NE LT HRERET
PR PEAEHEANERMTBHRE ATk E
MERMEBEHFRZGEMZA (i) BBEER K
Union Medical Care T~ &R R EERRR 2 B
N (iii) B 4 4= K2 8k Union Medical Care & 25 A
RARZHEBITEBRINEF R ESEH ©

BYFRTESCEHNTRFZENZEBR -
WRRBERRRERNBE_ZE__F=A=+—
BLEFEETENTHRFZE M THAR -
“E-HF=R=+—H ZERERILEDEE
TR EBEE -

FEW®RSE 2021/22



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Independence from the controlling shareholders

The Board believes that the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independent of, and does not place undue reliance on, Mr.
Tang and/or Union Medical Care or their respective close associates,
taking into consideration the factors of financial independence,
operational independence and management independence when the
facts and reasons as disclosed in the Prospectus applied to the Group
during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFO”)), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or (b) as recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or (c) otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
were as follows:
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Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

61.26%

Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 721,927,610 (L)

Tang Chi Fai

BEE interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
EnAA  EEREMRZES (GE))
EE R R
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie Beneficial owner = 10,000,000 0.85%
= Bk E BEnEAA (Note 3)
(HH3E3)
Lee Heung Wing Beneficial owner 680,500 (L) 7,100,000 (L) 0.66%
=S EREEA (Note 4)
(HisE4)
Wong Ka Ki Ada Beneficial owner = 8,000,000 0.68%
TXH EREAA (Note 5)
(FzE5)
Wong Chi Cheung Beneficial owner 476,624 (L) 2,450,000 (L) 0.25%
BEE BEnEAA (Note 6)
(H3E6)
Luk Kun Shing Ben Beneficial owner 2,822,992 (L) - 0.24%
R EnEAA
Lam Chi Hang Josekin  Beneficial owner 100,000 (L) = 0.01%
AT EnEAA
Ma Ching Nam Beneficial owner 300,000 (L) - 0.03%
SEm BExEAA
Note: BiE
L denotes long position. L &R ©
1. Total number of issued shares as at 31 March 2022 was 1,178,372,267. 1. RZTZZF=ZA=+—"HNEBITROLEAR

1,178,372,267 % °
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Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding Limited (“Union Medical Care”) are
the controlling shareholders of the Company. Union Medical Care is entirely
owned by Mr. Tang. Out of 721,927,610 shares that Mr. Tang was interested
in, (i) 3,904,000 shares were held by Ms. Yau Ming Li, the spouse of Mr. Tang,
and (i) 712,620,610 shares were held by Union Medical Care and Mr. Tang
was therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,904,000 shares and
712,620,610 shares under Part XV of SFO.

10,000,000 share options (with their exercise period) include (i) 1,000,000
share options (26 September 2022 to 23 September 2031); (i) 1,000,000
share options (25 September 2023 to 23 September 2031); (i) 1,000,000
share options (24 September 2024 to 23 September 2031); (iv) 1,000,000
share options (24 September 2025 to 23 September 2031); (v) 1,000,000
share options (24 September 2026 to 23 September 2031); (vi) 500,000 share
options (24 September 2027 to 23 September 2031); (vi) 500,000 share
options (25 September 2028 to 23 September 2031); (viii) 500,000 share
options (24 September 2029 to 23 September 2031) (ix) 500,000 share
options (24 September 2030 to 23 September 2031); (x) 500,000 share
options exercisable on 23 September 2031.

7,100,000 share options (with their exercise period) include (i) 25,000 share
options (2 January 2019 to 1 October 2028); (ii) 25,000 share options (2
January 2020 to 1 October 2028); (i) 25,000 share options (4 January 2021
to 1 October 2028); (iv) 25,000 share options (3 January 2022 to 1 October
2028); (v) 250,000 share options (2 January 2020 to 11 July 2024); (vi)
250,000 share options (4 January 2021 to 11 July 2024); (vii) 250,000 share
options (3 January 2022 to 11 July 2024); (vii) 250,000 share options (2
January 2023 to 11 July 2024); (ix) 200,000 share options (11 October 2019
to 15 October 2029); (x) 50,000 share options (4 January 2021 to 15 October
2029); (xi) 100,000 share options (3 January 2022 to 15 October 2029); (xii)
150,000 share options (2 January 2023 to 15 October 2029); (xiii) 500,000
share options (2 January 2024 to 15 October 2029); (xiv) 312,500 share
options (15 March 2022 to 14 March 2031); (xv) 312,500 share options (15
March 2023 to 14 March 2031); (xvi) 312,500 share options (15 March 2024
to 14 March 2031); (xvii) 312,500 share options (15 March 2025 to 14 March
2031); (xviii) 312,500 share options (15 March 2026 to 14 March 2031); (xix)
312,500 share options (15 March 2027 to 14 March 2031); (xx) 312,500 share
options (15 March 2028 to 14 March 2031); (xxi) 312,500 share options (15
March 2029 to 14 March 2031); (xxii) 625,000 share options (1 December
2022 to 30 November 2031); (xxii) 625,000 share options (1 December 2023
to 30 November 2031); (xxiv) 625,000 share options (1 December 2024 to 30
November 2031); (xxv) 625,000 share options (1 December 2025 to 30
November 2031).
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8,000,000 share options (with their exercise period) include (i) 1,600,000 share
option (1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031); (i) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2023 to 30 November 2031); (iii) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2024 to 30 November 2031); (iv) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2025 to 30 November 2031); (v) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2026 to 30 November 2031).

2,450,000 share options (with their exercise period) include () 125,000 share
options (2 January 2019 to 20 August 2028); (ii) 125,000 share options (2
January 2020 to 20 August 2028); (i) 125,000 share options (4 January 2021
to 20 August 2028); (iv) 125,000 share options (3 January 2022 to 20 August
2028); (v) 100,000 share options (2 January 2020 to 27 November 2028); (vi)
200,000 share options (4 January 2021 to 27 November 2028); (vii) 400,000
share options (3 January 2022 to 27 November 2028); (viii) 400,000 share
options (2 January 2023 to 27 November 2028); (ix) 300,000 share options (2
January 2024 to 27 November 2028); (x) 100,000 share options (2 January
2025 to 27 November 2028); (xi) 500,000 share options (1 December 2022 to
30 November 2031); (xii) 500,000 share options (1 December 2023 to 30
November 2031); (xiii) 500,000 share options (1 December 2024 to 30
November 2031); (xiv) 500,000 share options (1 December 2025 to 30
November 2031); (xv) 500,000 share options (1 December 2026 to 30
November 2031); (xvi) 500,000 share options (1 December 2027 to 30
November 2031); (xvii) 500,000 share options (1 December 2028 to 30
November 2031); (xviii) 500,000 share options (1 December 2029 to 30
November 2031); (xix) 500,000 share options (1 December 2030 to 30
November 2031).
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Interest in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporation(s) of the Company

Eé%’&ﬂ*ﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁ Y IR 43 K AR B AR 40 Y
=

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Number of  the total issued
shares underlying share capital
Name of Name of interested in shares held of the
Director/Chief associated the associated under equity associated
Executive corporation Capacity corporation derivatives corporation
DRASTETA 1EHEBEE 2
REBEBHES FHAEKME BRITRAN
EE FETRAEHS HEEEEE 5% EENRGHE RGEE BABDL
Tang Chi Fai Union Medical Care Beneficial owner 2 - 100%
e Holding Limited ~ EZHA A (Note 1) (FitsE1)
Note: B
L denotes long position. L EIf R
1. The 2 shares in which Mr. Tang was interested in were ordinary shares of 1. B 4 4 4G e 2 1) 5% 2 AR BR 19 2 Union Mediical Care

Union Medical Care.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to
any Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, other than interests disclosed above in respect
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company, the following
persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Union Medical Care (Note 2) Beneficial owner 712,620,610 (L) 60.47%
Union Medical Care (Ki5£2) EnEAA
Yau Ming Li (Note 3) Beneficial owner and 721,927,610 (L) 61.26%
interest of spouse
ERRA A (B 5E3) BB AR EER
Notes: BeE -
(L)  Denotes as long position. n EFR-
1. Total number of issued shares as at 31 March 2022 was 1,178,372,267. 1. RZFB-__F=ZA=+-BHEBRTRHAHAR

1,178,372,267 f% °

2. Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the controlling shareholders of the 2. EBSEA4 K Union Medical Care 782 AH AR AR -
Company. Union Medical Care is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang. Union Medical Care B &850 £ 2 A A

3. Out of the 721,927,610 shares, (i) 3,904,000 shares were held by Ms. Yau 3. 721,927,610 7 & - () BF % £ ¥ % 3,904,000
and (i) 718,023,610 shares were held/deemed to be held by Mr. Tang, the BB tmEBSEERE BRERE
spouse of Ms. Yau, and Ms. Yau was therefore deemed to be interested in the 718,023,610/% + E it - RIFE 77 R HIE (FHIEXV
shares of the Company in which Mr. Tang was interested under Part XV of the B BB AR R AR A RENARFRN
SFO. PR o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors have not BEXHEEN W_TE-_—_F#=ZA=+—8 "

been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief EFVEANBEMAL(BEFREARARSTH
executives of the Company) who had interests or short position in the ANBBRIN AR B B SRR T A RE
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register Er LT GDIZE3361KETENELREMATR
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. BEERTOAR ©
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save and except the Share Option Scheme, the Share Award Scheme
and the Co-Ownership Plan, at no time during or at the end of the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed approximately 2,674 (31
March 2021: 2,323) permanent employees (excluding Registered
Practitioners) in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented directors and employees
by offering them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries
and bonuses were determined with reference to their duties, work
experience, performance and prevailing market practices. The Group
also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme in
Hong Kong, and provides employees with medical insurance coverage.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years. The MPF contributions charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent the contributions payable to the
funds by the Group. A Share Option Scheme, the Co-Ownership Plan
and a share award scheme are in place to reward individual employees
for their outstanding performance and contribution to the success of
the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. None of these
transactions is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float of the
Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of revenue
or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented
less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any direct/indirect interest in these major
suppliers or customers during the year ended 31 March 2022.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares
of the Company.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The Company has changed its company name from “Union Medical
Healthcare Limited” to “EC Healthcare”. Such change was approved
by the Shareholders by way of special resolutions during the
extraordinary general meeting held on 25 March 2021. The new
company name was approved by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman lIslands and the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name was issued on 26 March 2021. The Certificate of Registration of
Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 20 April 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance report is set out on pages 59 to 71 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is in the process of preparing its environmental, social and
governance report for the year ended 31 March 2022 and will publish it
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website in due
course.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD

Subscription of 30% shareholding interest in Creative
Profit Development Limited and Potential Lease

On 5 June 2022, Healthy Cameron Property Limited (“Healthy
Cameron”), and Union (Group) Investment Limited (“Union Group”),
both being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant
to which Healthy Cameron conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
Creative Profit Development Limited (the “JV Company”) conditionally
agreed to allot and issue to Healthy Cameron, 7,200 ordinary shares in
the JV Company (the “Subscription Shares”), which will represent 30%
of the total enlarged issued share capital of the JV Company
immediately after the closing of the subscription of the Subscription
Shares (the “Closing”). Union Group has agreed to guarantee the
performance by Healthy Cameron of certain obligations under the
Subscription Agreement.

Under the Subscription Agreement, the Group (including Healthy
Cameron) shall invest up to HK$275,000,000.00 to the JV Company.
The JV Company is a joint venture company established by the existing
shareholders of the JV Company for the purpose of the development,
management and operation of the building to be constructed on the
combined sites of the land parcels located Cameron Road and
Granville Circuit, Tsim Sha Tsui (the “Building”). The JV Company
currently owns and possesses the title to the parcels of land together
with the existing buildings erected thereon and intends to re-develop
the same into the Building with an estimated lettable floor area of
approximately 103,000 square feets mainly for medical centre and
other clinical use.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, Healthy Cameron Op (HK)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has also
undertaken to lease all of the floor areas of the for an initial term of 5
years following completion of the development of the Building.

As at the date of this report, Closing has not yet taken place.

The aforesaid transactions constitute discloseable transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules. For further details of the Subscription
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6

June 2022.

Save as disclosed above or in this report, as of the date hereof, there
was no significant event affecting the Group after 31 March 2022.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been
audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
EC Healthcare
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EC
Healthcare (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 112 to 273, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2022, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Provision of services

Refer to notes 5 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

Revenue mainly comprises income from the provision of medical,
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services.
WAFZEBFERHEER Z28E  ZRRBERBHBA -

Revenue is recognised when the related services are provided to
customers.
WARBR RIS IR TR PRER

Certain services provided by the Group are sold on a prepaid basis.
Payments received for prepaid packages are initially recorded as
deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the time of receipt. The service period for a prepaid package is
generally one year.

ERERENE TRBRBEMNEELE - B RBTENEZRER KD
R RERE M BEARRRARIERTEWA - ENEZOREEH KR
_f'g °

Prepaid packages are non-refundable and customers may not utilise
all of their contracted rights within the service period. Such unutilised
services are referred to as “breakage”. An expected amount of
breakage is estimated by management based on historical
experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern
of services provided to customers.

BNERTREREFRBRSHAARENERE 2 IELEF - 48
B AR RR TS 85 [ R AOMER ] - FEERREAOERN S EHE
BERBBELRG RIZRHTEPORBEX L OIHRBBA -

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the contractual service

period is fully recognised in profit or loss.
& KBRS B R B (AT R BR AR FE YR A A 18 2 M AR BUFERR ©
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN FNMAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition

of revenue from the provision of services during

the year included the following:

HMIVE R ek F Ak 8 R ERBFH A
R BFEWNTEIE:

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over revenue recognition;

o R AR E E A8
B R EE DRI

° inspecting, on a sample basis, sales
contracts and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the recognition
of revenue with reference to the terms set
out in the sales contracts and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o 2EHESVMANIETRIRITE %R
BWHRE  MERERHEESNNTHERERE
HIMAERNGEIE

° inspecting, on a sample basis, cash
receipts from customers during the year
and comparing such receipts with
relevant details in sales contracts entered
into during the year;

s WMEREBRFARBEFPHBESUK - A
ZEWREFERNTIAHE SN NEA
TBEVELLE

° comparing, on a sample basis,
customers’ signed acceptance of services
provided with the customers’ utilisation

records;
o LR R FEPTIRMHARBS R TH e
BE B
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of services
as a key audit matter because (1) revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific targets; and (2) the estimation of
the utilisation pattern of services is inherently subjective and requires
significant judgement and estimation which increase the risk of error
or potential management bias.

B RBWARE R —HBREBFEE - DE)KAE BEX£EH
RERBIBE— - Bt —HEERREE R E R E KO TR K A
FIRTEN  RQBRBEAREKOEARE LBEFEMRFEET
BARHE KA SN THERIEEERER L ORR
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN FSTNMAEREZEE

recalculating, on a sample basis, the
revenue recognised for services provided
during the year with reference to the
terms as set out in the sales contracts;
2EHESNMEANIET  BHERBEEER
PR (AR A Y MR

analysing the Group’s historical data for
utilisation of prepaid packages and the
current year’s revenue recognised for
services provided to re-perform the
calculation of the breakage amount for
the current year; comparing our results
with the actual figures recorded by the
Group and investigating unusual items or
trends and assessing whether or not
there was an indication of management
bias;

o BRERBANERCABEANBE
BB RAFERIREREERABA - A
BENAERFEREAOENSRE S HH
MEERE B5XETHNERETEL
B UHAEEFHEBABERTAGLES
ERERALNTR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
residual deferred revenue had been
recognised in profit or loss at the end of
the contractual service period; and

MR E RSB R AT ERE L RES B
ARERAER K&

inspecting underlying documentation for
journal entries relating to revenue and
deferred revenue which were considered
to meet specified risk-based criteria.
BRI RRIEWAE @B/ & 5 ERR
TR e ABR 4 82RO ME R S ©
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Accounting for business acquisitions

Refer to note 33 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BEREFER

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group completed a
number of business acquisitions for an aggregate consideration of
HK$404 million.
BHE-ZT-__F=A=+—RIEFERN - BEXE
BHETHE TEBUKE -

TRABREL04H

Goodwill arising from these acquisitions amounted to HK$232
million, which represented the excess of the consideration paid over
the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets,
including the intangible assets amounting to HK$251 million, of the
acquired businesses.
HZEWEEESRNEEE28E 8 DEENRERZLE &
EEFMEEBEBITHEEFENRTE(RIEEFEES1 B ES
7T) BE S

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in
these transactions were primarily assessed by the directors based
on independent valuations prepared by firms of external valuers
which required the exercise of significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to the forecast of future performance of the
entities acquired.
ZERXSGTEBARMNEERABNATEEERASTERBEINEELE
BT B B R EETTAE - EREETERAE LG LEE
FHEBERNARRKRRIDUSTE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RMPESTNMMEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting
for business acquisitions included the following:

BFIETIRF 2

BREESGEEE S0k

2 BN R

inspecting the sale and purchase
agreements and evaluating
management’s accounting treatment for
the acquisitions (including segregation of
amounts from the consideration payable
related to transactions other than the
business acquisitions) with reference to
the terms set out in the sale and purchase
agreements and the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
EREEDE  U2EEBE R E
FRBITE A ERRRE L ERE I
BEENSERIE (PSRRI
WX H5EBRERRESESH)
obtaining and inspecting the valuation
assessments prepared by the external
valuers engaged by the directors and on
which the directors’ assessment of the
fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired was based and assessing
whether or not there was indication of
management bias;
RISWERBEFMIBINSLEMRESN
BENL  ESERNZSEENE - HE
EBEELRBENATE  LFHES
ERERALTR

assessing the external valuers’
qualifications, experience and expertise in
the assets being valued and considering
their objectivity;

b NS L ER ) B AR ~ ASBR R AT AT A
BEMMH - WEEEREHME
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

We identified the accounting for business acquisitions as a key audit
matter because of the significant impact the acquisitions have on
the consolidated financial statements and because assessing the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired can be inherently
subjective and requires significant judgement and estimation which
increase the risk of error or potential management bias.

B EBRENSTREE A —BHBRESFE - DEKEERY
FEMBRERNEAZENREAREBEERBBRAFENTEARE
BEXHMRFEZETERAE A - EEMTHERIEEEEER
ReyREk o
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RPN FSTNMAEREZEE

with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists, discussing with the
external valuers, without the presence of
management, the valuation
methodologies adopted in assessing the
fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired, including intangible assets, and
challenging the assumptions and critical
judgements which impacted their
valuation;
ERMOABHEZRKEHE T - EINE
HEMT® (EERETESHNBERT)E
EREE(BREEVEE) RABATEF
A EPTERMANEER L WEATER
HEM R R EAHE

with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists, assessing the
valuation methodologies adopted by the
external valuers with reference to industry
standards and the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
ERMOASEEEROHT - 2E17
FRERBITEERNBRE - FHEINE
BT AR R E RS

evaluating management’s assessment of
the estimated useful life of the intangible
assets with reference to future operating
plans and our knowledge of the related
industry; and
DERKLLE B RRBERMEEAITE
WTE A EREEFREMEEMA
RERMTE : &

assessing the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in
respect of the acquisitions with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
DERITEALRNNRTE - LGRS HB
WMERAEBRESIENRE -
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BERRER 109

REMR B RSN BERREBNERE

BMMBER  RESAMBRREBESAFTHE
MR EFFERMERNERERLISA R
RE - WHABSERMERNZBRENHRE - HF
EMEBARRE o BRULASN - TR HRE R A
REEMAE - RPBTRABRENAR - H{E
AEMALTBEHAREREE -

BERERBKFORE - BETERERR(E
AEEADETHESN  EX - EAERRKRL
TRPERS AL IR o $H AR IR 7T LA F HRFF S8R 3R 5
£ mMREEBHEMERELRRATRETE
RAMEHRERERBMEHRRAEDOLE
RTE - AIEBREERR R TR AR AEE K ©

ERB(EAZNEUDETETBETS » H
BRTERAE RETEXRREE - M
DI

o BAIMFHEBRRFFERERMEH R M
BRRFEEABREANER - Rt R
WITEAETUREELRAR - A RER
FEMBEENEAEE  EREMEREY
At - ARSI NER BE &
BER - ERRL - SOEBERAIESIZ
£ FibRBEEIRA G MG E AR
AR R RS R R BE IR R SRR T G 2
M E A SRR AR -

o THRERFTHEBOAMES  URTEE

MEHIZF BEMLIFE BEEERI
ZHIMBRIEERER -

s HEEEMRASHERENREMEREL
SRR REN SR -

FERE 2021/22



Independent Auditor's Report
PERVE R IR

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report
B Az B S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

AN

P17 | gy

0 N\ 7/
8 7m 7

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE—ZT——

FZRA=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ITFT)
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHT
REVENUE WA 5 2,919,500 2,080,403
Other net income and gains H U A RIS EEE 6 46,245 104,935
Cost of inventories and consumables FEREMKA (349,603) (235,317)
Registered practitioner expenses EfMEARS (655,852) (448,660)
Employee benefit expenses EERAFZ (728,631) (580,383)
Marketing and advertising expenses TIgHERESRAX (139,383) (109,381)
Rental and related expenses He RIEERX (61,066) (47,504)
Depreciation-right-of-use assets ME—[FTREEE (264,955) (200,348)
Depreciation-owned property, plant WE—BEVE  BENMKE
and equipment (96,031) (77,547)
Amortisation of intangible assets A (71,379) (31,968)
Charitable donations BERE (297) (3,344)
Finance costs BA R AR A 7 (48,907) (23,648)
Credit card expenses ERFAX (64,922) (49,313)
Administrative and other expenses TR EMFAES 8 (162,640) (117,016)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures 514 4 25 FIRE R (1,821) 4,987
Share of profit of an associate Db — R & D RLE A 1,153 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A= R 8 321,411 265,896
Income tax BT1SH 11(8) (50,908) (40,303)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 270,503 225,593
Attributable to: AT & IERE
Equity shareholders of the Company AR ERAR R 197,501 192,865
Non-controlling interests IEVERR 73,002 32,728
270,503 225,593
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE SRER 12
Attributable to equity shareholders RR BRI RIEG
of the Company
Basic AR 17.1 18.8
Diluted s 16.8 18.7

The notes on pages 120 to 273 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note

29(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEmREMEER SR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HE-ZT_-_—F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA& T 17)

2022 2021
—E-= — =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET AT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 270,503 225,593
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEKE
FOR THE YEAR
ltem that may be reclassified HigrnsHoris
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmmIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of HME B BIRINKT BN )
financial statements of subsidiaries WIS ImERMER =58 -
outside Hong Kong, net of HK$nil tax MBS THIE (1,057) (1,324)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWFLEE
FOR THE YEAR 269,446 224,269
Attributable to: AT & IBRES
Equity shareholders of the Company RATERRE 196,444 191,541
Non-controlling interests FEPRAR M AR 73,002 32,728
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREHERSHAE
FOR THE YEAR 269,446 224,269

The notes on pages 120 to 273 form part of these financial F1202 F 273 A WM sE Bt B S 2R R A — 30

statements. 5o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR ILR

At 31 March2022 R-ZZT-_—F=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ITFT)

2022 2021
—=E_— — =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E FE T FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENKRE 13 1,193,316 792,005
Investment properties Ay 13 197,100 186,300
Goodwill [EES 14 709,073 477,356
Intangible assets B EE 15 691,937 511,627
Interest in joint ventures NGB EN R 16 48,381 53,204
Interest in an associate RN 17 1,153 -
Rental and other deposits e kZEtize 20 104,436 66,891
Prepayments and other receivables TERFIE & E A R U GRIE 20 211,961 169,304
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERGAEMZEKES
other comprehensive income SREE 21(a) 14,588 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZENEREE
profit or loss 21(b) 142,054 92,511
Deferred tax assets IRER B & B 27(b) 30,981 26,548
Total non-current assets FRBEEMRE 3,344,980 2,375,746
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories VR 18 101,098 39,524
Trade receivables =)Ao 19 155,493 178,984
Prepayments, deposits and other TEFIE ~ e REM BRI
receivables 20 214,568 191,106
Deferred costs PRIERK AR 5 142,805 63,182
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEENEMERE
profit or loss 21(b) 1,839 2,885
Current tax recoverable AU [E] BN AR 18 27(a) 27,597 3,239
Time deposits with original maturity over R E|Hi B #8:8 = & A &9 F Bi1F
3 months 22 2,000 4,751
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIRESZEY 22 870,228 931,064
Total current assets MEEELRE 1,515,628 1,414,735
CURRENT LIABILITIES B i
Trade payables 2 SN RIA 23 75,201 46,657
Other payables and accruals A FE A FRIE M FEEHE A 24 239,648 168,447
Bank borrowings SRITER 25 - 287,348
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 318,716 207,453
Deferred revenue PEIEUA 26 656,067 562,536
Current tax payable P& B ERRS 18 27(a) 73,799 44,786
Total current liabilities B A B 1,363,431 1,317,227
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 152,197 97,508
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBAR
LIABILITIES 3,497,177 2,473,254

EC Healthcare
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Re FBIOR

At 31 March 2022 RZZT-_—_F=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA& T 17)
2022 2021
—EBE-—F —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B =E THET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBRE 27(p) 105,249 74,747
Lease liabilities HEEE 28 386,686 294,787
Other payables Hub e 718 24 405,205 220,115
Provision for reinstatement costs EEKAEE 24 13,772 13,000
Convertible bonds AR ES 32 235,709 239,819
Total non-current liabilities JERBAGASE 1,146,621 842,468
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,350,556 1,630,786
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR&EE
Share capital R AN 29(c) 12 11
Reserves & 1,881,242 1,268,734
Total equity attributable to equity RARRERRERE(ESAALE
shareholders of the Company 1,881,254 1,268,745
Non-controlling interests FEIERRER 469,302 362,041
TOTAL EQUITY A 2,350,556 1,630,786

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

June 2022.

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie
B g
Director

EE

The notes on pages 120 to 273 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HE-ZT_-_—_F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T317)

4:‘"‘ £ fE4 @J %

At 1 Apr 2020 RZE-FEMA-A 10 723821 28712 20 810 - - 249289 1,002,728 166,806 1,169,53¢
Changes in equityfor 2021: “Ro-ERERY:
Proft for the year FRaf - - - - - - - 192,865 192,865 32,728 226,593
Other comprefensive income L2k - - - - (1.324) - - - (1.324) - (1.324)
Totel comprefensive income 2ElEEE - - - - 1.324) - - 192,865 191,541 32,728 204269
Issuance of shares Upon exercise of share options AERREEEIRA 20 - 10475 (3312) - - - - - 7163 - 7163
Issuance of hares {0 sefe ease abifes BRI EEERR ) - 5,049 - - - - - - 6,949 - 56949
Issuance of shares or the Co-onnership Scheme HERERARURARG 2 - 57,183 - - - - - - 57,183 - 57,183
Other ssuance of shares AfEIRH 20 - 4500 - - - - - - 4500 - 4250
Acquistion of subsiciaries WEHELT 290 1 140892 - - - - (210670) - 69,777) 189228 119451
Disposelof patl nerests n subsidres HERBATHBE - - - - - - - 212 2129 7000 9129
Disposal ofsubsidiaies that resuted nfoss o contrl HENBRREHEAHIE - - - - - - - - - 14 141
Recognition of equity-setted share-based compensation: BIRREENRh RN
Share option B - - 2170 - - - - - 2170 - 2170
Recogriton of shere-based peyment for shares of subsidares &7 P S RERHHEAT
granted o non-controling nterests TR AERAR - - 3963 - - - - - 3963 329 1202
Issuance of cometbl bonds RITARES kA - - - - - 66,082 - - 66,082 - 66,082
Acquision o patl nteres's nsubsiceries YEHBATNARE ) 4 101,368 - - - 10461 - (91,847) 19972 (22372 2.400)
Dividends paid to non-confroling interests i FEaRERRS - - - - - - - - - 16,059) 16,059
Dividend declared BERRS 290) - - - - - - - (13,858) (113,858) - (113,858)
At31 March 2021 and 1 Apr 2021 R-E--F=f=1-BR

Z3--EmA-A 11 1,133,184 31533 2 (454 76,543 [210670) 238578 1,268,745 362,041 1,630,786
Changes i equity for 2022: CECCERED:
Proft for the year EREH © © = = = - - 197,501 197,501 73,002 210,503
Other comprefensive income Bl - - - = (1,07) - - - (1,067) - (1,067)
Totel comprefensive income 2ENELE = = = = (1,057) = = 197,501 196,444 73,002 %946
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share options REREREARD 2 - 191 (10493) - - - - - 33698 - 33698
Issuance of sharesfor the Co-ownership Scheme HEREZAAHEARG 20 - 15915 - - - - - = 16915 = 16915
Issuance ofshares Upon exercie of warants AEAREERERG 20 -+ 283,149 = - - (1,749) = o 21,400 o 281,400
Otherssuance of sheres ARG 290 1 480,760 - - - - - - 40,761 ° 480,761
Aoqistion of subsidaries WEHEAR 290) - 12 - - - - (165,278) - (158,146) 86,625 (71,521)
Disposal of partil interests in subsicaries HENBRRT R - - - - - = = (16,269 (16,269 2,69 6,000
Recogniion o equiy-setted shere-based compensation: B EREENR A
Share opton HRME : BRE - - 2042% - - = = = 242 - 2426
Recognition of share-based payment for shares of e e alil |
subsidiaries granted to non-contrling nerests TrpR BARAR - - 3963 - - - - - 3963 3299 1262
Conversion o convertile bonds BATARES 20 - 1,000 - - = (4121) - - 14873 - 14873
Aoquiston ofpartl ntrests n subsicares WEMEL T HER - - - - - - - 11400 11400 (27,946) (16,546)
Dividends peid to non-controling intrests THTEERERORS - - - - - - - - - 49,988) (49,98)
Dividend declered BERRE 1) = = = = = = ° (271,956) (271,956) o (271,966)
At31 March 2022 i it - 4 - 2 1933 4429 2 (1,511) 70,667 875,943) 169254 1,881,254 49302 236055

* Amount less than HK$1,000

- The notes on pages 120 to 273 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FeRTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE—ZT——

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA& T 17)

F=HA=t+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-_—fF — =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FE T FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReESEH
Profit before tax B A A 321,411 265,896
Adjustments for: S
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE RS 7 3,399 8,572
Interest on convertible bonds AR EFF B 7 19,173 2,848
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 7 14,948 12,228
Imputed interest expenses on ERREZ HERE
consideration payables X 7 11,387 -
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 6 (954) (1,146)
Other interest income HF B U A 6 (410) (659)
Depreciation e 8 360,986 277,895
Impairment loss on other receivables H WA EEE 8 3,792 6,328
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 8 71,379 31,968
Loss on settlement of lease liabilities ERFETROENHEBEN
by issuance of shares B 8 - 2,595
Share of profits less losses of AMEEERERFREE
joint ventures 1,821 (4,987)
Share of profit of an associate DG — A2 N B R A (1,153) -
Equity-settled share-based payment LARESS A E AR AR
expenses R 8 27,688 9,432
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HERBARNER 6 - 4,283
Gain on bargain purchase arising from KEERKENEERES KRR
a business acquisition 33 - (993)
Gain on disposals and write-off HERMSEYE - BE A&
of property, plant and equipment ol 6 (19,115) (21,061)
Unrealised and realised losses on BRAFEFABENEMEE
financial assets at fair value MAZIRREEIR
through profit or loss, net i85 6 11,565 2,893
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment WEWERN N TE (),
properties B8 6 (10,800) 2,700
Foreign exchange differences HNE ZFH (4,664) (4,625)
810,453 594,267
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUEM RS (45,191) 26,679
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 e kg 4 (32 10) 51,225 (55,273)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERFIE - Be MEMER
deposits and other receivables FIE (3 hn), A (84,424) 3,858
(Increase)/decrease in deferred costs IRIER A (320), R (79,623) 9,833
Decrease in trade payables Z 5 e s (342) (6,750)
Decrease in other payables and HtENZKIERESER
accruals Ve (67,561) (23,982)
Increase in deferred revenue IEE U AE A0 91,144 125,916
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HE-ZT_-_—_F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& ITFT)
2022 2021
—=E_— — =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FE T FHIT
Cash generated from operations REEANRS 675,681 674,548
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBFIER (65,029) (47,127)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong B EBEINGIE (2,293) (6,614)
Net cash generated from operating KL EEAARIR G S5
activities 608,359 620,807
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Bank interest received BUERITHILE 954 1,146
Payments for purchases of financial BERAFEFABEN
assets at fair value through profit CREEMNTR
or loss (58,352) (4,000)
Payments for purchases of financial BERATEFAELMEE
assets at fair value through other WEH TR EENR
comprehensive income (14,588) -
Contribution to an unlisted equity Mo EAEAFEFABEN
investment classified as financial assets &gl &ZE &) 3E TR
at fair value through profit or loss B&ETE (1,710) (1,239)
Payments for additions to intangible REERPEREENNK
assets under development - (13,230)
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets & & A T EEF ABZH
at fair value through profit or loss SREEZFSHIE = 108,495
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEMEREDN
plant and equipment Fri5 708 43,560 20,640
Other interest income HAtb A2 UA 410 559
Dividend received from a joint venture Bl —EEERENRE 3,002 2,513
Acquisitions of businesses, net W B S 75 R R 33 (286,947) (347,991)
Capital contribution to an associate m— R E A REE = M
Disposals of subsidiaries, net HERBARFE = (4,380)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary in #A F—FEHE—RHE QTN
prior year FriSsRIA = 5,150
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits RE|BHBB=EAN
with original maturity over 3 months EEFEFR D (&) 2,751 (801)
Payments for purchases of property, BEYE  BEREE
plant and equipment EOEE (260,269) (135,870)
Net cash used in investing activities BB EEARSFE (571,189) (369,015)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
E/Qui//lbii'%

;\/\

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HE-ZT_-_—F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TTFT)
2022 2021
—EBE-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& SE B
Interest paid on bank borrowings B AHRITERFLE 22(b) (3,399) (8,572)
Interest paid on convertible bonds B AR E ) 8 22(b) (5,850) o
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERESHERSTD 22(b) (267,691) (139,534)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEERSHF SIS 22(b) (14,948) (8,371)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible TR AR E SR PTE IE

bonds - 304,200
Proceeds from new bank borrowings FTISIRITE RIS IE 22(b) - 304,839
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER 22(b) (287,348) (279,442)
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 1T1E SR AR #7515 38 281,400 -
Acquisition of partial interests in g NG N -

subsidiaries (16,546) (2,400)
Proceeds from disposal of partial ﬁ@‘ﬁ%”ﬂ%ﬂ D RERR )

interests in subsidiaries FT15 70 6,000 9,129
Dividend paid IEATAEE 29(b) (271,956) (113,858)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests &A% 8 F IE32E Ik 8 7 (49,988) (16,059)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT B TS IR 530,374 106,846
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES(FTR), /i8R EFE

financing activities (99,952) 156,778
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE RERRSZENRD)

IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in$%8 (62,782) 408,570
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MA—HMIRES RIS EEY 931,064 520,442
Effect of changes in foreign SMNERE R FFH T E

exchange rates 1,946 2,052
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZA=t-ANRLER

AT 31 MARCH HEZEEY 22(a) 870,228 931,064

The notes on pages 120 to 273 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R 2= MY R

2.1

EC Healthcare

A

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at L50, Langham
Place Office Tower, 8 Argyle Street, Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of medical and healthcare
services.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.1
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ARG ERERETMAINERRE
REFERAT  NAF MMM SZECZR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
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RRARRREZEKR DT « KRR RENE
RE(GER [ AEE]) BN ERHUER
R ARGEBRA

BREH
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FEMBREEANEEBESEAMAE
(I&FEEHEIAE]) B FTAER @5
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Z EMARRAI(T EMARRID) 2 A ER RS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI o

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 22 MBmREHEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group’s interest in joint ventures and an associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated
in the accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 3.2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

EC Healthcare

The Group had early adopted amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-
19-related rent concessions (including those beyond 30 June
2021) in the prior year.

The HKICPA has issued Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2, that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or where appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Interest in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment and any direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Associate and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or the joint venture (after applying the
ECL (as defined below) model to such long term interests where
applicable).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associate and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in that investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
an associate and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment
losses.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred (except those segregated
from business combinations) is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the sellers of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date.

If the business acquisition is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred or received by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill at the
end of each financial year. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business acquisition is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities and
unlisted equity securities and unlisted funds, other than
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate, are
set out below.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

Investments in debt securities, unlisted equity securities and
unlisted funds are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The investments
are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classifications.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method.

—  fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
(recycling), if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
equity investment, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL
or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising
from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 EXEHEERE @)

M BERRBURTE @

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

FEDRAGHIERFHUNERETE

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment (including B BEARE(BREERAEEE) R
right-of-use assets) to its residual value over its estimated useful BB KA E EFIEREE - SLULATE
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as AMEZEFLERAT -
follows:
Properties leased for own use Over the lease term HEEBRANME HEFH
Building held for own use Over the shorter of the lease ESRI=RIEEAI AEFHREMGE
situated on leasehold land term and their estimated HETHREF AI{s£ AR 4F HP
useful lives (AEEE B%)
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease HEMELE HEF I 25%
terms and 25% (AR EAE)
Furniture and fixtures 10-25% RKAREE 10-25%
Operation equipment 10-20% %@&ﬁ 10-20%
Office equipment 15-20% PN 15-20%
Computers 20% ‘Jriﬁr/% 20%
Motor vehicles 20% AE 20%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have Wz - BERZEEE N TR D HA

different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

ERFHER  ZEBNRANIZAEE
BERETIE - Rk
EBE AIEAFHRETERIARE

ENRETRABS

FRFERETEERAR(WER) -

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant —IEYE - BEMREER (BECEVS
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when BROAMEZHD) NHEKEEFAL
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or HERBGTTEELAKLBENZRE BRI

disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 3.1 section
“Revenue recognition”.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and
the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business acquisition is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
subsequently amortised over the assets’ estimated useful lives
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite useful lives as set out below.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Customer lists and relationships 1010 50%
Licence 20%

Club memberships and school debentures Indefinite
Trademark 510 10%
IT applications platform 14.3%
Others 12.5%

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. For an intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated annually, whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.
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BRI o

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost (see
note 3.1 section “Other investments in debt and equity
securities and unlisted funds”). Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions that
occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph 468
of HKFRS 16, Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payment in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to
be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

For sale and leaseback transactions, the Group considers
whether the initial transfer of the underlying asset to the
buyer-lessor is a sale. The Group applies HKFRS 15 to
determine whether a sale has taken place.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is a sale, the Group
derecognises the underlying asset and applies the lessee
accounting model to the leaseback — the Group measures
the right-of-use asset at the retained portion of the previous
carrying amount (i.e. at cost), and recognises only the
amount of any gain or loss related to the rights transferred
to the lessor.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is not a sale, the Group
continues to recognise the underlying asset, and
recognises a financial liability for any amount received from
the buyer-lessor.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating leases
is recognised in accordance with accounting policy as
described in note 3.1 section “Revenue recognition”.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (Continued)
Credit loss and impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
(“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured at amortised cost,
including time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

— trade and other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate;
and

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the measurement
of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors or based on the
probabilities of default with reference to available market
information. The estimation also includes an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on
either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 3.1 section “Revenue recognition” is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSHEEBME @)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
— abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease receivable
is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
asset becomes 90 days past due or when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises and is included in “other net
income and gains”.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the effect of discounting is
material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value
at the end of each reporting period of the future expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI o

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and including allowance for credit
losses as set out in note 3.1 section “Credit loss and impairment
of financial assets”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy as set out in note 3.1 section “Credit
loss and impairment of financial assets”.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy as set out in note
3.1 section “Borrowing costs”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted into ordinary shares at
the option of the holder, where a fixed number of shares are
issued for a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments, i.e. they
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value based on the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the prevailing market rate of
interest for similar non-convertible instruments. The equity
component is the difference between the initial fair value of the
convertible bonds as a whole and the initial fair value of the
liability component.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
Interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is not remeasured and is recognised in the
capital reserve until the bonds are converted.

If the bonds are converted, the capital reserve, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI o

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Macau are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension schemes. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment
Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as employee expenses with a corresponding increase
in share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount recognised in share
capital or share premium for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI o

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share Award Scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under which
the Group receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (shares) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share awards given by the Group’s subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries of the Group are awarded to certain registered
practitioners in respect of their future services for the Group. The fair
value of such shares is recognised as registered practitioner
expenses with a corresponding increase in either the share-based
compensation reserve or non-controlling interests within equity,
depending on such shares awarded are attributable to the Group or
the non-controlling shareholders of the subsidiaries.

The fair value of such share awards is spread over the expected
vesting period, which is consistent with the expected service period
of these registered practitioners. The expected service period is
reviewed annually and the expense charged to profit or loss is
adjusted prospectively from the date of change of the expected
service period.

Co-ownership scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan under which the invited employees who
accepted the scheme offer are required to purchase shares
through an independent trust or transfer the shares previously
owned by the employees to the trust (“Co-ownership scheme”),
and such purchased and transferred shares would be kept in the
independent trust until the end of the vesting period. Upon the
end of the vesting period, the Group would grant shares to the
invited employees based on the rules as stated in the Co-
ownership scheme.

The fair value of shares granted to employees (“Award Shares”) is
recognised as employee expenses with a corresponding increase
in share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the Award Shares were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the Award Shares, the total estimated fair value of the Award
Shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the Award Shares will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI o

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Co-ownership scheme (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of Award Shares that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of Award Shares that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve). The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either the Award Share
is granted through new issuance and allotment of shares (when it
is included in the amount recognised in share capital or share
premium for the shares issued) or the Award Share is settled by
share to be acquired by the Group from market (when it is
recycled to retained profits, for the difference between the grant
date fair value and the Group’s costs to acquire such shares, if
any).

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the end
of each of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business acquisition and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
acquisition and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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BRI o

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBERBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@)

Most of the services are sold on a prepaid basis. The
service period of a prepaid package is generally one year.

Generally there are multiple components within the
package, the deferred revenue of each component is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Deferred revenue is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue, such deferred revenue is regarded as contract
liability in accordance with HKFRS 15.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when
the services have been rendered to customers.

The Group’s customers may not utilise all of their
contracted rights within the service period. Such unutilised
services are referred to as breakage. An expected
breakage amount is determined by historical experience
and is recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern of
services utilised by the customers.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the service
period, after the effect of previously recognised expected
breakage amount, is fully recognised in profit or loss.

Services which are not sold on a prepaid basis is
recognised in full when the services have been rendered to
customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the products.

Commission income and marketing service income are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial asset or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established.

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EREHEEME@®

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of each reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an operation outside
Hong Kong and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated
as assets and liabilities of that operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTHBRBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or payable
to the staff or third party agents, are capitalised as deferred costs
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(i)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3.1

3.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 30 and 31 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of share awards and share
options granted. Other key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.2 EREFHE R @

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Business acquisitions

For the business acquisitions undertaken by the Group, the Group
first segregates the amount related to transactions other than
business acquisition and then allocates the costs of the acquisition
to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is
commonly referred to as the purchase price allocation. As part of
the purchase price allocation, the Group is required to determine the
fair value of any identifiable intangible assets acquired. The
determination of the fair value of the intangible assets acquired
involves certain judgement and estimates. These judgements can
include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that the intangible
assets is expected to generate in the future.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets were determined
by the Group with inputs from the independent valuers using mainly
the discounted cash flow method of the income approach. Future
cash flows are predominantly based on the historical pricing and
expense levels, taking into consideration the relevant market size
and growth factors, and involves making a number of assumptions
including growth rates. The resulting cash flows are then discounted
at a rate reflecting specific risks related to the relevant operation.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible assets
would have an offsetting effect on the amount of goodwill
recognised from the acquisition and would change the amount of
amortisation expense recognised related to those identifiable
intangible assets.
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.2 EXSTHHE R MA@

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Revenue

Revenue recognition on provision of certain services is dependent
on the estimation of the utilisation pattern of each type of
services. Based on the Group’s historical experience, the Group
makes estimates of an expected amount of breakage. Actual
utilisation may be higher or lower than those estimated at the end
of each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years.

Impairment of assets

The Group performs annual impairment test on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, and also performs
impairment assessment on the carrying amounts of other assets
when indication of impairment is identified to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Management assesses
the differences between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount and makes provision for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in calculating the recoverable amount would
increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss and affect the
Group’s profit or loss and financial position.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business
units based on their services and products. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, management changed the compositions
of the segments in view of more diversified businesses the Group
currently operates. Accordingly, the Group has three reporting
segments as follows:

(@ Medical;
(b)  Aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness; and
(c) Others.

The comparative information is also restated to conform with the
current year’s presentation.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Medical segment represents all medical services (excluding
aesthetic medical services) and dental services. Aesthetic
medical and beauty and wellness segment represents aesthetic
medical, traditional beauty, haircare and ancillary wellness
services and sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty products.
Others represents multi-channel networking and related services
and veterinary services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management monitors the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of investment properties, interest in an
associate and joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Segment liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, provision for reinstatement costs,
lease liabilities relating to properties leased for own use, deferred
revenue, current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.

The segment revenue of the Group is based on the type of
services provided to the customers. Revenue and expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax except that bank interest income, other
interest income, unrealised and realised gains/losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, net, fair value gain/loss
on investment properties, rental income from investment
properties, share of profits less losses of joint ventures and an
associate and head office and other corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)

REFIER (&)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DXL  EERAR@®

Aesthetic medical and

Medical beauty and wellness Others Total
BERR RERBURAARELRE &t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2021
S 3 Z§CCE 3 “ECCE 5 F -
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL TET T THT Thn ThL
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(& %5) (& 35) (& #5) (@55
Reportable segment revenue THREFPRA 1,688,958 1,025,924 1,091,204 990,364 152,941 77,53 2,933,108 2,093,823
Less: Inter-segment revenue B ARERA - - - - (13,603) (13.420) (13,603) (13.420)
Revenue from external customers MPRFIA 1,688,958 1,025,924 1,091,204 990,364 139,338 64,115 2,919,500 2,080,408
Segment result Gt 202,816 86,491 106,603 156,750 26,383 8181 335,802 251,422
Bank interest income FTHERA 954 1,146
Other interest income EABRA 40 559
Unrealised and realised losses BLTEAERD
on financial assets at far value SREENRERR
through proft or loss, net BEEERTE (11,565) 2.8%)
Fair value gain/(oss) on investment B EWEATE
properties beval i) 10,800 .700)
Rental income from nvestment RENEREHA
properties 5417 5148
Share of profs less losses of MEAERERA
joint ventures HEE (1,821) 4987
Share of profit of an associate Ai—ERE AR 1158 B
Others £ft (19,739) 8,227
Consolidated profit before tax GakBIE 321,411 265,89
Depreciation and amortisation for FRAEREH 241,875 149,072 174,650 155,007 15,840 5,584 432,365 309,863
the year
Impaiment loss on other receivables B EMFEREEE - - 3,792 6,328 - - 3792 6,328
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTER (@)
(Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) PEEE - EEREEB@W)

Aesthetic medical and

Medical beauty and wellness Others Total
BRER ZERBURZAREERE &t

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZECCE ety ZE-CF e —E-C —Eo— -8 =H==

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TEL TR T TR ThRL Tin TR

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(@E5)) (#E5)) (@E5)) (@E5))

Reportable segment assets THENDEE 2,610,624 1,881,201 1,547,459 1,528,481 297,410 95,899 4,455,493 3,455,581
Investment properties hENE 197,100 186,300
Interest n joint ventures REELENER 48,381 53204
Interest in an assoclate R-ABENANER 1,188 -
Financial assets at fair value BATEHAEHZE

through other comprehensive hafeaaE

income 14,588 -
Financial assets at fai value though R A {EEH AR

proft or loss SREE 143,893 95,39
Consoldated total assets GRS 4860608 3790481
Addtions to non-cunent segment  ERFEFRRHHTEE

assets during the year (excluding (FaEERIE)

husiness acquisitions) 395,215 116,033 218,132 208,639 10,980 204 624,327 324,876
Reportable segment liabilities TRELHER 1,157,724 703,165 1,004,765 837,952 111,854 54,877 2,274,343 1,595,994
Bank borrowings ROER - 287,348
Convertible bonds maRES 235,709 239,819
Lease liabiities HERE - 36,534
Consolicated total fiabilties GABREERE 2,510,052 2,159,695
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i)
the Group’s investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill and interest in joint ventures and an
associate and non-current portion of prepayments (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on (i) the physical location of the asset, in the case
of investment properties and property, plant and equipment, (i) the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
intangible assets and goodwill, and (i) the location of operations,
in the case of interest in joint ventures and an associate and non-
current portion of prepayments.

4.

REFIER (&)

PERELE - BEEREE W)

TREFIEMATRIENMRUBNER
() A SR B 2R B SN ER R B A0 WA B (i) AN 5=
MEEYE VxE BERRE BVE
E BERRAZLER—HBZEARN
g LA RIRN SORH SER B AR ([ E IF
RBEE]) - BFHMIBMAEENTIRME
RBEHARMNEROME - HEFRBDE
ENMENEER () EENERUZE (IR
BMENLRYE  BERREMNS) - () H
WoRMENELUE RETLEENEE
mE)Ki)BEMUE (AREELENR—FH
B 8 X B B M 8 DA I RN R IR 9 SRR B) AP

%
AR -

Information about geographical areas EREtENER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RE PR FHBA BEFRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= B —F —=E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T FET TET FH&T
Hong Kong 5% 2,632,960 1,893,920 2,800,971 2,019,350
Macau JEFY 113,374 51,623 26,078 3,574
The PRC 2] 173,166 134,860 168,521 118,941
2,919,500 2,080,403 2,995,570 2,141,865
Information about major customers BHEETEEFNEHR

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of the
Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue during each of the reporting periods presented, no
information about major customers in accordance with HKFRS 8,
Operating Segments, is presented.
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the value of services rendered and the net
invoiced value of goods sold, excluding value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of trade discounts. An analysis
of revenue and deferred balance is as follows:

A

W N J AR (AR A R B B R M
A (T3 RS ER SR SR - 14T
MR EMESH) « WA BT EB AT
0

2022 2021
—E-—fF T4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
(restated)
(F&=751)
Revenue WA

Medical services BERS 1,688,958 1,025,924

Aesthetic medical and beauty and EERBULRERAREERE R
wellness services and related revenue FEEFUA 1,091,204 990,364
Other services H AR 139,338 64,115
2,919,500 2,080,403

During the year ended 31 March 2022, management changed
the presentation of the disaggregation of revenue in view of more
diversified businesses the Group currently operates. The
comparative information is also restated to conform with the
current year’s presentation.

All of the above revenue is recognised in accordance with HKFRS
5"

Deferred balances

The following table provides information about deferred liabilities
from contracts with customers and related deferred costs.

HE-_ZT-_—_F-A=+—HIFE &
RAEEBREENEBEMZ TL - B
BEEHNKRADENZS] - FEES AL
REMUAFEEAFENZT -

LB A DRBEE BN EHREERE
1550 FER o

IR A R

TRUIEE S AT A I & 7 R4
IEREA AR B R -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHT FABT
Deferred revenue (note 26) RIEWA (FTE26) (656,067) (562,536)
Deferred costs FEIERL A 142,805 63,182
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REVENUE (continued)
Deferred balances (Continued)

The deferred costs primarily relate to the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales
commissions and bonus paid or payable to the staff and third
party agents, and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Such costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the deferred revenue to which they relate is
recognised as revenue.

All of the capitalised deferred costs are expected to be
recognised in profit or loss within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the amount of such
incremental costs charged to profit or loss was HK$308,283,000
(2021: HK$200,200,000) and there was no impairment loss in
relation to the costs capitalised.

A ()
IEE & B8R (48)

BERATBEMEELENEERAEAE
BUEENENEIRE=FRENHE
e RIEAL) - WA TSR RTER
B RARCA R B A B VIR FE MR A FERR R UK
AHHEAEIRRAER °

A B BN HRIER R TE R —F A
RIBERTER ©

RBE-F-__F=-A=+t—RALFE"

BB REE ﬁﬁz$mé—§ééi%
308,283,00078 7T (ZF =—4 : 200,200,000
A70) - WA EARE MU ANRRIERE ©

OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS H AR W= FEEE
2022 2021
—E-_F == —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Bank interest income |RITHEUWA 954 1,146
Other Interest income HAbFIBUA 410 559
Unrealised and realised losses on BAFEFABENEREERN
financial assets at fair value through RER KRB EIREIEFE
profit or loss, net (11,565) (2,893)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties & ¥t A T EUE(Ei8) 10,800 (2,700)
Rental income from investment properties & ¥ EE S U A 5,417 5,148
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries (note ()  H & HE A T ER () - (4,283)
Gain on disposals and write-off of HERMEDE - BEKR
property, plant and equipment BRI 19,115 21,061
Government grants (note (i) AT w7 B (FfE 5 (i) 2,280 75,279
Others EAh 18,834 11,618
46,245 104,935
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6. OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Notes:

i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries, which were principally engaged in the provision of
marketing services and hair treatment services, at aggregate cash
considerations of HK$2 and HK$5,000, respectively. The aggregate
net liabilities of these subsidiaries immediately before the disposals was
HK$3,039,000. The goodwill attributable to hair treatment services was
HK$5,968,000 while there was no goodwill attributable to the disposed
subsidiaries engaged in the provision of marketing services. The total
net cash outflow in respect of these disposals was HK$4,386,000.

(ii) Government grants for the year ended 31 March 2022 mainly include
subsidy income received from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“‘HKSAR Government”) to subsidise the
industries impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2021 mainly represented
funding support from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, set up by the HKSAR Government. The purpose of the
funding was to provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms
of the grant, the Group was required not to make redundancies during
the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying salaries to
the employees.

7. FINANCE COSTS

6. HWARWKZEFRE®

GGE

0

(i

HE-_ZT-—F=ZA=+—HItEE K&
Eﬁﬁ”ﬁfﬁ?@ﬂ CRRERNREENER
HHISEHRY REEZEERE - BeBrR
BH E\J%zﬁém&&a 0007 - B EFA
Al ZEWBARMABEFEAHRA
3,039,0008 JT o 98 52 I AR 74 Eﬁ?éﬁ%%;%
5,968,000/8 7T + MEEHEW BIREEHR
BHWE AR EAMEE - AMZSHE
FIEMIR SR HFEEA H£/54,386,0008 7T °

HE-Z--=A=1+—BLFENEM
HWHEEREEEBFITRERRT ([E%5
R BT 1) W B A A B 2 COVID-19 & 1
FETEN@BBA -

BHE-_T-—F=ZA=1+—BULFENZE
FEEEBFRBEREIEES THMR
BETENESIH EHESHARRE
BEEREVEIE  UEBAESREE
BE B o BRI IR - S B AL 2R
TEBEELBAAESANIINEELIE -

7. BIEEA

2022 2021

—=E_— —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FH&T FHIT

Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 3,399 8,572

Interest on convertible bonds Al AR S & T B 19,173 2,848

Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBNE 14,948 12,228
Imputed interest expenses on consideration JEABEEER B F

payables 11,387 -

48,907 23,648
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived

8. FBRBiAIEF

at after charging/

AEENRBATE T EME,(GEA) LA

(crediting): THIBESGHE :
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEESEHM) : ¢
emoluments):*
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, e IE - ERL A
commissions and benefits in kind e REDF 845,741 719,427
Equity-settled share-based NEREEURN BER 2
payment expenses X 23,725 5,469
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFT BB
(defined contribution scheme) (REHEFETE) 36,750 22,550
906,216 747,446
Equity-settled share-based payment MFAMBES A EREE
expenses to registered practitioners ARG BERNNRAS
(excluding those included in staff costs) (FFAB I AERIN) 3,963 3,963
Auditors’ remuneration* ZELRD BN & 4,541 3,321
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and equipment —BEDE BENIEE 96,031 77,547
— right-of-use assets —(FEREEE 264,955 200,348
Amortisation of intangible assets S E Y 71,379 31,968
Impairment loss on other receivables* H b R U R IR R B B 1R 3,792 6,328
Foreign exchange differences, net* SN 2= KB FRE 898 149
Rental income from investment KEMERSRNBEE
properties less direct outgoings of 7 §K 544,000 7T
HK$544,000 (2021: HK$499,000) (ZZ=—4 : 499,000/ ) (4,873) (4,649)
Loss on settlement of lease liabilities by FBRBETROENEEBENEIE
issuance of shares - 2,595
Utilities* IKEE* 21,278 13,001
Legal and professional fees* FEENEXEER 9,732 8,479
Repairs and maintenance expenses* BERFEER" 16,508 14,553
IT related and office expenses* BB ERE R AERE " 18,063 8,491
Laundry and cleaning expenses* XK B R 7,437 5,867
Bank charges* RITER 3,903 2,773
Insurance expenses REBF*
(excluding those recognised as financial (TEEERABZRATERTA
assets at fair value through profit or loss)* EBiHFMESREERY) 4,816 3,226
Supplies and consumables* FEMRAmREER 10,515 5,059
Delivery and travelling® HERER" 14,765 5,663
& Included in staff costs are employee benefit expenses of # 8 T A8 4 & 8 18 I & 728,631,000 1

HK$728,631,000 (2021: HK$580,383,000) and registered practitioner
expenses of HK$177,585,000 (2021: HK$167,063,000) paid/payable
to certain registered practitioners who are also employees of the
Group.

Included in administrative and other expenses.
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/AT AAEERENE TEMBELR
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

EEHM

RIEFE D a5 5 383(1) & A=l (HFE
EEFRZER)ROF 2N BEENEEH
BRS¢

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share
fees in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total options Total
R4 B
Ezhe  REMAE Mgt STEHR i) FhRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TR TiEn Tién TiEn TiEn
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-CF
ZAZt-BLEE
Executive directors HTEZE
Tang Chi Fai Gl - 1,117 - 17 1,134 - 1,134
Lee Heung Wing Fmz - 3,353 - 18 3,371 5870 9,241
Wong Chi Cheung EE - 3,319 - 18 3,337 938 4,275
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie Rl
(appointed on 23 August 2021) (R=B=-F
NAZTZHEZT) - 2,414 - 12 2,426 10,503 12,929
Wong Ka Ki Ada IZ%
(appointed on 11 October 2021) (R=B--%
TAT-REZf) - 3,618 - 9 3,627 7,066 10,693
Lee Gabriel FER
(resigned on 1 October 2021) (R=E--%
TA—B&E) - 3,123 - 9 3,732 =+ 3,732
- 17,544 - 83 17,627 24317 42,004
Non-executive directors FiEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben ¥R - 118 - 6 124 - 124
Wong Steven Dasong BN
(resigned on 19 July 2021) (R=B=-%F
tATAREHE) = = = = = = -
- 118 - 6 124 - 124
Independent-non-executive directors BV ##77EE
Ma Ching Nam & 240 - - - 240 - 240
Look Andrew 3 220 - - - 220 - 220
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 120 - - - 120 - 120
580 - - - 580 - 580

Lee Gabriel resigned from the Group on 1 October 2021, and certain

share options previously granted to him were forfeited. Accordingly,
HK$5,262,000 was recorded as a reduction of share-based payment

expenses during the year ended 31 March 2022.

EC Healthcare
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-2--%
ZR=t-BLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Tang Chi Fai iR - 1,303 - 18 1,321 - 1,321
Lee Gabriel F2% = 2,059 - 18 2,077 3,008 5,085
Lee Heung Wing TR - 3,932 - 18 3,950 210 4,160
Wong Chi Cheung EEE - 1,402 600 18 2,020 - 2,020
- 8,696 600 72 9,368 3218 12,586
Non-executive directors HHEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben BERR - 114 - 6 120 - 120
Wang David Guowei IEE(N=325%
(resigned on 24 April 2020) MA-+MmBEET) - - = i - - _
Wang Steven Dasong TAR(M=Z25%
(appainted on 24 April 2020) MA-TmBEEZT) - - - - - - -
- 114 - 6 120 - 120
Independent-non-executive directors - B #3172 %
Ma Ching Nam & 240 - - - 240 - 240
Look Andrew i3 220 - - - 220 - 220
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 120 - - - 120 - 120
580 - - - 580 - 580

BRER
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

10.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2021:
two) of the individuals are directors for the year ended 31 March
2022 and their emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2021:
three) individuals for the year ended 31 March 2022, are as
follows:

REHMAL

HE_T-_—_#ZA=Z+—HILFE &
HZERBTNALF=Z(ZT=_—F : MA)
ATAES  HFHRWFORE - #HE2=
T _FZA=Z+-ALLEE BB
(ZZ=—F: =) A\TOHENEES R
AT -

2022 2021
—E—-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FH&T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R MEHMEDH E

in kind 6,188 6,491
Performance related bonuses HRI\EHNIES 13,380 10,284
Equity-settled share-based payments AR S E AR D BER 2 - 38

Pension scheme contributions (defined RIKEFHEE R (R EHZKEED
contribution schemes) 35 54
19,603 16,867

The emoluments of the two (2021: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2022 are within
the following bands:

BE-_Z-__F=-ZA=+—HItFE ¥
MEsmEa(Z2E-—F: =%) A+H8
FDRINRIATEE :

—Z2—-= —E-—F

HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 77T — 4,500,000 ¢ = 1
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 78 7¢ — 6,000,000 7T = 1
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 77T — 7,000,0008 7T = 1
HK$8,000,001 — HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 78T — 8,500,000 7T - -
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7T — 9,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$10,000,001 — HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7t — 10,500,000 7T 1 -
2 3
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

11. HEBERANFTER

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

(@) MEABRRNBIARE

2022 2021
—s=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT
Current — Hong Kong BNEf — BF
Provision for the year FAEE 65,395 46,274
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA FEBRRERE (8,923) (1,755)
56,472 44 519
Current — Outside Hong Kong BVER — HARIN
Provision for the year FREE 8,435 4,816
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFEEENT 1,229 -
9,664 4,816
Total current tax BNEAF B 4258 66,136 49,335
Deferred tax ETRIA (15,228) (9,032)
Tax charge for the year FAREZH 50,908 40,303

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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REFSHENEBEARES ([%
BHRAREEDORAIER K&
BEFRESHENEBHBAATEHA
BAEMAAEH -

FREBNEB IR ERTR T
LA16.5% (ZZ = —4F : 16.5%) F9FL
RETIREAE - BB IMEE A ERTL
R M B IE TR AN R B 48 & B 1 RA#E
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. ZEBERAVAEBHR @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax charge and accounting profit at b) HEAWMEFENRIBERZEE G
the applicable tax rates: Flz IR EERE 0T ¢
2022 2021
—E-= =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Profit before tax =Dl 321,411 265,896
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated MR &E A 2 T8 - 8
at the rates applicable to profits in BiEaEERERZ
the tax jurisdictions concerned S AR AT 54,412 46,251
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA F SRR (7,694) (1,755)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEEFRTUA Z TRIBTE (11,494) (18,105)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT ASY 2 BT 2 16,642 9,141
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERHEEEZHETE 836 2,983
Tax effect of utilisation of unused BB FEHAERE
tax losses not recognised in prior years REAHRBEGRE BT E (246) (1,109)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not B FEHAERED
recognised in prior years but recognised ARG E HERH KRB F
during the year MIEEE 2 MEBTE = (@7)
Temporary differences not recognised BEFE M AR ERME
in prior years but recognised ERARFEE R
during the year =8 (1,548) 2,923
Others HAh = 1
Tax charge for the year FRFRIESZ 50,908 40,3083
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO  12. AAREZRRELEREF
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

Basic earnings per share BREFREZR

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BRRERBFI THER AR R 7] # 2 AR R B
for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of F AN & AM197,501,0008 L (ZF = —F :
HK$197,501,000 (2021: HK$192,865,000) and the weighted 192,865,000/ 7T ) & & W E 1T INHEF 19
average share of 1,152,860,000 ordinary shares (2021: HOBALEE 1,152,860,000 (=T = —4F :
1,026,593,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year, 1,026,593,000 % X iBA% ) sFE 0T ¢

calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LA N a8
2021
—T -4
’000
&
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning R BFEEVNE I TE R
of the financial year 1,071,016 985,277
Effect of share options exercised TEERENTE 5,615 1,708
Effect of issuance of shares during the year R ERZEITIR 5 (175 BERRHERR H1)
other than exercise of share options -2 76,229 39,608
Weighted average number of ordinary RZAZ+—BMT @RI
shares at 31 March 1,152,860 1,026,593
Basic earnings per Share (in HK cents) FIRERZF] GBI 171 18.8
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12 ZRREEBRRELGERER

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE (#)
COMPANY (continued)
Diluted earnings per share BREBEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the BREERADEREAR AR R EN
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of & F/197,501,0008 jt( = & = — F:
HK$197,501,000 (2021: HK$192,865,000), and the weighted 192,865,000 7T ) & & il AR o0 #E 15 2
average number of ordinary shares of 1,173,282,000 (2021: 1,173,282,0000% (=& = —4 : 1,031,137,000
1,031,137,000) shares is calculated as follows: RO IEAT T HEHE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted): TN (EE ) 5
2021
—E -4
‘000
T
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—H8E B nE
shares at 31 March Fg 1,152,860 1,026,593
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RIEA N B BB RT BRI
the Company’s share option scheme BEITRONTE 6,555 2,271
Effect of exercise of warrants TERREFENTE 13,867 2,273
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—HmEEk(EE)
shares (diluted) at 31 March IniEF 1,173,282 1,031,137
Diluted earnings per Share (in HK cents) FEERN OB 16.8 18.7
The diluted earnings per share amount is increased when taking GRS & P B R 2 AT R IR (R 25 R 1
convertible bonds into account. The convertible bonds had an e MR ESHEANGRERBTNES
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the year RESEWE - MR ESREERF L
and were not included in the calculation of diluted eamings per BETEAENR -
share.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 18. V1% - BERZRBEARREY
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ES

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount: (@ EREEHIEK:

Ownership

interests in

land and Properties

building held leased for Leasehold Fumiture  Operation Office Motor Investment
for own use ownuse improvements  andfixtures  equipment  equipment Computers vehicles ~ Sub-total  properties

REERH
1HEEFH  REERN
faks fEhE HENRRE BARKE  EERR HORR AR bt} Nt RENE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THRL THT T T T TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin Thn

Cost o valuation: RAZE:
At 1 April 2020 i 34 37,000 560,524 200,766 94,876 200,985 7,07 14,416 5,763 1,121,427 189,000 1,310,427
Additions hE - 205,376 35,472 13,066 50,344 2412 2,903 2073 311,646 - 311,646
Business acquisiions Bl - 20,680 6,406 3813 11,247 1,252 251 519 53,228 - 53,208
Disposals HE - - (14,690) (9,800) (872) 1) - (923) (26,306) - (26,306)
Disposa of subsidaies HEHBAT 5 (8,399) (6874) (1,150} - (158) (08) - (16679 - (16679
Exchange adusiment ER % - 4876 1,021 660 285 - - - 6,798 - 6,798
Fair vlue adjustment ATEER - - - - - - - - - (2,700) (2,700)
At 31 March 2021 RZ--F=f=+-H 37,000 792,058 222,107 101,465 261,939 10,582 17472 7492 1,450,115 186,300 1,636,415
Representing; fR&:
Cost A 37,000 792,058 222,107 101,465 261,939 10,582 17472 7492 1,450,115 - 1,450,115
Valuation 2021 S 211 - - - - - - - - - 186,300 186,300
37,000 792,058 222,107 101,465 261,939 10,582 17472 7492 1,450,115 186,300 1,636,415
At 1 Aprl 2021 37,000 792,058 222,107 101,465 261,939 10,582 17472 7492 1,450,115 186,300 1,636,415
Additions - 374,687 150,017 10,773 74,153 6,500 6,877 1,320 624,327 - 624,327
Business acquisitions - 105,538 9,729 2,188 20,348 467 405 - 138,675 - 138,675
Disposdls . (6,159) (3039) (6016) 8) 6 ) - (153 - (1534
Exchange adjustment B AT - 5,034 1,662 579 24 - - - 7,499 - 7,499
Fair value adjustment ATEEE - - - - - - - - - 10,800 10,800
At 31 March 2022 WZZ-=F=A=1-H 37,000 1,271,164 380,476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,110 8812 220521 197,100 2,402,371
Representing; f%:
Cost KA 37,000 1,271,164 380,476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,710 8812 220521 - 220521
Valuation 2022 S 2.11 - - - - - - - - - 197,100 197,100

37,000 1,271,164 380476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,710 8812 2205271 197,100 2402371

Accumulated depreciation:  E3t17% :

At1 Aprdl 2020 R-E-ZFMA-A 835 158,625 116,172 14,295 93,272 3422 7,562 2,062 396,245 - 396,245
Charge for the year ERH 1,321 193,302 37,904 6,515 32,089 2,018 3,000 1,740 271,895 - 211,89
Wiitten back on disposals RNEERER - - (2519) - (823) - - (569) (8.911) - (8911)
Disposal of subsiclaries HENBAT - (7,214) (5,740) (1,150) - (139) (98) - (14,341) - (14,341)
Exchange adjustment EiiE - 1,216 761 165 80 - - - 2,222 - 2222
At31 March 2021 RZB--%#ZR=1-B 2,162 345929 146,578 1985 124618 5,301 10,464 328 658,110 - 6510
At 1 April 2021 RZZ-—FMmA-A 2,162 345,929 146,578 19,825 124,618 5,301 10,464 3,233 658,110 - 658,110
Charge for the year EREE 1,321 258,302 41,954 6,112 39,893 2,745 2,903 1,750 360,986 - 360,986
Writen back on disposals MEERER - (2,478) (1,500) (6,76) (76) 4 @ - (10,042) - (10,042)
Exchange adjustment B A% - 1,804 813 213 il - - - 2,901 - 2,901

At 31 March 2022 R-B--%=f=+-R 3489 603,557 193,845 20,174 164,506 8,042 13,359 4983 1,011,955 - 1,011,955
Net book value:

At 31 March 2022 33511 667,607 186,631 88,815 192,070 9,502 11,351 3829 1,193,316 197,100 1,390,416
At 31 March 2021 34,838 446,129 75,529 81,640 137,321 5,281 7,008 4,259 792,005 186,300 978,305
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERRBUARREY

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) EA¢ )]
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) REWMENATFETE
properties
()  Fair value hierarchy (i) 2AFEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TREFREERE Y ER R
Group’s investment properties measured at the end HFHRREEHEREFEZR
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, FE - WiIRRBE B BmEE
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as RIB13E A FEFG ENEED
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The ABZERATFEZL - AFER
level into which a fair value measurement is classified EMERISRIEERMTA
is determined with reference to the observability and BABBOBERMEMEZ T
significance of the inputs used in the valuation SR

technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using o
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using .
significant unobservable inputs
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties

Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties

Fair value at
31 March
2022

i

—g-C
=A=+-H
HATE
HK$000
FHT
LEHLTEANE

REME 197,100

Fair value at
31 March
2021
i
—E-—F
=A=1-R
HATE
HK$'000
THT
LEEATERE

REME 186,300

177

ME BERIKRBEUARKREY
EA¢ )

(b) BEVMENQAFEE @)

) 2DFEBRE

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2022 categorised into
R-ZEB--§=f=+-H
AEAUTERIN AT EE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

E-BR E-BR EZEBR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEr TET TER
- - 197,100

Fair value measurements as at

31 March 2021 categorised into

RZE-—%=A=+—H
HBAATHEAN AT EHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—ER E_ER E=ER
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
- - 186,300
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BRI ot

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

@i

EC Healthcare

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The valuations of investment properties were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, AP
Appraisal Limited, who have among their staff fellows
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. The Group’s finance director
and the chief financial officer have discussions with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
annual reporting date.

Valuation techniques
lER*
Investment properties Market comparison approach
REME MSLEA
178

13. % BMERKRBURRKREY

¥

(b) BEVMENQAFEE @)

Unobservable input
TABTHAZE

Premium (discount) on quality

of the properties
NEEEREGTE)

DNV ERER(HE)

REBE-ZZT-__FR-F-_—
FZA=+—HLEFE F—
ERME_ER MBI EE
B rEEARENE=E
FoREBZHEANATE
[E & 2 [E B 75 M 3R 45 B
REREHERS -

BEYENEEHBLANZR
77 AP Appraisal Limited #£ 7T °
HETARERFEMAZMES
28 Y L EMEMTH
MR B EREELR - A&
B2 BREREREVE
ERMAEMAREFERS
AEITHERNRERMER -

Range

gE

-10%-10%
-10%-10%

(2021: -5%)
(ZB=—F:-5%)
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BRI o

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement

The fair value of properties is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or a
discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of

13. 1% - BMERREARKREY

E4¢ )

(b) BEVMENQAFEE @)

(ii)

FEZEBRAFEFEES

W% > A TAE T B T8 H 8
EEE  HERETHEBY
$RETHAREREEHH
ZIEHEE ARpAEEY
B B I (8
I H 4 XX 5 L BT 18) 1R
B MY EERERERET
BRE  BERHERELA
TEIFES -

EZBRATEFEZHBE

these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: FAZEBEIT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T

Investment properties REYHE

At 1 April AEA—H 186,300 189,000
Fair value adjustment NEEHE 10,800 (2,700)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 197,100 186,300

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net income and
gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss for the

year arise from the properties held at the end of the
reporting period.
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SRR M5

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERRBUARREY

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) =)

(c) Right-of-use assets

c) ERAEEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by ZEEEEEN TN EREEEN
class of underlying asset is as follows: REDFENT :
2022 2021
—=—-= T4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

B TR TET

Ownership interests in leasehold  #FH{rE BN EEHE

land and buildings held for own T+ A FRIFT A R
use in Hong Kong, with remaining  # %5 © FIsefHE A
lease term between 10 & 504
10 and 50 years (i) 33,511 34,838
Properties leased for own use HEEBERNYEE (ii) 667,607 446,129
Motor vehicles and operation RE R IB RS
equipment (iii) 1,260 43,359
702,378 524,326
The analysis of items in relation to leases charged/(credited) RPN GTA)BEERENIE
to profit or loss is as follows: ERSR)ip NN
2021
—E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use %488 & E BRI &9 A A4
assets by class of underlying asset:  BEZITERL ¢
— Ownership interests in leasehold ~ — #{EE AAE + 1 RIBFH
land and buildings FTA iR =
held for own use 1,327 1,327
— Properties leased for own use — HEEERNYE 258,302 193,302
— Motor vehicles and operation — REREBRE
equipment 5,326 5,719
264,955 200,348
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) TE e EhES (ME7) 14,948 12,228
Expense relating to short-term leases  £245 BAFH S 8RR 2 5,378 5,552
COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ COVID-19 8EAFE € % = (2,501)

EC Healthcare
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BRI o

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
HK$480,225,000 (including HK$105,538,000 arising from
business acquisitions) (2021: HK$237,118,000 (including
HK$31,742,000 arising from business acquisitions)). This
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new or renewed tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 22(c) and 28,
respectively.

@i

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

The Group holds a property for its medical business.
The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land
lease, other than payments based on rateable values
set by the relevant government authorities. These
payments vary from time to time and are payable to
the relevant government authorities.
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13. IR BMERREARRKREY

EA¢ )
(c) FEHREEE®)

FN - ANEEAEEER 480,225,000
BT(EREAEBKEMELEN
105,538,000 7t ) (=& = — F ¢
237,118,0007% 7T (& & B 75 W g
MELEH)31,742,000/87T)) ° Z& 58
FEEH Sk EEREHEE e
NENMCAENKER -

HENRESRHABNEEAENE
BN ITREIB 2 RIS R MTRE22(c) %2 28 °

)y FHEBANEELHEETF
AT A R

AEBEREBEERFE R
M AEBBZEMEER
R A A o FBEE %
BABBZEN KSR
FARH — KM BREL
WHEGRRB AR AN H
122 101 A ST 146 B R E ) B AR R
BEXMEORIBERIN - ZEK
AR - YR THERE
KR o
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BRI ot

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouses, clinics and
beauty centres through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 6 years.
Lease payments are usually increased every 2 to 3
years to reflect market rentals.

Other leases

The Group leases motor vehicles and operation
equipment under leases. The leases run for an initial
period of 3 and 8 years respectively. Some leases
include an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated, while some include an option to
purchase the motor vehicle and operation equipment
at the end of the lease term at a price deemed to be
a bargain purchase option. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

(d) Assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 2 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 2 to 3 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable lease
payment.

EC Healthcare
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13. % BMERKRBURRKREY

EA¢ )
(c) FHREEE@E)

(d)

(i) HEEFEERANYE

AEECFBEERHERSE
%EM%%W%%“*‘A
B 2 RERRORER o

HEMNTMBARBER2EE
F-HENK—REMNFE=
FEEIEN - URRTTIZHES -

(i) HtAE

AEERBEHERETERE
BRE - HENMFZHR D 5
RIFRBF - OHEERRE
REEEMA R ERTE
EMEEE  MBOoMEERES
ERHEPRERGSHZEREER
BEENEBRBREIEREE
wEHEEE - HEHERR
ATRFEEN

BREELEHEHENEE

AEBRBLEHEHHEZHEREY
X -REHE-RIF/EME=
FUAESEHEE ‘%H&%ﬁ
e EMED HENTBRTEEM
E=FFRE-R M&%m%ﬂ$°
2EHEMERBETEBEENR -
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BRI o

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERIRBUARREY

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) ¥ )
(d) Assets leased out under operating leases (d RELEHSEHENEE @)
(Continued)
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable 25 B A oA 2R B RS rE U A R 45 B HATE
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be FERH A RS LSHE TR ARLIRTE
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows: EfRRAT
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#E T FHT
Within 1 year 1FR 3,714 2,840
1-2 years 15226 3,525 -
2-3 years 22 3F 2,400 -
9,639 2,840
14. GOODWILL 14. HE
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5% FE T FHT
At the beginning of the year F 1) 477,356 155,437
Business acquisitions ERUEE 33 231,717 327,887
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHB AR 6 - (5,968)
At the end of the year FR 709,073 477,356
2022 2021
—E-= =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET BT
Cost B %N 718,698 486,981
Accumulated impairment losses 2FHREEE (9,625) (9,625)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 709,073 477,356
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BRI ot

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. B8 @)

Impairment testing of goodwill R ERE
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- PEESHReEAEMN((REELEENM])
generating units (‘CGUs”) is as follows: BEERREENT

2022 2021
—=E_— ==k
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#E T FHT
Spine treatment services in Hong Kong EEAHEERE 24,546 24,546
Aesthetic dental services in HEEBRTE — Conya
Hong Kong — Conya 22,051 22,051
Therapy services in Hong Kong — McKenzie &HEAEIRT — EE A 18,736 18,736
Child clinic operations and medical services — F#&E %) 72 i L B & AR
in Hong Kong — Prime Kids — Prime Kids 35,823 35,823
Multi-channel networking and related services EERTPHZRBEHEZH N
in Hong Kong and PRC — Prime Inspire HERABR TS — Prime Inspire 21,305 21,305
Provision of laboratory testing services RECEBRRT
— Pathlab (“Pathlab CGU”) — Az (BB eEESAM]) 134,437 134,437
Clinic operations and medical services PR EEREERG
— New Medical (“New Medical CGU”) — New Medical
([New Medical 34 E4 AL ]) 127,482 127,482
Provision of Obstetrics and Gynaecology REEEERR%E
medical specialist services — Zenith — ([ EMRSEELEM])
(“Zenith CGU") 55,881 55,881
Provision of veterinary services TR BB iR A%
— Dr. Tiong’s Clinics — RENBZ A 39,760 -
Clinic operations and medical services PHEENRBERY
— PMC — PMC 47,764 -
Dental services in Hong Kong — BRETERE — EFEE
Bayley & Jackson (“B&J CGU") (TEMERREEESBN]) 94,042 -
Clinic operations and medical services DT E N BB RTS
— Excellent Power — Excellent Power 20,080 -
Other insignificant goodwill Hip it N ERHEE 67,166 37,095
709,073 477,356
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BRI o

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. B8 @)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations
use cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period (2021: 5 years).
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections are
ranged from 10.5% to 15.6% (2021: 10.2% to 15.5%) and the
growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows of the CGU
beyond the five-year period are ranged from 2% to 2.5% (2021:
1% to 3%).

Based on the assessment of the recoverable amount of the
CGUs, no impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: $nil).

Assumptions were adopted in the value-in-use calculations of all
CGUs, which include discount rate, long term growth rate and
revenue growth rate, on which management has based its cash
flow projections to perform impairment testing of goodwill.
Management determined the cash flow projections and growth
rates based on past performance and its expectations for the
market development. The values assigned to the key
assumptions are consistent with external information sources.
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ZERSEEBMMIRESEIREE
REBEENERT - FREBEDERRE
EREEEMENVBEEMEEN AT
HEARERE(ZE=Z—F: AF)- B
ARRERESHERNIRENF105% =
15.6% (ZZE-—4F 1 102% = 15.5%) * M
ReELEBEMNAFHBENE S RERA
NF2%ZE25%(ZFE=—4F : 1% E3%)
RIE R EHEH o

RIFHIRSEA BN WE £ BTG
HE_BE_—_F=A=1+—RHItEENE
BRAREER(CE-—F:F)o

REtEMARCELBMHERBEERR
ARK BRERE  REEERXR KRS
BEX EEERBEERGREHEET
BEREAR EEEREBEEENEER
HE 5% RO AR E R RN Mg
X - DETEIERIOEERINGFER
HR—E -
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BRI o

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. B8 @)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Management has assessed whether a reasonably possible
change in key assumptions, discount rate, growth rate beyond
the five-year period or revenue growth rate during the forecast
period, could cause the carrying amounts of certain CGUs to
exceed the respective recoverable amounts.

As at 31 March 2022, the estimated recoverable amounts of
Pathlab CGU, Zenith CGU and B&J CGU exceeded their carrying
amounts by approximately HK$37 million, HK$8 million, and
HK$3 million, respectively. The discount rate would need to
increase by 1.1%, 0.5% and 0.3% or the growth rate beyond the
five-year period would need to decrease by 1.8%, 0.7% and
0.3% or the growth rate during the forecast period would need to
decrease by 0.9%, 0.6% and 0.1%, respectively, with all other
variables remain constant, for the estimated recoverable amount
to be equal to the carrying amount of Pathlab CGU, Zenith CGU
and B&J CGU, respectively.

As at 31 March 2021, the estimated recoverable amounts of
New Medical CGU and Zenith CGU exceeded their carrying
amounts by approximately HK$46 million and HK$21 million,
respectively. The discount rates would need to increase by 1.5%
and 1.5% respectively, with all other variables remain constant,
for the estimated recoverable amounts to be equal to the
respective carrying amounts. A reasonably possible change in
growth rate beyond the five-year period would not cause the
carrying amounts of New Medical CGU and Zenith CGU to
exceed the respective recoverable amounts.

For all other CGUs, management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the key assumptions of cash flow
projections would not cause the respective carrying amounts of
these CGUs to exceed their recoverable amounts.
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=+ 23
B 7% a< M 5t
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. EREE
Club IT
memberships Customer [T applications
and school lists and applications  development
debentures  relationships Licence  Trademark platform ~ in progress Others Total
EfigERk  EF4ER BRREANE
ERES BE R BB TERTA ERE f &3t
HK§ 000 HK§ 1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 1000
ThL T TEL T T T Thn TEL
Cost: BA:
At 1 Aprl 2020 R-E-ZENA-A 30,788 29,180 3639 44,707 - - 38,604 146918
Additions hE - - - - - 13230 - 13230
Business acquistions 500 - 253,897 - 160,823 - - - 414720
Exchange adjustment ERAE - - 182 - - 488 - 670
At 31 March 2021 RZB--5Zf=1-H 30,788 283,017 3821 205,530 - 13718 38,604 575,538
At 1 Apri 2021 R-5--%RA-H 30,788 283,017 3821 205,530 - 13718 38,604 575,538
Business acquistions B3 906 - 70,800 - 180,341 - - - 251,141
Transfer 22y - - - - 14025 (14,005) - -
Exchange adjustment EjigE - - 9 - 260 7 - 659
At 31 March 2022 RZTZZE-A=T-H 30,788 363,877 3913 385,87 14,085 - 38,604 827,338
Accumulated amortisation: ~ ZitE# .
At 1 Apri 2020 R-E-ZENA-A - 7,072 2,634 8,856 - - 18271 31,833
Charge for the year Engi - 17457 544 9,142 - - 482 31968
Exchange acjustment B A% - - 10 - - - - 10
At 31 March 2021 RZB--F=f=1-H - 24529 3268 17,998 - - 18,006 63,911
At 1 Apri 2021 RZ5--4MA-H - 24,529 3,268 17,998 - - 18,096 63,911
Charge for the year ERzi - 42083 544 21923 2,004 - 4,825 71,3719
Bxchange adjustment ERaz - - 74 - 37 - - 111
At 31 March 2022 RZ5-Zf=A=1-H - 66,612 3,906 39,921 2,041 - 2,91 135,401
Net hook value: REFE:
At 31 March 2022 RZB-Z%=A=1-H 30,788 287,265 7 345,950 12,244 - 15,683 691,987
At 31 March 2021 RZZ--%=A=1-H 30,788 258,548 533 187,582 - 13718 20,508 511,627
The intangible assets with indefinite useful life are related to club WmERFHAEHNEFTEEVEEENS
memberships and school debentures in Hong Kong. No eEREBKELAEE - FRAWEBEZR
impairment loss was recognised during the year (2021: HK$nil). EEE(ZTE-—%F : THT) -
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BRI o

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets

DIEEERE

16.

REELENER
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
48,381 53,204

(@) Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

Name of joint venture

REbREH

Good Union Corporation
Limited (‘GUC")

BIEEERAR([EIRE])
Good Union Medical Limited (‘GUM’)

Good Union Medical Limited ([ GUM)
Hero Design Group Limited
(formerly known as Hero Design
Studio Limited) (‘HDG")
FlrRER ERARAR ([IE)
Tengkang Healthcare (Hong Kong)
Limited (‘Tengkang’)
BEEEEE(EB)HRLT
(Teg))

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued and
business paid-up capital
ERRIR BETR
EHLERY  AREAER
Hong Kong HK$100

BE 10057

Hong Kong HK$100

BE 10057

Hong Kong HK$3,100,000
B 3,100,000/
Hong Kong HK$15,605,500
B 15,605,500/

GUC and GUM (together referred to as the “GU”), HDG
and Tengkang, the joint ventures in which the Group
participates, are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted

market price is not available.

189

@ AEEREIBALEX(RGEAME
BREBEDEAR) FIBEAT

Proportion of ownership interest

ikl 4 3t

Group's Held

effective by the Held by a

interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity

REE KEAR

BREE  ADAME fis  EEER

50% = 50%  Provision of repairs and
maintenance services
for beauty equipment

50% - 50%  AXRRER{EE
RUER

50% - 50%  Sales of medication
products

50% - 50% HEEMER

35% - 35%  Provision of interior
design services

35% - 3%  REEMEERE

45% - 45%  Provision of medical
services

45% - 4%  REBBRE

AREEBOAECEALER
GUM (4378 [GUJ) « TR R MR - 7
LEAETHREGFELTADE

e
Az °©
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BRI ot

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 16.

(b)

Summarised financial information of the material joint
ventures, GU, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

i)

(b)

EhENER @)

BT BEREMZREHFENEXN
BRECEGUIBERBIE R BEERS
MG HmREEMENERTENT

2022 2021
—=E_= —E -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Gross amounts of GU GU 4z
Current assets TMEAEE 58,355 51,456
Non-current assets EMEEE 7,341 2,291
Current liabilities PEE=RE (26,106) (22,013)
Equity RS 39,590 31,734
Included in the above assets and SFALMEEREE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 7,879 9,611
Current financial liabilities (excluding mEERMAE (B REMEN
trade and other payables and FRIE R AR O1)
provisions) (4,585) (4,383)
2022 2021
—E-—HF —T=—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FABT
Gross amounts of GU GU# %
Revenue WA 76,791 60,095
Profit from continuing operations PNERSE Fd=E S ti0p g 9,856 5,992
Total comprehensive income EHEKELEEE 9,856 5,992
Dividend paid BATAEE (2,000) (2,025)
Included in the above profit: A EHUEF] -
Interest income FEUA 15 21
Interest expense MER (294) (180)
Income tax expense FriSFi X - -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in GU B2 7K £ @B Aris GU #E 25 31 BF
Gross amounts of GU’s net assets GUEEFEHE 39,590 31,734
Group’s effective interest REBERE 50% 50%
Group’s share of GU’s net assets AEEEIECGUEEFE 19,795 15,867
Identifiable intangible assets AHRETAE = 5,848
Fair value adjustment on net assets Tk EE 2 A EFHE
acquired 591 591
Goodwill [EES 12,383 12,383
Carrying amount in the consolidated KRS ISR R A BRE(E
financial statements 32,769 34,689
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16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s shared portion
of joint ventures, excluding GU, that are not individually material
are disclosed below:

16. REELENER @)
AEBHEEZNEEAL LD L(RAE

GU)Bf D 2 BRI BB T

2022 2021
ot~ —E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FAxT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ARIFEERE S EREmMAE
immaterial joint ventures 15,612 18,515
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations REFECE R (B51R), =5 (902) 1,991
Other comprehensive income Efb 2wk = -
Total comprehensive income 2HEWN LR (902) 1,991
17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—REBE QTN ER
2022 2021
—=—-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Share of net assets DEEEFE 1,153 =
Advance to an associate (note 20) M) — B & A R B R (P 3£ 20) 17 1,224
1,170 1,224
Less: Advance to an associate classified B A AR
as current assets under (pfEA [FAENFUE -
“Prepayments, deposits and &é R E M EWFOE |
other receivables” B TIRRBNEE) (17) (1,224)
1,153 -
BEERE 191 FE®RSE 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Details of Kenta Clinic Limited, the Group’s associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

Name of associate

KENAER

Kenta Clinic Limited

RADBABRDF

Place of
incorporation
and business
MR IR
ERLE Y

Hong Kong

B

Particulars of Group’s
issued and effective
paid-up capital interest
ERITRAR FEEER
BARFHE i
HK$1,000 49%
1,000/7T 49%

Kenta Clinic Limited is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted
market price is not available.

Information of Kenta Clinic Limited is as follows:

17. A—REBE AT NER #®)

TXHIIANEENB S ARRAZEME
RARMFRE AN EREDERGER

Bz AR AR -
Proportion of
ownership interest
FERRERMNLA
Held by Held by
the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activity
KAT HWEAR
Fis fi TEEER
- 49%  Provision of medical

services
49% REEERE

BADEMAERRBRIFLTATNERE
BHIHWE

EWWmAI1S™

RAZEMBERDANERAT

2022 2021
—E-C — T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Carrying amount of an associate —MEE A RMEREE 2,353 -
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations R AFERSERNWE(BE) 2,598 (245)
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 Az - -
Total comprehensive income 2HES B 2,598 (245)
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18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of () FEMBERRERNEEERE:
financial position comprise:
2022 2021
—E-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER AT
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products #E - (R RERE S 8,134 7,497
Medications, consumables and Z2Y)  FEM R EAL L E G
other supplies 92,964 32,027
101,098 39,524
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRABIATTABZNEE
recognised as an expense and included in SEIWWOT :

profit or loss is as follows:

2022 2021
—=—= —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FAT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHERERNEEREE

and consumed 349,603 235,317
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ESZ WA

2022 2021

—E-CHF —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Trade receivables S ENFE 155,493 178,984
All of the trade receivables are receivables from contracts with FTEE S ENRIBES AE B BHEZEL
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15. FISHBEANMRERE AL EKGRIE
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. B 5 BWRIE @)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
card settlements and other institutional customers in respect of
provision of medical, aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness
and related services. The credit period is generally 0 to 120 days
for the credit card settlements from the respective financial
institutions and other institutional customers. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

AEBEREFMNBEHBRFIETEBANERF
HHELRHEHEEE BEXARELER
BUARBBRENEMEERS - B85S
BB R EMEETFPRENEAREE
NEBE—REBOE 120K - NEEHEE
P& 22 ) L ok W [ | B WSk TE - T 28 HA A
HERAEEETHEN  AEETERE
B 5 W A 1A T IR R s R R
H b= Lo EHE - B S EKFIETEE °

BERSHR  REFAHFLNESE
YosoR (FER SRR ) RORRER DTN T

2022 2021

—E-— T —F

HK$’°000 HK$’000

THET FHT

Within 1 month 1EAR 118,392 136,674
1 to 3 months 123@A 25,141 29,063
Over 3 months S{EA N E 11,960 13,247
155,493 178,984

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 37.
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. EARIE - REREMERRK

RECEIVABLES B |
2022 2021
=F-=F Seam—aE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Prepayments (note) FARRIE (B 3E) 211,293 167,085
Deposits vy 146,113 90,698
Other receivables H b pE G IE 173,559 169,518
530,965 427,301
Portion classified as non-current D AIERNEIRIEE
— Rental and other deposits — e REMIES (104,436) (66,891)
— Prepayments and other receivables — TERRIE R H A EUGRIE
(note) (M%) (211,961) (169,304)
Current portion BREREE 5 214,568 191,106

Note: In connection with certain acquisitions in previous and current years,
the Group prepaid HK$133,343,000 (2021: HK$122,783,000) to
certain practitioners in respect of their future services to the Group.

The amounts included in prepayments as at 31 March 2022 were
HK$90,077,000 (2021: HK$92,235,000), of which HK$13,334,000
(2021: HK$12,278,000) is expected to be charged to profit or loss
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

The above other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable within one year, except for amounts of
HK$57,350,000 (2021: HK$47,932,000) (including an amount of
HK$6,607,000 (2021: HK$10,924,000) bearing interest at 4.6%—
5% per annum) which are expected to be recovered after more
than one year.

The above other receivables include amounts due from non-
controlling interests, a joint venture and an associate of
HK$139,865,000 (2021: HK$93,963,000), HK$1,056,000 (2021:
HK$2,487,000) and HK$17,000 (2021: HK$1,224,000),
respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand, except for an amount of
HK$50,742,000 (2021: HK$37,008,000) which is expected to be
recovered after more than one year.
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Mizt: RBAFERAFENETHEMNS - K&
EEpETERERGANEBIRHENRER
1% % 78 1 133,343,000/8 T (=T = — 4 :
122,783,000/87T) °

& % /90,077,000 (= T = — F:
92,235,000 7T.) + H 13,334,000 7T (=
T — 4 :12,278,00087T) BH B R RE
AR AR AT+ =@ A AAMERS OB -

L EMERRIEAEER - 2ERATR
—FRURE - HEEEE57,350,0008 T (=F
——1F : 47,932,000 7t ) (B3R IR FH =
4.6% £ 5% 5T E K& %56,607,00087T) (=
T~ —4 110,924,000 7T ) BHIE ARG
—F1&UgE o

it H R IB R IR e i s
—HeEECER—[MEBEQRRESD
139,865,000/ 70 (ZF = — 4 : 93,963,000
% Jr ) 1,056,000 T( = T = — &
2,487,000/ 7T ) X 17,0008 T( - & — —
F £ 1,224,000/870) © ZELEHR AT -
% B RAEESKILE - £ 58 50,742,000
BT (ZZ = —4F : 37,008,000/8 7T ) KR I -
ZeREEERBR—FrKE -
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. MNHE - BREREMEYRK

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The above other receivables also include an amount of
HK$1,254,000 (2021: HK$1,254,000) due from a related
company which is related to the profit guarantee in connection
with the acquisition of 50% equity interest in GU during the year
ended 31 March 2017. The related company is beneficially
owned by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai, the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

The above prepayments include an amount prepaid to a joint
venture of HK$6,710,000 (2021: HK$5,165,000) which is trade in
nature.

The non-current portion of prepayments and other receivables
include prepayments to contractors of HK$8,254,000 (2021:
HK$16,387,000) in respect of progress payment for renovations
under progress, of which HK$7,330,000 (2021: HK$11,735,000)
is prepaid to a joint venture.
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15 (&)

Lt HE RN R EE R —BEED
A) 3R IE1,254,0008 w( = & = — F
1,254,000 7T) * ZREHEBE_T—+
FZA=Z1+— B ILFEWEGU 50% % #
FREFIRERR - BEARAARARER
KRR EEOREERER

FEMNRESEEMN —HEECENR
T86,710,000/8 70 (ZZ = —4F : 5,165,000
BL) BRE SIS -

T8 A FRIE K H M fE WK IB M SERD ER Ef 5 B2
FERETR R TR A S SR
YEH B 78 1+ FUIE 8,254,000 T (- — —
% 16,387,000 7t ) + E 77,330,000 %
TT(=ZZ = —4 : 11,735,000/ 70) B &
F—REEDHE-
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. EWEE
(@) Financial assets at fair value through other (@ BRAFEFAHMZEWEN
comprehensive income EREE
2022 2021
—E_—fF T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Unlisted equity investments kETRAERE 14,588 =
The Group designated above investments at FVOCI, as the REEIETE LR B R AT E AR
investments are held for strategic purpose. As at 31 March 2T AR E BRE Ty 5B
2022, the investments held by the Group were principally BHmEgsE - RZZE-__F=H
engaged in market and data research and provision of =+—B AEERBENKREXER
medical services. No dividends were received on these R 5 REUEIT I MR B ERTS -
investments during the year (2021: HK$nil). FARAWEBBMAEBZERENRS
(Z2=Z—F TFm) °
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit (b) RAFEFABZNESBMEE
or loss
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Non-Current FE
— Unlisted equity investments — FELMRAKRE 45,154 44,145
— Unlisted fund investments — FEMESKE 41,533 48,366
— Investments in life insurance policies — AERBRIEE 55,367 =
142,054 92,511
Current T E
— Unlisted fund investments — LEMESKE 1,839 2,885
143,893 95,396
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 2 RERREEBYUREHEF
=h

DEPOSITS TR
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits (@ RERRTEEYUREHF
comprise: NEFE
2022 2021
—E_— T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FRETT
Cash at bank and in hand IRITHER N FERS 870,228 931,064
Time deposits with original maturity REEAABB=EAH
over 3 months (pledged) EEFR (B EM) 2,000 4,751
872,228 935,815
Less: Time deposits with original maturity J& : R Ef H B8 = 1# 5 &9
over 3 months (pledged) EHF R (EHRA) (2,000) (4,751)
Cash and cash equivalents R RIRSEEY 870,228 931,064

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods depending on the Group’s immediate cash
requirements, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Included in cash and cash equivalents, HK$14,092,000
(2021: HK$32,790,000) are denominated in Renminbi and
deposited with the banks in the PRC. These deposits are
not freely convertible and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
Government of the PRC.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

22 BEeRBEESESEYURERE

X (##)

(b)) BMEETHRELEEBENYER
TR AEEREEDRELERE
B - @%ﬁé&#ﬁA“ o B
BEBFELEER sﬁﬁémiy
KRB RBENAEBOGA

ji/mi«riﬁqj %ﬁ/\’%ﬁ'}r F‘ﬁé/ﬁ@]ﬁ'ﬁ
/\i}muig‘]’gﬂﬁl <

Bank Lease Convertible
borrowings liabilities bonds
(Note 25) (Note 28) (Note 32) Total
RITHER HESE TRRES
(Mt 25) (HzE28) (HzE32) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEx THx T
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-Z%MmAE-A 261,951 457,953 - 719,904
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSTEZED:
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HERTERAENE 304,839 - - 304,839
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFIER (279,442) - - (279,442)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENRERSNERD L - (139,534) - (139,534)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERHERSMNFED S = (8,371) - (8,371)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BEREIERFE (8572) - - (8,572)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds %47 AT k&5 F1EFUA
— liability component —8E%D - - 238,118 238,118
Total changes from financing cash flows BEASRECEDEE 16,825 (147,905) 238,118 107,038
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 3,887 - 3,887
Other changes: b8
Increase in lease liabilties from entering FRITVHAEEHHE
into new leases during the year BEEm - 200,756 - 200,756
Increase in lease liabilities from business ERBERREAELN
acquisitions - 30,911 - 30,911
Settlement of lease liabilties by issuance BRETENEARESE
of shares - (64,354) = (64,354
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENS - 12,228 - 12,228
Interest on bank borrowings FITBHFE 8,572 - - 8,572
Interest on convertible bonds* MRRESRFS - - 1,701 1,701
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBLA - (1,236) - (1,236)
Total other changes Hihgaes 8,572 188,305 1,701 108,578
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£=R=+-H 287,348 502,240 239,819 1,029,407
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 2 RERBEESEEYURERRE
DEPOSITS (continued) K (4)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) BMETBFEELEEENEHE
financing activities (Continued) (&)
Bank Lease Convertible
borrowings liabilities bonds
(Note 25) (Note 28) (Note 32) Total
RITHER HESE TRRES
(=2 25) (W=t 28) (MzE32) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THAL THL THL
At 1 April 2021 R-B--FEMA-H 287,348 502,240 239,819 1,029,407
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSREZEE:
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBER (287,348) - - (287,348)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHERENELATS - (267,691) - (267,691)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BRAERENFSEH - (14,948) - (14,948)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITESNE (3,399) - - (3,399)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSRE EEER (290,747) (282,639) - (6573,386)
Exchange adjustments EHAZ - 3,485 - 3,485
Other changes: Hiv#5
Increase in lease liabilties from entering FRIUHREEHAE
into new leases during the year BEEN - 364,208 - 364,208
Increase in lease liabilties from business EREMETMEAREN
acquisitions - 106,910 - 106,910
Early termination of leases REKHEE - (8,750) - (3,750)
Interest on lease liabilties REARIE - 14,948 - 14,948
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEANE 3,399 - - 3,399
Interest on convertible bonds* ARRESFE 3 - 10,763 10,763
Conversion of convertible bonds aRESSk = : (14,873) (14,873)
Total other changes AthESH0E 3,399 482,316 (4,110) 481,605
At 31 March 2022 R-B-—E=fA=+-8 - 705,402 235,709 941,111

g Among the interest on convertible bonds of HK$19,173,000
(2021: HK$2,848,000) charged for the year ended 31 March
2022, coupon payable of HK$8,410,000 (2021: HK$1,147,000)
was included in other payables and accruals before settlement
of such. Coupon payment of HK$5,850,000 (2021: HKS$nil) was

settled by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME

DEPOSITS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement

2 RERBEEEEYURERRE
X (#)

(c) HENRERHAR

IINGARHEERERNEESHER

for leases comprise the following: AREIE

2022 2021
=F==F s S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FAHT
Within operating cash flows KERERE 5,378 5,552
Within financing cash flows MERERE 282,639 147,905
288,017 158,457

These amounts relate to the following: ZECRENTSIEEH -
2022 2021
—=E—_= — T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FHT
Lease rentals paid EfNHEERe 288,017 153,457

23. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

23. ESEMNRIE

& 5B SRR R S AT (B R A B
T -

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Within 1 month 1EAR 38,738 25,871
110 2 months 1Z221@A 13,712 8,145
2 to 3 months 22 31EA 12,536 9,025
Over 3 months SMEA L E 10,215 3,616
75,201 46,657

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally have

payment terms within 60 days.
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HitENRIEREFTER

2022 2021
—s—-= T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Other payables and accruals HinENRIBRERSER 637,590 386,492
Provision for reinstatement costs EERAERE 21,035 15,070
658,625 401,562

Portion classified as non-current DA RIEANERR
— Provision for reinstatement costs — BEERAREE (13,772) (13,000)
— Other payables — HEENFUA (405,205) (220,115)
Current portion BNERER 7> 239,648 168,447

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average
payment term of three months except for those specified below.

Current portion of other payables include amounts due to non-
controlling interests of HK$18,300,000 (2021: HK$30,256,000),
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other payables include an aggregate amount of HK$3,784,000
(2021: HKS$nil) which is interest-bearing at 1.12%-3.48% per
annum.

Other payables include consideration payables amounting to
HK$411,404,000 (2021: HK$232,938,000), which are related to
the business acquisitions during the year ended 31 March 2022,
of which HK$405,205,000 (2021: HK$220,115,000) is expected
to be settled after more than one year.

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the sites
on which they are located.
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25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITHEN

At 31 March 2022, the bank borrowings were repayable as R-TE-_—F=F=+—8 ' RIEXN
follows: EFHNT

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TATT

Portion of bank borrowings due for *EW FHAEE R IRITE K

repayment within 1 year which contain R BIRENREBEKR

a repayable on demand clause - 63,497
Portion of bank borrowings due for —F R BAERENEITER

repayment after 1 year which contain -E‘Bﬁj\ C BB EREB IR

a repayable on demand clause

223,851

287,348

Bank borrowings RITIER
— secured — B
— unsecured — A

2022
—E__—F

HK$’000
FExT

2021
—E-—4F
HK$’'000
T

- 250,833
- 36,515

- 287,348

At 31 March 2022, investment properties of HK$197,100,000
(2021: HK$186,300,000), ownership interests in leasehold land
and building held for own use of HK$33,511,000 (2021:
HK$34,838,000) and time deposits of HK$2,000,000 (2021
HK$3,000,000) were pledged to obtain banking facilities from
various banks.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s or
relevant subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities may be
subject to repayment immediately.

At 31 March 2021, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached.
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26. DEFERRED REVENUE 26. EFEUWR A
The deferred revenue is mainly related to the provision of medical, EEW A E Z EiR EQF Q%%WJ«X K
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services and multi- ERRBEMBGARZE BB E LA

channel networking and related services.

The service period for medical, aesthetic medical and beauty and
wellness services is generally one year and all customers are
required to prepay the packages in full prior to utilisation of
services.

Upfront payment is required for certain customers for provision of
multi-channel networking and related services.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: year ended 31 March 2021) that was included in
deferred revenue as at 1 April 2021 was HK$562,536,000 (1 April
2020: HK$436,620,000).

All of the deferred revenue as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 is
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year from the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR R M5

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (@)

position represents:

27. REMBMRRRANFEB

A B R AR BIRTR RS -

2022 2021
—E-_F —E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBFESHEE
for the year 65,395 46,274
Provision arising from business acquisitions = 75 Y i 2= 4 ) i 5,841 14,405
Provisional tax paid B EHFEE (50,449) (34,370)
20,787 26,309
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating ERFFERBAN
to prior years FIST B E SR 16,980 12,699
37,767 39,008
Provision for tax outside Hong Kong EBBINRIB RS 8,435 2,539
46,202 41,547
Represented by: R
Current tax recoverable A Yg Bl BN EAFR 1B (27,597) (3,239
Current tax payable FEfTRNEARS 18 73,799 44,786
46,202 41,547
205 FE®RSE 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% a< M 5t
27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED . RENBRRRANFTEHR @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (b) EZEHE(EE) EE
Temporary
Temporary differences
differences between Fair value
between  depreciation adjustment
right-of-use  and the related arising from
Unused assets and depreciation business
tax losses lease liabilities allowance  combinations
FREEER REEARNE
HEAEZH BBl REBAHEL
FBRAREEE WERER TREH WATERE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TAn Thn
At 1 April 2020 ﬁé T-ZFMA-R (25,002) (1,434) 5,168 10,071 (11,197)
(Credted)/charged to RER GEA) /B
profit or loss (1,200) (2,586) (768) (4,478) (9,082
Business acquisitions 38 - - - 68,428 68,428
At31March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R=ZE-—%£=F=+-H
“E--£NA-A (26,202) (4,020) 4,400 74,021 48,199
(Credted)/charged to RESGEA) /B
profit or loss (4,544) (2,237) 2,203 (10,650) (15,228)
Business acquisitions E3 - - (141) 41,438 41,297
At 31 March 2022 W-E-Z5=ZR=1-H (30,746) (6,257) 6,462 104,809 74,268
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BRI o

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27. REMBRRRANNFAEBHR @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of mEMBRRROEER
financial position
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T FH&T
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE TR R FERH
consolidated statement of financial position Lkmlﬁéﬁ (30,981) (26,548)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the BB RERR
consolidated statement of financial position /LL%RIEE% 105,249 74,747
74,268 48,199
Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised KRR IEESEREE
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of REBEWERANREELPRELNHIBE
tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the PRC of HK$16,749,000 816,749,000/ w( — T = — %F:
(2021: HK$12,669,000) as it is not probable that future taxable 12,669,00078 70 ) g RIELEFIEE &E - RRE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in BN ER EER R EETA A ARK
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not FERBOEF BB TS AN ER - B
expire under current tax legislation, except for the tax losses of NTRE MEAEEBEB 2 Z|H KA
HK$12,413,000 (2021: HK$10,499,000) relating to the Group’s KNEBRRHBEH E'j = gg MR OIE B
entities in the PRC, which will be expired within five years. 12,413,000/ . ( —Z& = —4 : 10,499,000
BT BRI - RN EFREE -
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have material RIBE-_ N -_FTE-_—F=A=+—8 "
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities. AEFWESKABRELCHBRE -
28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&SE

At 31 March 2022, the lease liabilities were payable as follows:

R-ZB-—_F=A=+—H0 ENHHEE
aEmT

2022 2021
—E-= T —F

Within 1 year 1FR 318,716 207,453
After 1 year but within 2 years 1EAEE2FER 179,689 184,628
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FUEBESER 193,332 103,901
After 5 years 5% 13,665 6,258
386,686 294,787
705,402 502,240
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BRI ot

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 29. B - REERERE
DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HEZILoEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing $§lmg\%ﬁ§%%ﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂﬂnz
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated MY BREHENGAEREHE - AN
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BRIz ﬁm\im EEKRH F'Eja']
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s FEEEE T

individual components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the year are set out below:

Share-based
Share Share  Contribution compensation Capital Accumulated
capital WE] reserve reserve reserve losses
UBRBZAH
B BRepEE &R M Bt ZithR

(note 29(d)(i) (note 29(d)(iv)) (note 29(d)(v)) (note 29(d)(vi))

(MEE29(a)i)) (BraE2o(d)iv)) (HERE29(d)(v)) (M¥&E29(d)(vi))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TERL TER

At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFNA-R 10 723821 - 23,360 - (218,677) 528,520
Issuance of shares upon exercise of TEBREREIRG

share options 29(c) - 10,475 - (8,312 - - 7,163
Issuance of shares to settle lease liabiliies /TIPSR ERE 29(0) = 56,949 - - - - 56,949
Issuance of shares for the FERERAGERARG

Co-ownership Scheme 29(c) - 57,183 - - - - 57,183
Issuance of shares for acquisitions SR B AR RTRG

of subsidiaries 29(c) 1 140,892 - - - - 140,893
Issuance of shares for acquisition BB AT

of partial interests in subsidiaries BORREIRG 29(c) - 101,358 - - - - 101,358
Other issuance of shares HW"‘ﬁﬂx 7 29() - 42,500 - - - - 42,500
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  HEAINEREE AL B

compensation: Share option %R‘*Mé ERiE 31 - - - 2,170 - - 2,170
Issuance of convertible bonds BT kES 32 - - - - 66,082 - 66,082
Issuance of warrants for acquisition FUEHBARNBIES

of partial interests in subsidlaries RTRRER 29(d)vi) - - - - 10,461 - 10,461
Dividend declared BEERRE 29(b) - - - - - (113,858) (113,858)
Loss and total comprehensive income  FRERRZEYLEE

for the year - - - - - (7,19) (7,19)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 W-E--%=A=1-H

“E-—-FNA-H 1 1,133,184 - 22,218 76,543 (339,731) 892,225

Issuance of shares upon exercise of IR EIRA

share options 29(c) =* 44,191 - (10,493) - - 33,698
Issuance of shares for the RERERAGERTRN

Co-ownership Scheme 29(c) =* 15,915 - - - - 15,915
Issuance of shares for acqisitions RUERBAREIRG

of subsidiaries 29(c) -* 1,121 - - - - 1121
Other issuance of shares HipB17RH 29) 1 480,760 - - - - 480,761
Conversion of convertible bonds B THRES 29(0) -+ 19,000 - - (4127 - 14,873
Issuance of shares upon exercise HERRIER R BTRG

of warrants 29(c) =* 283,149 - - (1,749) - 281,400
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  ERNEREE AR B

compensation: Share option %MN% faiiE 31 - - - 20,426 - = 20,426
Dividend declared BEERRE 29(b) - - - - - (271,956) (271,956)
Loss and total comprehensive income  FABERZENFEE

for the year 5 o = o - (89,727) (39,727)
At 31 March 2022 R-B--#=f=+-R 12 198332 -+ 32,151 70,667 (651414) 1,434,742
* Amount less than HK$1,000. * 2 BB 1,00087T °
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BRI o

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends

29, BA& - EERKRE @

(i) Dividends payable by the Company to equity

shareholders:

(ii)

share)

Final dividend of 4.20 HK cents

Interim dividend declared and paid of 2 &k & 5z /<4 23A% 2
10.20 HK cents per ordinary share
(2021: 3.00 HK cents per ordinary

AR BI 0. 20;‘%%

B —F GRE
3.00#A1l)

MR E IR R R B REIIE

(2021: 12.90 HK cents) per ordinary iﬁ&ﬁ‘m§4 20781

share proposed after the end of
the reporting period

(Z2=—

©12.90 A1)

i

)

b) BE

RARENEZRRORE

Final dividend in respect of

the previous financial year,
approved and paid during

the year, of 12.90 HK cents per
ordinary share (2021: 8.00 HK
cents per ordinary share)

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous

financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

R R KRS #9
M BERERMEE

FREBAR 12.90 1L
(ZZ2=—%: 8K
&AL 8.0078 L)

(ii)

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—4F
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
F#& T FHIT
120,108 33,616
49,492 138,161
169,600 171,777
¥R 25 B Faﬁ%fé%m/)ﬁ?fZﬂiﬁﬂ
IR B M AR R BB R ER
afE e

- RFEREENTAE
NEEERROKRE - RAE

FEMERIKS :
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
151,848 80,242
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BRI ot

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

29, BA& - EERKRE @)

(c) Share capital (c) B=
2022 2021
—E-C —T-—%F
Number of Number of
shares shares  HK$'000
RHEE ErnELE TAT

Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.00001 each BREE0.00001 A LAl  38,000,000,000 380,000 38,000,000,000 380,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid LZER BREORERE
At 1 April RIEA—H 1,071,015,803 11 985,277,448 10
Exercise of share options () IEREIRAE () 6,939,000 =+ 2,297,500 =
Issuance of shares as part of the FIRIMEREBIE

consideration of business acquisitions (i) BARE() 796,360 -* 24,669,739 1
Issuance of shares as part of the BIIRMERMFEZRRE

consideration to acquire additional equity WER—EHBARR

interest in a subsidiary from non-controlling  EBSMNRER A R 1B (i)

shareholders (iii) - - 22,524,000 =
Issuance of shares to settle lease liabilities (v) 247D AR EE & () - - 12,884,337 By
Issuance of shares for the Co-ownership BEREE AR

Scheme (v) BT (v) 2,878,125 =+ 13,362,779 =
Conversion of convertible bonds (vi BRI ES (V) 3,646,833 = - -
Issuance of share upon exercise of warrants (vil) 31178 7R B 75 51 TR 15 (i) 46,246,353 = - -
Other issuance of shares (vii) H A E17 A (viil 46,849,793 1 10,000,000 -
At 31 March R=A=1+—H 1,178,372,267 12 1,071,015,808 11

Amount less than HK$1,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

U

EC Healthcare

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
issued 1,845,000 shares (2021: 2,095,000 shares),
155,000 shares (2021: 160,000 shares), 25,000
shares (2021: nil share) and 565,000 shares (2021:
42,500 shares) upon exercise of share options by the
relevant grantees at exercise prices of HK$3.083,
HK$3.50, HK$5.00 and HK$6.00 respectively under
the Share Option Scheme. These new shares ranked
pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.
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)

RBEE-_ZT-_—_F=A=+—
BILFE - ARERIEEKE
HEIER AR AT B ARE
B 4% 17 1 {83.037%8 JT » 3.50
7T~ 5.007%8 7t & 6.007% 7T 5
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155,000 B (Z T = —F :
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BRI o

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

(i)

In addition, the Company allotted and issued
4,349,000 shares to GCP Properties Limited (“GCP”)
at exercise price of HK$5.53 per share upon exercise
of share options in connection with an acquisition of
unlisted investment equity (see note 31(d)(i)).

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered into by the Group in connection with the
acquisitions of Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons
Limited (“Bayley & Jackson”), 796,360 shares were
allotted and issued to the sellers as part of the
purchase considerations during the year ended 31
March 2022. The shares are measured at quoted
share price on the date of this business acquisition.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreements
entered into by the Group in connection with the
acquisitions of Pathlab Medical Laboratories Limited
and New Medical Center Limited, 19,907,834 shares
and 4,761,905 shares were allotted and issued to the
respective sellers as part of the purchase
considerations during the year ended 31 March
2021. The shares were measured at quoted share
price on the respective dates of such business
acquisitions.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in
connection with the acquisition of additional 24%
equity interest in Hong Kong Pain and Wellness
Solution Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, the Company allotted and issued
22,524,000 shares to the sellers as part of the
purchase consideration during the year ended 31
March 2021.
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29, BA& - EERKRE @

(c)

& NE )

(i)

(i)

BEoN + AR A BT B UL R IE
EWHEERA (2 RBKEES10)
() B ERER  UAER
5.53/% JT ®) 17 & {8 M GCP
Properties Limited ([GCPJ)
i 2% K 317 4,349,000 (%A% {7 °

REANEEGWEENEE F
Bl e AR A R ([ F &
ENFEIUMBEE W A
REBE-_ZE-_—_&E=A=+—
HIEFEDERE R
796,360 IR N E R D B E
RE - BEARMNEZERBEAER
WS B ME S B EAFT SR A AR (B 5T

=
z=-°

BERNEEF W ERBLES
5 FT A BR A 7 & New Medical
Center Limited FTR] 3 A0 B & 1
®HEEEIREE=-ZT=—
FZA=Z+—BILEEEDH
JE D 2% K2 2517 19,907,834 J%
4,761,905 & Ix 10 1E & &8 2 B8
BERE - BEARNDEREBHEE
SR AE R B AT AR (B 5T

=
2= -°

BEJRKERAAIEEE
#f & 2 3] Hong Kong Pain and
Wellness Solution Limited 58 4h
24% BT E B iz - A
AFRBE-_ZE-_—&=A
=t+—RHIEFEREHBER
%17 22,524,000 B f% 17 1E A& &6
DEERE -
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BRI ot

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

EC Healthcare

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
allotted and issued 12,884,337 shares with fair value
of HK$56,949,000 to settle lease liabilities.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
allotted and issued 2,878,125 shares (2021:
13,362,779 shares) at aggregate cash considerations
of HK$15,915,000 (2021: HK$57,183,000) to an
independent trustee, which subscribed the shares on
behalf of the participants of the Co-ownership
Scheme (see note 30(b)).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a holder of
convertible bonds partially converted the convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$19,000,000 to
3,646,833 shares at a conversion price of HK$5.21.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 44,246,353
shares (see note 32) and 2,000,000 shares (see note
31(dj(ii)) were issued and allotted to warrant holders
at exercise prices of HK$6.17 and HK$4.20 with an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$273,000,000
and HK$8,400,000, respectively, upon exercise of
such warrants.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
allotted and issued 46,849,793 (2021: 10,000,000)
shares at cash consideration of HK$480,761,000
(2021: HK$42,500,000) to an independent third

party.
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29, BAX - EERKRE @)

(c)

& NE )

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

HE-_T-_—4F=A=+—H
IEFE  ARFERBERETA
F {E 5A56,949,000/8 7T H
12,884,337 IR A LA A &
af&E-

HE-_T-_—_F=F=+—H
IHFEE - ARRIAERESHKE
15,915,000 8L (ZFE=—4F :
57,183,000/% 7T ) B 2% & ¥ 17
2878125k ( — & = — & :
13,362,779% ) IR0 F B %
A EREFREEAGE
SHERBERG(2HENE
30(b)) °

BHE-_Z-_—_F#=/F=+—8H
IEFE - JBmRkESFE AR
7K % %A 419,000,000 7 JT B9 AT
R EFHEH 12 5 3,646,833
fZhgfn - MmR(ERS.21 BT °

HE-_Z-_—#=-A=+—H
LEFE - RITE B BRI REE
B - 2817 R BC % 44,246,353
BB (2 B M 332 &
2,000,000 % % 15 ( 2 B3 MY 7
31(d)i)) TRKEFEFTAE A
TEEBD R A617E T K42
B BREeREDAA
273,000,0007% 7T K& 8,400,000
BT ©

BE-_Z-_—_F#=A=+—8H
IEFE  KRRIR—BBILE
= 75 PP 8 % %517 46,849,793 1%
f&1n (== = —4 : 10,000,000
&) - 3R & K8 % 480,761,000
BT (= Z = —4F : 42,500,000
BIT) o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issuance
of the shares of the Company. Under the Cayman
Companies Law, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of the business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the consolidated
share capital of Union (Group) Investment Limited
(“UGIL") and a subsidiary acquired under common
control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3.1.

Contribution reserve

The contribution reserve represents the difference
between the share of equity of Union Health Services
Holding Limited and the par value of share capital for
the issuance of new shares arising from the
reorganisation completed prior to the initial public
offering of the Company.
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29, BA& - EERKRE @

d) RENEERBH

@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

gri ey

Bt s (B e AR A RO B ) T B
BB IT AR R BT UER P A5
FIELZENER - RIFFS A
SREDE - AR R ER
AEPIRTARARRER - HEE
BEEE Y KB BHE AR
AIRBRNERENBEES
BIEPER M ZET

FOtHE

FOTREBELRS (EE)IRESR
FRAaE ([UGIL)) B—R U EEm
REH B A A (ZERIZEH]) &Y
RAPRA -

B X &

XA S RANES
S5 5N S B 7 9 5 A A S
2o RE BRI R
B H BRI -

HERE

& & 5 48 9 14 Union Health
Services Holding Limited #) %
BEARNTHRARAAEERRE
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BRI ot

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

EC Healthcare

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options and share awards granted
to employees, registered practitioners or other third
parties of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payment in note 3.1.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises:

()  the amount allocated to the unexercised equity
component of convertible bonds and related
warrants issued by the Company in the prior
year, recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 3.1; and

(i) the fair value of warrants issued to the sellers of
Hong Kong Pain and Wellness Solution Limited,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to subscribe 10,000,000 shares as
part of the purchase consideration to acquire
24% equity interest in this non-wholly owned
subsidiary in the prior year.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the fair value of
consideration payables to acquire the remaining
equity interests in Pathlab Medical Laboratories
Limited and Bayley & Jackson on the respective
dates of completion of the first tranche of such
acquisitions. The subsequent changes in fair value of
the consideration payables are either recognised in
profit or loss or equity depending on the nature of the
transactions.
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29, BA& - EERKRE @)

(d) REHNEERBEN @)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

BARR 42 2 A OB <& 2 18

PARAD S OB & R HE AR 1B
BfFE3.1 AT Sk R AR 10 /5 E
Z AN R B A 0 & S IR SR P
RETALBERE - &

HEAME =T OB RMER
TTE R BE R B K ) 2R Y
RFAE

A
AR

() IRIFEMESINGFERE
BRBEFEARRD A%
TR ES RIEER
fE R R TS
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&

@ M Hong Kong Pain and
Wellness Solution Limited
(RRBIMFEREWB D
7)) B BT R E R
A FE ARE
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(€)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(viii) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9
that are held at the end of the reporting period.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$1,364,063,000 (2021: HK$815,671,000).

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND
CO-OWNERSHIP SCHEME

(a)

Share Award Scheme

On 26 September 2016, the Board of directors (the
“Board”) approved the Company’s Employees’ Share
Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”). Pursuant to
the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company had
appointed a trustee for the purpose of administering the
Share Award Scheme and holding the shares purchased
for the Share Award Scheme before the award and vesting
of the same. The Company paid to the trustee from time to
time for the purchase of shares held for the Share Award
Scheme from market.

The terms of the Share Award Scheme provide for the
award of shares in the Company to employees of the
Group as part of their compensation package. Subject to
the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
determine at the time of grant the vesting date for the
relevant awarded shares.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the

Group did not hold any shares for this scheme nor grant
any shares to the employees under this scheme.
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29, BA& - EERKRE @

(d) RENEERBEN @

(e)

(vii) AFEEE (FTRE)
ATARE FIRE) 2
MR REE B B RE
RRIEOF T AR A FER
AR 2 ERGERRIBRE 2
ATERHEHFE -

AN B

RZEBE_—_F=A=+—8 ' &xR7F
AL T AR R=RENFEES
1,364,063,000/% 70 (ZZT=—4F :
815,671,000/7C) ©
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30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND
CO-OWNERSHIP SCHEME (continued)

(b)

EC Healthcare

Co-ownership Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
adopted the Co-ownership Scheme. Pursuant to the
scheme, the Company would grant shares (“Award
Shares”) to the invited employees of the Group. The
purpose of the Co-ownership Scheme is to incentivise the
employees. The Award Shares are the contingent rights to
receive the Company’s shares depending on the level of
the basic earnings per share (“EPS”) for the year ending 31
March 2023 (2023 EPS”) and the cumulative EPS for the
years ending 31 March 2021, 2022 and 2023 (“3-year
Cumulative EPS”). The minimum level of the EPS and
3-year Cumulative EPS to be achieved before any Award
Shares will be granted are 1.33 times over the basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2020
(“2020 EPS”), and 3.64 times over the 2020 EPS,
respectively.

The invited employees were required to transfer shares or
cash to a trust managed by an independent appointed
trustee, in which the cash was used to (i) acquire shares
from the market or two directors of the Company; or (i)
subscribe the Company’s shares being allotted at market
price. As at 31 March 2022, 15,283,120 shares (2021:
23,183,069 shares) were held on trust by the trustee on
behalf of the employees.

The Group has not recognised any share-based payment
expenses in connection with the Co-ownership Scheme.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
26 September 2016 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at consideration ranging from HK$3.03 to HK$13.30 to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
within 10 years commencing on the date on which it became
effective. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

31. [BIRESTE

ARBR=ZZT—ANENA=+NBIRME
MRIEETE AR ETERENBRE

SEES (BEASEEMNARIES) UK
fE3.038 T £13.308 T M AL - A
REARRABRD - RIESITEHHISET -
BRETESEEEREBETEERR
£ BIERER THE AERREAR
NE—REEE - WEHBARGES -

(a) BHEERREFDT :

as follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
ITEZE BEGRH BRESHEH
Options granted to directors:
BTFESNBRE :
— On 26 September 2016 5,020,000  Exercisable in ten tranches from 10 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2026
—RIZE-—REFNLAZTRA AN RREL IR -T—tF 104
—A—HBHEZZT-REF
F+ZA=+—RHETE
— On 18 September 2017 735,000  Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
1 January 2027 to
17 September 2027
—RZZE—tFNA+NH ApRREs —#HR_T_+LF 104
—B—HE-Z_+F
A+ REETE
— On 21 August 2018 300,000  Exercisable in two tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028
—RZE—-NFNAZ+—H AIDAREZMHN T —NF 104F

BERRER 217
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREE @)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are () BRHEHERREHDT )

as follows: (Continued)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
ITEZE BEGRH BRESHTEH
— On 21 August 2018 500,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028
—RZZE-N\FENAZ+—H AR RRAE MR —E—NF 104
—AZHEZZZ)N\F
R Z+HERETE
— On 2 October 2018 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028
—RZE-\F+HZH AN RRAE MR _T—NF 104
—AZHEZZ-)N\F
+A—BEMTTE
— On 2 October 2018 735,000  Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
3 January 2028 to
1 October 2028
—RZE-NEFE+AZH AR RRASE s —HR T N\F 104
—A=ZRE-_ZT-)N\F
+A— A BRETE
— On 28 November 2018 1,500,000 Exercisable in seven tranches from 9 years
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028
—RZE-N\F+—A=+NH A AEHR=_T—NF 9F
—AZBEZZTN\F
+— A=+t RAERETE
— On 12 July 2019 1,000,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 5 years
2 January 2020 to
11 July 2024
—RZE-NFtA+=AH AN BRRASEzZMOFANR T =_TF 5%
—AZBE-—ZT-_mE
+ A+—B @I E
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows: (Continued)

Number of
instruments
THEHH
— On 16 October 2019 735,000
—RZE—hF+A+AH
— On 16 October 2019 1,000,000
—RZE—NAFE+AH+RH
— On 15 March 2021 2,500,000
—RWZE-_—F=ZA+HH
— On 24 September 2021 10,000,000
—RZE—FhA=+MmA
— On 1 December 2021 10,950,000
—RZE=—F+=-H—H
ERfE 219
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(@) BREERRMGHFOT : @)

Vesting conditions

BB R

Exercisable in one tranche from
2 January 2029 to
15 October 2029

AN ARZE s R NF
—AZHEZZZ-NHF
+A+HBHETE

Exercisable in five tranches from
16 October 2019 to
15 October 2029
ANRRAEZ AN _T—NF
+A+REE-E-hEF
+ A+ A A BRETE

Exercisable in eight tranches from
15 March 2022 to
14 March 2031

QIS IEE AN i e
—A+HERE=Z=—%F
=R+ mAS\ETE

Exercisable in ten tranches from
26 September 2022 to
23 September 2031
ASRRASZTHNR T Z—F
NAZ+AREEZZ=—%F
NA -+ =BHMTE

Exercisable in nine tranches from
1 December 2022 to
30 November 2031

AR BRSZAHNR T ==
+-—A—BE=_F=—F
+—A=+RA8HETE

Contractual life
of options

BRESHFH

10 years

104F

10 years

104F

10 years

1048

10 years

104

10 years

104
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREE @)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are () BRHEHERREHDT )

as follows: (Continued)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
ITHEE BEEHG BRESHTEH
Options granted to employees:
BRFEENERE :
— On 18 September 2017 655,000 Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2018 to
31 December 2021
—RZE—+FAA+NB AN RRE AR _E—N\F 45
—A—HBE-Z-—%F
+ZA=+—RHEBETE
— On 10 July 2018 100,000  Exercisable in five tranches from 5 years
2 January 2019 to
31 December 2023
—RZE-N\FtA+H ANRRAE s AR _T—NF 5%
—A-HE-_T =%
+=ZA=+—HBEHTE
— On 7 September 2018 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
6 September 2028
—RZE-N\FENAALH AN RRAE MR _T—NF 104
—AZRAZ-Z-)N\#F
NANAEETTE
— On 2 October 2018 482,500  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028
—RZZE-N\F+HZH ADRESZAMN _T—hEF 104
—A-BE-_ZT-N\&F
+ A — B BT
— On 28 November 2018 95,000 Exercisable in seven tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028
—RZE-N\F+—A=+/\H AN RRAZEZEHMR_Z—hLF 104
—HAZHEZZ-)N\#F
+—RAZ=+tRAEETE
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are (@ k]
as follows: (Continued)

— On 2 July 2019 150,000  Exercisable in three tranches from 4 years :
2 January 2020 to 1 July 2023
—RIZ-NAF+H-H ARAZEZ MR _Z_TF 45
—H_EE_E:_$
+ A—BHEIMETTE

— On 5 March 2020 150,000 Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
5 March 2020 to
7 November 2029

—RZEZFTF=HAHA DBRAEZ —HNR_ZT_TF 104
_H RAEZZTZNF
+— A+ A ERETE

— On 29 July 2021 380,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
29 July 2021 to
28 July 2031

—RZE=Z—FtA=+NIAH ARAZEzONR T —F 104
tﬂ FTNABEZZT=—%F
+ A=+ \BERETE

Total share options granted to 37,187,500

directors and employees -
RrEERESNERER
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31. BREE (®)

(b)

(c)

EC Healthcare

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options are as follows:

(b) BREZHE RMEFIITEE

W

2021
—E-—F

Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options  exercise price options  exercise price
BREZE MELHTEE EREZE METHIEE

QOutstanding at the beginning of ENRTE
the year 15,857,500 4.95 16,797,500 4.64
Granted during the year FRRE 21,330,000 12.49 2,500,000 6.55
Exercised during the year FRTE (2,590,000) 3.73 (2,297,500 3.12
Forfeited during the year FRERU (5,882,500) 3.61 (1,142,500) 7.50
Qutstanding at the end of the year ~ FRKIT{E 28,715,000 10.94 15,857,500 4.95
Exercisable at the end of the year FRATE 3,667,500 6.67 4,547 500 4.87

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for shares options exercised during the year was HK$13.26
(2021: HK$4.74).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2022 had a weighted
average exercise price of HK$10.94 (2021: HK$4.95) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.86 years
(2021: 6.02 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services or assets received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based on a
binomial option pricing model, which takes into account the
suboptimal exercise factors and the post-vesting exit rates.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d) Share options granted other than those
under Share Option Scheme

U

(i)

EC Healthcare

In addition to the share options granted in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme, during
the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group granted
share options by specific mandate to GCP, which
entitle GCP to subscribe for 4,349,000 shares in the
Company at an exercise price of HK$5.53 per share
with a contractual life of three years, as part of the
consideration to acquire an unlisted equity
investment. The share options vested immediately
following the completion of the acquisition of the
unlisted equity investment. The Group measured the
fair value of such grant by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted instead of the fair value
of the investment as it could not be estimated reliably
on the date of acquisition.

The options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2022 (see note 29(c)(i)).

As at 31 March 2021, the share options granted to
GCP outstanding had a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.39 years.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in
connection with the acquisition of additional 24%
equity interest in Hong Kong Pain and Wellness
Solution Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, during the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Group issued warrants which allow the sellers to
subscribe an aggregate number of 10,000,000
shares of the Company within 1-5 years at an
exercise price of HK$4.20. The warrants vested in
stages in 5 years following the completion of the
acquisition. The Group measured the fair value of
such warrants by reference to their fair value based
on a binomial option pricing model.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 2,000,000
shares (2021: nil share) were allotted and issued at
an exercise price of HK$4.20.

As at 31 March 2022, the warrants granted to the
sellers had a remaining contractual life of 3.4 years
(2021: 4.4 years).
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31. BREE (®)

d) SRbBRE(ERBERE
IR HEBRIM)

M

PR AR I B AR R AT B I R AR
G BE_ZT—NF=ZA
=+ BHILEFE AEERE
TE R FE R GCP 1% L B ISk - B
T GCP R/ T E &M% 5.53
75 7T SR B8 K A 8] 4,349,000 A%
Bp - BB AE=ZF  fEAW
I ETREREREN 3
oo BEEIE T RIER B W EE
TEREERESS - AR TN
BRBEEEGAR  A5E
BR2ERTERENRTE
MIERENRAFEFEZR LD
B AFE -

HE-_Z-_—_F#=ZF=+—H
IFFE BREETE(ZH
M 5E 29(c)(i)) ©

RN-_ZTE-_—F=A=+—80"
5 F GCP 8 1% AR 1T HE A i 19
IEFII TR A LR A0.394F -

1R ¥ 75 88 U B Hong Kong Pain
and Wellness Solution Limited
(RREIMFEENBAF)H
FEIN24% IREFTET LV B B 17
HoEHE—_ZT-—%=AH
Zt+—HIFE  REEZET
RRER  EATFERR1ES
FRIZTFEEL420BTREA
$10,000,000 f& A 2 B A% 17 ©
RIS EIEE - RIRFEE
REFRNDEEREB - NEE
K2EZRE -HEAHARTER
ANEHRREZNQAFLEHE
RIREZR QA -

HE-_T-_—_F=F=+—H
1IF F £ - 2,000,000/%( = =
Z—F:ER)BRMDIRITEE
4.20 T Fl B R BT o

R-_EBE-_—_F#=A=+—8 "
B ERORBREZIOFGBE
HHRABIAF(ZE=—F
4.44) o
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company issued 3
tranches of convertible bonds. The bondholders are entitled to
exercise the conversion rights to convert the principal amount
outstanding at a pre-determined conversion price at any time up
to the maturity of the convertible bonds. The details of the

32. A/

convertible bonds are as follows:

Tranche
#R

Tranche A

Fit

Tranche B

FH

Tranche C

F=#

Note: In addition to the conversion rights in connection with the convertible

Issue date

BITHE

5 February 2021

TE-—F
—HER

5 February 2021

—E-—fF
—A&R

8 February 2021

TR —F
—ANA

Principal Interest
amount rate
outstanding per annum Maturity date
REBERSE FRE  FHA
HK$234,000,000 2.5% 4 February 2026
(2021: HK$234,000,000)
234,000,000 7T “EoREF
(ZZ2=—%: —AMmA
234,000,000%7T)
HK$20,000,000 2.5% 4 February 2026
(2021: HK$39,000,000)
20,000,000/ 7T TERCREF
(ZZ2=—F: —AMmA
39,000,000/ 7T)
HK$31,200,000 2.5% 7 February
(2021: HK$31,200,000) 2026
31,200,000 7T —ECRHF
(ZZ2=—%: —RtH
31,200,000/ 7T)
isE -

bonds as stated above, the Company issued warrants which allow the
bondholders to subscribe for an aggregate number of 50,145,867
shares at an exercise price of HK$6.17 with aggregate consideration of
HK$309,400,000. As at 31 March 2022, the outstanding warrants
would allow the bondholders to subscribe for 5,899,514 shares (2021:
50,145,867 shares).

225

IR & 2

Conversion
price

per share
BRERE

HK$5.69
(note)
5.6947T
(H3E)

HK$5.21

52187

HK$5.69
(note)
5.69%7T
(i)

HE_ZE_—®#=ZA=+—HLEEFE &
AR BIT=HAIMBRES - EFFBEAR
AT IR IR - AT IRRR (B EI 5 B AT kE
FHZTE R EEMIRREER R EERNSHE o
AR ESFHFBET ¢

Conversion period
BRHE

At any time up to
maturity date

EXRIHBA
AR5

At any time up to
maturity date

ERIHBA
2Bk

At any time up to
maturity date

EERIHBA
R

B A _E SRt 7S B AT R AR (B S B R AR AN
RNATREITRABMES  EAFEEEBAN
TEE6.1778 TR & $£50,145,867 A% A%
9+ # 1 (8 /309,400,000 T ° N = F
ZZFEZAZ=+—HB MERAERBREER
HFiESHE A ARES899,514 M (=F
——% : 50,145,867 BR (D) °
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Upon the issuance of convertible bonds, the liability component
was initially measured at its fair value of HK$238,118,000. The
residual amount of HK$66,082,000 was recognised as capital
reserve within the equity (see note 29(d)(vi)).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, HK$4,127,000 was
transferred to share premium from capital reserve upon the
partial conversion of convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$19,000,000.

The liability component of convertible bonds was analysed as

32.

RKRES

RETAIRBRESRE  BERIVILRE
AN F{E238,118,000/8 Tt & - Fp & 5
66,082,000, 7T Jh A 25 N FERR A B A 7
& (R FE29(d)(vi)) °

HE_T-—#=ZA=+—BHIEE R
BB #E ¥ A4 519,000,000 78 JT HY 7] #2 A%
B » 4,127,000 7 7T B #E A% 2 2 1 2 4%

EREE

ABEESFNBERO T

follows:
2022 2021
—s=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Non-current liabilities EMBEE 235,709 239,819
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 33. ¥R UkE
(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ MRBEZE-_—F=A=1+-—
31 March 2022 HIEFENWEHSE
The fair value of the net assets acquired through business UL EE B AR 8 TS U FT U B A%
acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as follows: BENATEET :
Premier Excellent
Medical Power
Dr. Tiong’s  Group (BVI) Bayley Investments
Clinics Limited & Jackson Limited Others Total
Premier Excellent
Medical Power
REME  Group (BVI) Investments
2 Limited  EFEE Limited Hity @t

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR TR Tz TR THEx

Total identifiable net assets HBFEERE 31,307 74,623 59,109 47,920 45,702 258,661
Non-controlling interests FEPERR RS (15,340) (22,387) (26,599) - (22,299) (86,625)
Goodwill on acquisitions WiEEENES 39,760 47,764 94,042 20,080 30,071 231,717
Consideration for WEEEEMRE

the acquisitions 55,727 100,000 126,552 68,000 53,474 403,753
Cash consideration paid ERENBRERE

during the year 66000 100000 119424 68,000 4173 395159
Cash and cash equivalents TR e &

acquired BeEED (31,429) (36,548) (15,330) (1,819) (23,086) (108,212)
Net outflow of cash and FAREERES

cash equivalents included RENRERES

in cash flows of LEMRLFE

investing activities 34,571 63,452 104,094 66,181 18,649 286,947
The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their REBZENZEMHMB AR/ AH7
proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable FEEMME L OIET = FEERER -
assets.
Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the WMEEEEREEZE T -_—F=A1
year ended 31 March 2022, the consolidated revenue of =+ —BIEFEVEHEL - FALRSE
the Group and the consolidated profit of the Group for the B E WA RREBLRE EF D 5
year would have been HK$3,514 million and HK$293 B3514B BB T R203BEEBEIT °
million, respectively. In aggregate, the Group incurred net HE_Z-__F=ZA=+—HI*#F
cash outflow totalling HK$287 million from acquisitions of B AEEGWEHREAREERE
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2022. M RREART 287 EEE T
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

The business acquisitions are analysed in below:

U]

EC Healthcare

Dr. Tiong’s Clinics

On 15 June 2021, High Group Corporation Limited
(“High Group”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into sale and purchase agreements
with the sellers (“Dr. Tiong’s Clinics Sellers”), to
acquire 51% of the equity interest in each of King
Equity Investments Limited (“King Equity”), Eternal
Harvest International Limited (“Eternal Harvest”),
Hong Kong Veterinary Imaging Center Limited
(“HKVIC”) and Crown Leader Limited (“Crown
Leader”), respectively. King Equity, Eternal Harvest,
HKVIC and Crown Leader (collectively, “Dr. Tiong
Clinics”) are principally engaged in the provision of
veterinary services in Hong Kong.

According to the agreements, High Group paid an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$66,000,000 for
these acquisitions. Upon completion of the acquisition
on 20 August 2021, Dr. Tiong Clinics became a non
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Profit guarantee arrangements are included in the
agreements. Under the arrangements, Dr. Tiong
Clinics Sellers agreed to guarantee the aggregate
profit generated by Eternal Harvest, HKVIC and
Crown Leader for the coming 5 years of not less than
HK$50 million, and profit of King Equity for the
coming 7 years of not less than HK$121 million,
respectively. Dr. Tiong’s Clinics Sellers shall
compensate the shortfall of the profit attributable to
High Group in accordance with the sale and
purchase agreements.
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33. ¥BUWE @)

(@ RBE-—E-_—F=A=+-—
HIEFENKBHRE @)

EWB O -

U

RENEZ T

RZZE=——FXA+HH &
EE2EMBRARSHMEXE
RAsl([mHEE])HE AR
([RERBZ2AEAHIVESE
W WKEZBREBRA
A=) BLEEERA
A(EL]) HEBRBHEEH
DERAR(EBERE LR F
D)) REEERAR ([ ])
EZBA1%BEFH HL
EABBEEPLORED (S
BIREB2H) EEREE
WERHEERT -

REWHZ S8 EXZEFR
BEEAXNRERASAKRE
66,000,000/« R -ZF = —
FNAZTBRERKBEEE
& REBZAKAANSEN
F2EMBAR -

ZHEOEMNBRELZHE R
BzEL REBB2HEA
BEIREZL  BEHRE
Bk & R0 R SR TR R SR 5 4F AT
EENEFHBERLR0EE
B UREREFTHEREAKT
FREENEFTPR1218
BB REABZ2ME SRR
BEEHSHERKEERG
Fasm =% -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

@i

Dr. Tiong’s Clinics (Continued)

Management expected certain profit targets as stated
in the sale and purchase agreements would not be
met. Taking into account the corresponding
adjustment on the above variable considerations, the
present value of the aggregate consideration in
connection with the acquisitions of Dr. Tiong’s Clinics
on the completion date was HK$55,727,000.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in expansion of medical specialist
operations.

The goodwill of HK$40 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$206,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year.
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@ RBE-—E-——F=A=+-
HiEFENKERE @

@i

RENED T ()

EEERHNEEBHRMEET
HA B RERED - ZEIY
BT ERENRRREE =
B BB I R BR B 2 P AR (E
IR 1B 455,727,000 % 7T °

BRAVBEREAAEEERE
BEBRRREEN 3D o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

@i

EC Healthcare

Dr. Tiong’s Clinics (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Dr. Tiong’s Clinics as at the date of acquisition is as

33. EBWE @)

(@ RBE-—E-_—F=A=+-—
HIEFENKBHRE @)

() REREBZAT(E)

KRB - REEZHANE
BRHEERBBENRFED

follows: T
Total
et

Note HK$’000

Pt 5 FExT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 12,113
Inventories FE 2,601
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Rk E A I GRIA 9,048
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 31,429
Trade and other payables Z 5 MEAM RN RIE (46,918)
Current tax payable FETRD R TE (2,300)
Lease liabilities HEaE (8,261)
Intangible assets on acquisition W B B R 8 B 40,233
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (6,638)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFENAHENFEE

B 31,307
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (15,340)
Goodwill on acquisition W EAREE 14 39,760
Consideration RE 55,727
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FRBERIEERKE 66,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR S MRS EEY (31,429)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents :t AREEZBHRSARENE S LI
included in cash flows of SEEYRL TR
investing activities 34,571

Since the acquisition, Dr. Tiong’s Clinics contributed
HK$44 million to the Group'’s revenue and HK$11
million to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.

230

BWBEERL #2222
FZA=Z1+—HLFE  RKH
BYMEASEERAEL 48
EETHER  REAEELR
BRFAELE 1 EEBTHER

BREEREAEMGAIERE
HAVE N -

Annual Report 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI o

33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(ii)

Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited

On 5 November 2021, Jade Master International
Limited (“Jade Master”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 70% of the equity interest in
Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited (“PMC”), at a
cash consideration of HK$100,000,000.

PMC is principally engaged in provision of medical
services. Upon completion of the acquisition on 31
December 2021, PMC became a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

A revenue guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the sellers of
PMC (“PMC sellers”) agreed to guarantee the
aggregate revenue of PMC shall be no less than
HK$1,177 million for the coming 4 years. PMC sellers
shall compensate Jade Master for any shortfall
attributable to Jade Master in accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement.

Management expected all of the revenue targets in
relation to revenue guarantee as stated in the sale

and purchase agreement will be met.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.
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33. EBKWE @)

@ RBE-—E-——F=A=+-
HiEFENKERE @

(ii)

Premier Medical Group (BVI)
Limited

RZETEZ—F+—AAAH"
Jade Master International
Limited ([ Jade Master | = 7K =
EnE2EMBAREILEE
% + PAEE 2 K{E100,000,000
% st U B Premier Medical
Group (BVI) Limited ([PMC )
#)70% f&AE o

PMC = ER SR BHEIR -
RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H
TR - PMCRK B AREE
FEEHBAR -

ZHEEE —HBRARELR
B RIBZLHE - PMCRE A
(TPMCE 75 1) Al & #& & PMC
RRAFHWABER DR
117T7TEEE T REEEH
##% ' PMC & 77 JE 7] Jade Master
8 18 1 {7 Jade Master JE 15 =
o

BEEEE  BEERBETHM
st E WA R 35 B BB O P B M
BIFIRIER -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. XK WE @#)
(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ RBE-E-_—_F=A=1+-—
31 March 2022 (Continued) BLEFENWEBEE @)
(i) Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited (ii)  Premier Medical Group (BVI)
(Continued) Limited (#&)
The goodwill of HK$48 million arising from the WHEEENMB4I8EESBTD
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the REAEBEMERTFREL
share of customer pool with other businesses of the Z R EIE -
Group.
The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of NEBEEEMNERBK AR A
HK$506,000. These costs have been charged to 506,000/ 7T ° Z ZEAE R
“administrative and other expenses” in the FAMGZaBEmKxB [TTH K
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year. Bt ] bk -
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RULEE B 8 - PMC R A 3% Bl &
PMC as at the date of acquisition is as follows: ENBEHAFEDNT
Total
et
Note HK$’000
Pt 5 FERT
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ R MR 58,756
Inventories FE 4,435
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Rk E AU GRIA 16,626
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 36,548
Trade and other payables E 5 REMENTIE (55,657)
Current tax payable JETRD R TE (1,951)
Lease liabilities HEaE (55,485)
Intangible assets on acquisition WEE RS EF B E 85,635
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEBEEE (14,284)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN ERE/ R R
FEEMRT 74,623
Non-controlling interests FEIER (22,387)
Goodwill on acquisition W EA R EE 14 47,764
Consideration KRE 100,000
Cash consideration paid during the year FARNDMNRERE 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired T EEIR & MRS EEY (36,548)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AREEEIRSREMR
included in cash flows of investing RERBEEEBWRLFE
activities 63,452
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited
(Continued)

Since the acquisition, PMC contributed HK$60 million
to the Group’s revenue and HK$0.3 million to the
Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.

Bayley & Jackson

On 29 November 2021, Union Dental Holding Limited
(“Union Dental”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the sellers (“B&J Sellers), to acquire 55% of the
equity interest in Bayley & Jackson. Bayley and
Jackson is principally engaged in provision of dental
services.

According to the agreement, the Group acquired
55% of the equity interest at an aggregate
consideration of comprising (i) cash consideration of
HK$119,424,000; and (i) the allotment and issuance
of 796,360 new shares of the Company which the
consideration is based on the share price of
completion date. Upon completion of the acquisition
on 17 January 2022, Bayley & Jackson became a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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@ RBE-—E-——F=A=+-
HiEFENKERE @

(ii)

(iii)

Premier Medical Group (BVI)
Limited (%)

BlEEER HE-T ==
FZA=1+—RHIEFE  PMC
HAEERAEHEOTES T
BER - REANEELRE 5T
EH O3 BEEBBITMER -

BVEETRE AT A4
HAE G -

EEFEE

RZEZ—F+—HA=+nh
A AEE2EKE 2 Union
Dental Holding Limited ([ Union
Dental]) & 75 ([ EAERE &
F DI EE R - AR
FIIEE #55% X i o FEFITE =
FERERBETER -

RIE R - AN B IR 55% A%
B BEREEFEIEENRE
119,424,000 7T K (i) Ac 8%
K 877 796,360 B 78 A &) # A%
7 ZRETIRIETE B B
BEFE - RT-_—_F—A8
T+ BT IEEIEE - A
BEXAAEEREEENE
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FERE 2021/22



Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI ot

33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(iii)

EC Healthcare

Bayley & Jackson (Continued)

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the B&J Sellers
agreed to guarantee the profit generated by Bayley &
Jackson for coming 7 years of not less than HK$120
million. The B&J Sellers shall compensate the shortfall
of the profit attributable to Union Dental in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreement.
Management expected the guarantee profit will be
met.

In addition, a put option was granted to B&J Sellers
to dispose of the remaining equity interest held by
them to Union Dental if the future profit for coming 7
years is met, at a cash consideration dependent on
the future profit. The estimated consideration payable
of HK$165,273,000 was included in non-current
portion of other payable and accruals as at 31 March
2022,

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.

The goodwill of HK$94 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$300,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(iii)

Bayley & Jackson (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Bayley & Jackson as at the date of acquisition is as
follows:

33. EBKWE @)

@ RBE-—E-——F=A=+-
HiEFENKERE @

(i) EFIEES (4)

AUREE B H - FEATE B A AT A
MEERABNAFENT

Total

st

Note HK$’000

P & FHT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RE&E 21,754

Inventories & 956

Trade and other receivables 2 5 R H bW EIE 5,592

Cash and cash equivalents RERIRESEEY 15,330

Trade and other payables 5 R EA RS FRIE (14,042)

Current tax payable FEBIEARL T8 (1,200)

Lease liabilities AEBRE (16,079)

Intangible assets on acquisition IS B A E 56,046

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (9,248)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFTER A A

SFEEMRE 59,109

Goodwill on acquisition I EL N EE 14 94,042

Consideration RE 126,552

Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FREMEHESRE 119,424

Cash and cash equivalents acquired T iEIR ¢ MRS EEY (15,330)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AR & EEIRERENIES

included in cash flows of MRS EEY R FE
investing activities 104,094

Since the acquisition, Bayley & Jackson contributed
HK$14 million to the Group’s revenue and a loss of
HKS$0.7 million to the Group’s consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(iv)

EC Healthcare

Excellent Power Investments Limited

On 16 February 2022, Union (Group) Investment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire entire equity interest in Excellent Power
Investments Limited (“Excellent Power”) at a cash
consideration of HK$68,000,000. Excellent Power
carries on its business with the brand name “GenRx
Healthcare Group”.

Excellent Power operates a comprehensive
healthcare service network in Hong Kong and Macau.
Upon completion of the acquisition on 31 March
2022, Excellent Power became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.

The goodwill of HK$20 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$200,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year.
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(@ RBE-—E-_—F=A=+-—
HIEFENKBHRE @)

(iv)

Excellent Power Investments
Limited

W_ZBE-—F A+ B
G(EBE)EBREERAT(ERA
AIMEENBEAR)LEE
W& - LAIR & {8 68,000,000
# gt U BB Excellent Power
Investments Limited ([ Excellent
Power |) B2 EB A% # © Excellent
Power A [ 2 R @& ] 8 m
R BRRER -

Excellent Power /A & 78 K 38
HEXEAMBERERSEH
HBoRZE_—_F=A="+—
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RAREBERIEZEHBAR
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. ¥BUWE @)
(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ MRBEZE-_—F=A=1+-—
31 March 2022 (Continued) HiIEFENKBHRE @)
(iv) Excellent Power Investments Limited (iv) Excellent Power Investments
(Continued) Limited (4&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of 7 Ug B& B 2 - Excellent Power
Excellent Power as at the date of acquisition is as AR EERBERNRTE
follows: UM
Total
et
Note HK$°000
Pt aE FTER
Property, plant and equipment YE SN g 34,792
Inventories VER{ 5,740
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E bW EIE 14,649
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 1,819
Trade and other payables 5 R EAMRESFRIE (21,169)
Current tax payable e BN EAR 18 (167)
Lease liabilities HEaE (18,605)
Intangible assets on acquisition WREMSELEE 36,959
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (6,098)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN ERTEMR R
FEEBRE 47,920
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEARNEE 14 20,080
Consideration A 68,000
Cash consideration paid during the year FRNEMNREREB 68,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired kIR & RIS EEY (1,819)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents (3t A& EFEHR SR EW
included in cash flows of investing RekBeESEYRT R
activities 66,181
Excellent Power did not contribute any material HE-T-_—F=A=+—H
revenue nor profit for the year ended 31 March 2022. IF % &+ Excellent Power 7 #&
ERMEMERBRA R EH]
The intangible assets are amortised over their B EEDREMGEAIERE
estimated useful lives. ERVEBESH o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 33. ¥KUkE
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) RBE-FT-_—F=A=+-—
31 March 2021 HALEFENWRERE
The fair value of the net assets acquired through business R BB B A U P U 1) %
acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as follows: BENATFEEOT :
Pathlab
Preeminent Medical
New Medical Medical Laboratories
Center Limited Centre Limited Limited Others Total
New Medical ~ £=ABHHL  BUBSLR
Center Limited BRAF FERAR Hit st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT TR Tz Tz THT
Total identifiable net assets 7] % BIIi% & E 4458 211,941 35,736 282,774 2,630 533,081
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E¥eAR 25 (103,851) (17,511) (67,866) - (189,228)
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEENESE 127,482 55,881 134,437 10,087 327,887
Gain on bargain purchase % (EH B Iz - - - (993) (993)
Consideration for Y EEMRE
the acquisitions 235,572 74,106 349,345 11,724 670,747
Cash consideration paid ~ ERNEHBEER(E
during the year 100,000 100,249 229,500 4,206 433,955
Cash and cash equivalents FTUEIR & &
acquired BEEEY (47,292 6,212 (30,419) (2,041) (85,964)
Net outflow of cashand st AREFZEHE S
cash equivalents included  TEHRE MRS
in cash flows of ZEMRLFE
investing activities 52,708 94,037 199,081 2,165 347,991

The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their
proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable
assets.

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2021, the revenue of the Group and
the profit of the Group for the prior year would had been
HK$2,351 million and HK$309 million, respectively. In
aggregate, the Group incurred net cash outflow totalling
HK$348 million from acquisitions of subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b)

Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

The business acquisitions are analysed in below:

@i

New Medical Center Limited

On 10 July 2020, Jade Master, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the seller (‘NMCL Sellers”)
to acquire 51% of the equity interest in New Medical
Center Limited (“New Medical”). New Medical is
principally engaged in the provision of medical
specialist services.

According to the agreement, the Group acquired
51% of the equity interest from NMCL Sellers at an
aggregate consideration comprising of (i) cash
consideration of HK$100,000,000 payable to NMCL
Sellers; (ii) additional capital injection of
HK$100,000,000 to New Medical; (i) the allotment
and issuance of 4,761,905 new shares of the
Company; and (iv) contingent consideration of up to
HK$16,000,000 which would be paid within 3-5
years subject to the profit target of HK$30,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021. Upon completion
of the acquisition on 13 July 2020, New Medical
became a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Profit guarantee arrangements were included in the
agreement. Under the arrangements, one of the
NMCL Sellers agreed to guarantee the profit
generated by New Medical for the coming 6 years
and 8 years of not less than HK$160 million and
HK$175 million, respectively. This seller shall
compensate Jade Master for any shortfall of the profit
attributable to Jade Master in accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement.
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New Medical Center Limited
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HEH(INMCLE S I E
B ek 0 LA UK B New Medical
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EOENMCLE ;B RIE €
K {8100,000,0003% 7T : (i) A
New Medical#y %8 4b & &
100,000,000 JT : (iii) ¢ 3 &
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D Rivsk AR B & %
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SESFRNXNM  HAUEE=
T F=A=+—HIEFE
# 53% | B 12 30,000,0007% 7T
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Medical pX A& 28 5 B 3E 2 B it 8

NS

ZihEHE RNRELHE - R
BLt HPF—ENMCLE H
B &% & New Medical AR K 6
FRE8FANELEMNEF D BT
LPR10BEE T KIT6E &
BIL - BB HEREBEEEH
# [AlJade Master 5 {8 Jade
Master 1 B9 E{a] s F| Z 8 ©
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

@i

EC Healthcare

New Medical Center Limited (Continued)

Management expected all of the profit targets in
relation to the contingent consideration and profit
guarantees as stated in the sale and purchase
agreement would be met.

According, the present value of the aggregate
consideration in connection with the acquisition of
New Medical on the completion date was
HK$235,572,000.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in expansion of medical specialist
operations.

The goodwill of HK$127 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$211,000. These costs had been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the prior
year.
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(b) RBE-—B-—F=A=+-—
HIEFENKBHRE @)

@i

New Medical Center Limited
(#&)

EEERREEREME AR
SARFME Rosm FIOR & ) BT B i
T BB RESES -

At - REK BB A B UE
New Medical B9 22 (X (B &) I8 (B
/235,572,000 7T ©

FRUBEAERASEENE
BEERRREN D -

WEELENEEI12TEEET
TIREEREEEMERBNHE
FERAZNIHRRE -

NEEEEMERBEK AN B
211,000 70 © ZEKRAE R
F—FENGFAEREB 1T
R B S ] kR o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. ¥BUWE @)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) RBEZZE=-_—F=A=1+—
31 March 2021 (Continued) HiIEFENKBHRE @)
(i) New Medical Center Limited (Continued) (i) New Medical Center Limited
(4&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of AU EE B H - New Medical &9
New Medical as at the date of acquisition is as AHREEREGBEHAEED
follows: T :
Total
et
Note HK$000
Pt 5 FTHET
Property, plant and equipment M - WE kB 14,101
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k E b EUGRIA 137,772
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 47,292
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAbFER FOE (59,703)
Current tax payable FETRD R IR (3,375)
Lease liabilities HEAE (7,463)
Intangible assets on acquisition WM ER EE 15 99,781
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEEE (16,464)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFENRENFEE
BEE 211,941
Non-controlling interests FEERE R (103,851)
Goodwill on acquisition BB EE N EE 14 127,482
Consideration RE 235,572
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FXRNENIRESHKE 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR S MRS EEY (47,292)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents (AR EEE RS RENR S KR
included in cash flows of SEEYRLFE
investing activities 52,708
Since the acquisition, New Medical contributed BlESEEE BHE T ——
HK$133 million to the Group’s revenue and HK$34 F=A=1T—BLFE New
million to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year Medical ¥ 7% 55 [8 LA {133
ended 31 March 2021. BRETHER - RHARE
RARFEHS4EEBITHE
& o
The intangible assets are amortised over their BRBEDREMGTAIEAF
estimated useful lives. Hi{FHESS -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

(i)

EC Healthcare

Preeminent Medical Centre Limited

On 20 October 2020, Jade Master, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the seller (“PMCL Seller”) to
acquire 51% of the equity interests in Preeminent
Medical Centre Limited, with business name of Zenith
Medical Centre (“Zenith”). Zenith is principally
engaged in the provision of obstetrics and
gynaecology medical services.

According to the agreement, the Group acquired
51% of the equity interests from PMCL Seller at an
aggregate consideration comprising of (i) cash
consideration of HK$85,249,000; and (ii) a cash
incentive of up to HK$15,000,000 (prepaid by the
Group) subject to the target of aggregate profit for
the coming 5 years amounting to HK$126 million.
Upon completion of the acquisition on 23 October
2020, Zenith became a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, PMCL Seller
agreed to guarantee the profit generated by Zenith
for the coming 8 years amounting to HK$163 million.
PMCL Seller shall compensate the shortfall of the
profit attributable to Jade Master in accordance with
the sale and purchase agreement.

Management expected certain profit targets as stated
in the sale and purchase agreement would not be
met. Taking into account the corresponding
adjustment on the above variable considerations, the
present value of the aggregate consideration in
connection with the acquisition of Zenith on the
completion date was HK$74,106,000.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s

strategy in expansion of medical specialist
operations.
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(b) RBE-—B-—F=A=+-—
HIEFENKBHRE @)

(ii)

ERBBEROLBRAF

RZBZFF+TA=-+H &K
£ B2 E W E R 7 Jade Master
HEH(PMCLEH DIV E
B WKEBEAREEPDL
BERAR(EXETHALWE
BHO(TE8]))51% BRRHE
FHFENERHBERNER
R ©

REBZ W - A& B[R PMCL
B KES1%ME  BRER
()3 2R (585,249,000 7T
IR & #E) & % 15,000,000 8
TT(ARARERN) - AR
REFED G AN AFE12600 8
BTHWBERRAE - R_F=
TFETA-T=BxERKE
% FBKASAEEIFEEH
BAT] -

ZhEIEEEFRELHE - R
B2 HE PMCLE 5 R B 1R 3&
B R RSE N E 4 % F
1638 & % 7T - PMCLE 75 J&
RIEE & %152 Jade Master

FEAGHDE M ZEER ©

BEEERHNEEGRMANSE
TEMBRAETRERED - &
ZRY b r A EFL AR
FEREEE - PATTh B B BB
FHMNERENRER
74,106,000 7T ©

FRAREEAANEEENE
BEEBRRRBENH 7 -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. ¥EKUE @®)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) RBEZZE=-_—F=A=1+—

31 March 2021 (Continued) HiEFENKERE @

(i) Preeminent Medical Centre Limited (Continued) (i) =H=ARBBEHRLERDE (E)
The goodwill of HK$56 million arising from the WHEEERNEESeASBITD
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the REAEBEMERTERL
share of customer pool with other businesses of the Z Y175 B ZRE o
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of AEEEANBBEEXER
HK$286,000. These costs had been charged to 286,000/ 7T © % F KA E R
“administrative and other expenses” in the F—FEMNGREERKXB 1T
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the prior B R BRIk -
year.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEE R H - S8 &R &
Zenith as at the date of acquisition is as follows: ENAGBHAFEDNT
Total
et
Note HK$’000
Pt 5 FERT
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BE R& 18,776
Inventories FE 2,237
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Rk E AU GRIA 2,642
Current tax recoverable ATUR el B ERFR 1A 4
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 6,212
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTUR (16,333)
Lease liabilities HEaE (10,180)
Intangible assets on acquisition WS ELEE 15 38,696
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBRE (6,385)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN EREM R R
FEEET 35,736
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (17,511)
Goodwill on acquisition W EAREE 14 55,881
Consideration RE 74,106
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FXNENIRESRE 100,249
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR S MRS EEY (6,212)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AR EEHIRESTHELN
included in cash flows of investing RERBEEEBWRT TR
activities 94,037
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

EC Healthcare

Preeminent Medical Centre Limited (Continued)

Since the acquisition, Zenith contributed HK$46
million to the Group’s revenue and HK$0.1 million to
the Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31
March 2021.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.

Pathlab Medical Laboratories Limited

On 14 December 2020, Jade Master, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with the seller (“PMLL
Seller”) to acquire entire equity interests in Pathlab
Medical Laboratories Limited (“Pathlab”). Pathlab is
principally engaged in provision of laboratory testing
services.

According to the sale and purchase agreement, Jade
Master would acquire Pathlab in two tranches as
follows:

(i) Jade Master would acquire 75% equity interest
at an aggregate consideration comprising of (i)
cash consideration of HK$229,500,000; and (i)
the allotment and issuance of 19,907,834 new
shares of the Company.

Immediately after the above transaction, Jade
Master and PMLL seller would transfer 2% and
1% equity interest to two personnel employed
by Pathlab as part of their compensation
arrangements.
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(b) RBE-—B-—F=A=+-—
HIEFENKBHRE @)

(ii)

(iii)

SERBBHURRQF (F)

BUREEER B2 -—
FZA=Z+—HLFE 28
HALEWAEL 46 BEET
WER - REAEBLELRE T
EHO1 BEBBTNER

BVEETRE G AIE RS
HAtEBESH

BAB2RABRAF

RZZ_ZEF+-_RA+HA
KEBE2E W B A FJade
Master #2 & 75 ([PMLLE 75 1)
RAIVESHE - LWKEELE
B AARAR (M)
EERPHE c AN T B ERM
BB ERERTS o

BRI E S %  Jade Master #§
BIAT AR ML EEIE

()  Jade Master #5 Uz B 75%
it REREBENR
% R {E229,500,000%
JC o R(iyfid B K& 1T
19,907,834 i AX A &) ¥
H&{/\ d

ZBE LAl X 5 1% - Jade
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B REAOME A LTE
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b)

Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2021 (Continued)

Pathlab Medical Laboratories Limited
(Continued)

(i)  Jade Master would acquire the remaining 24%
equity interest held by PMLL Seller by the end
of 2023 at a cash consideration ranging from
HK$108 million to HK$238 million, which would
be dependent on the future profit.

Upon completion of the acquisition on 31 December
2020, Pathlab became a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

In addition, a profit guarantee arrangement is
included in the agreement. Under the arrangement,
PMLL Seller agreed to guarantee the profit generated
by Pathlab for the coming 3 years up to HK$100
million, which is dependent on the timing the
completion of the second tranche. PMLL Seller shall
compensate Jade Master for any shortfall of the profit
attributable to Jade Master in accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement. Management
expected the guarantee profit could be met.

Accordingly, the present value of the aggregate
consideration in connection with the acquisition of
Pathlab on the completion date was
HK$349,345,000.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
expansion strategy in expansion of medical
operations.

The goodwill of HK$134 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$521,000. These costs had been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the prior
year.
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b) RBEZE=-_—F=A=1+—
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BYBR{CBRAARARE)

(i)  Jade Masteri§ B — =
T =FRAEPMLLE
FHBE R T 24% 8% HE -
ReERENT108E &
BILE238EEAT  H
BT AR FITE

R—ZF_FF+_H=+—H
TRBIBEIRR - BLRER
SEREREMBAR

5N ZHEEHE R IRER
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FEHMEARERETE) -
PMLLE 75 FEIR & B & 17 7 B
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BEiER -

F it R 5ERk B HAUREE R 2 7
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I o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. ¥EKUE @®)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) RBE-ZF-_—F=A=1+—
31 March 2021 (Continued) HLEFENKWERE @)
(iii) Pathlab Medical Laboratories Limited (i) WBUBBBAERATE)
(Continued)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEE A H - A2 e AR &
Pathlab as at the date of acquisition is as follows: EXEREHQATFEET
Total
st
Note HK$’000
s FHT
Property, plant and equipment M - WE REE 17,280
Inventories FE 4,910
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H Ab FE W IR 38,936
Time deposits with original maturity [REIE ARG = @AM E TR
over 3 months 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 30,419
Trade and other payables Z 5N EMENFRIE (20,662)
Current tax payable JE BN AR 1B (11,102)
Lease liabilities HEAE (10,670)
Intangible assets on acquisition WHERMG BRIV EE 15 276,243
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE (45,580)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFENHER
FEEBE 282,774
Non-controlling interests ESuliie (67,866)
Goodwill on acquisition B EE R EE 14 134,437
Consideration KRE 349,345
Cash consideration paid during the year FANDNRERE 229,500
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrURE IR © RIR© % EY) (30,419)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AR EETEBIHR S RENIR S
included in cash flows of MR EEYRLFE
investing activities 199,081
Since the acquisition, Pathlab contributed HK$58 BREBERRE g2 T =—
million to the Group’s revenue and HK$14 million to F=ZA=+—HLEFE fB1
the Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31 HASERAEH8AERTT
March 2021. BWER - REAEBELRE &

EH14BEATHER -

The intangible assets are amortised over their mIEEREMERAIERE
estimated useful lives. HA{EEESH -
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. AREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not REEHR - WERNGE SRR AR
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as BEABENAT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-— T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
Bank guarantee given to a landlord MESIEE AR EFRME
for a property leased for own use RITHEAR 646 663
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EREIE
The Board has approved to establish imaging centers and EERIERIZEROREAERZM
integrated medical clinics and entered into agreements to acquire WHERIZ HHEBBEE TYE  BEM&E
certain property, plant and equipment, with aggregate capital RECE-—F=A=+—HMNERHAXL
expenditure of approximately HK$200 million as at 31 March R200BBABTT
2022.
In addition, the Group was committed at 31 March 2022 to enter o REER T Z_=ZF=A=+—H
into few new leases that is not yet commenced, the aggregate AEFRR] MM ARMBIAZ DHHEE - AFTE
lease payments without considering the extension options BB EN SRR R4 OBEATT -

amounted to HK$44.9 million.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BBARS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed @ BREBHmEREMITSAFRNZS R
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the EERON - NEEFANEEE A N
following material transactions with related parties during WERRS :
the year:
2022 2021
—E-= —E——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE F#& T BT
Companies beneficially owned HEEEER
by Tang Chi Fai BENAT
Lease rentals payment MERSHER 0] 1,968 1,911
Companies beneficially owned HBEEREER
by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai EEHNAT
Lease rentals payment HERSIR 0] 264 288
Joint ventures eEhE
Sales of skincare and beauty HEEE REDE®D
products (ii) - 34
Purchases of skincare and BEEERERERR
beauty products and medical BEREM
consumables (ii) 19,385 14,450
Purchases of property, plant and BEWXE  BEREE
equipment (iii) 53,190 36,365
Equipment maintenance REHERGE
service fee (iv) 5,366 4,370
Companies beneficially BB ATK
owned by non-controlling FERRERER
shareholders of subsidiaries BEMNAT
Lease rentals payment HEZRSMNR 0] 2,208 2,523
Companies beneficially HEBREN —BREXE

owned by a family member of BEXEAMNAT
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie

Lease rentals payment ERSAR (i) 1,881 r

Notes: Mt -

0] The lease rentals were charged from the related parties (i) &S THIRIEE T 15 F /)RR
according to mutually agreed terms. A 7 WA o

(i) Sales and purchases were made with the joint ventures (i) SHE KB E TR IR 5 1 AU
according to the mutually agreed terms. A1A AR ULE -

(i) Iltems of property, plant and equipment were purchased from (i) P BWERIBEE HREER
joint ventures according to mutually agreed terms. BENBRREESERE -

(v)  Equipment maintenance service fee was charged from the joint (v) RBEERBEIDREBEESTHEN
ventures according to mutually agreed terms. R & & b2 UER -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Al members of key management personnel are directors of
the Company, and their compensations are disclosed in
note 9.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Lee Gabriel, former
executive director of the Company, obtained an unsecured
and non interest-bearing loan of HK$2,800,000 from the
Group. Such loan was fully repaid before 31 March 2021.
The maximum amount due from this former executive
director during the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted
to HK$2,800,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Wong Chi Cheung,
executive director of the Company, obtained a loan of
HK$2,900,000, which is unsecured, interest-bearing at
3.5% per annum and repayable in 2025. The maximum
amount due from this executive director during the year
ended 31 March 2022 and the balance as at 31 March
2022 amounted to HK$2,900,000 (2021: HK$nil).

There was no continuing connected transaction nor
connected transaction entered by the Group during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 which is required to
be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions with entities beneficially owned
by Tang Chi Fai or his spouse or non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries disclosed in note 36(a) are
exempted from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

The related party transactions with the companies
beneficially owned by a family member of Lu Lyn Wade
Leslie are connected transactions defined by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and disclosed in Management
Discussion and Analysis.
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ETEEEEABRARAES
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABEERESMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and equity price and
investment risks. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group was involved in the provision of medical, aesthetic
medical, beauty and wellness and multi-channel networking and
related services and the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products and receivable balances are mainly from financial
institutions in respect of credit card receivables and other
institutional customers arising from medical and multi-channel
networking and related services. Receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis by senior management and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. In addition, the
Group’s bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from
the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix or based on the probabilities of default with
reference to available market information. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

No allowance in respect of expected credit loss have been
recognised as the management assessed the risk of default
based on historical experience and forward looking element is
not significant.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABREERESMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE @)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERkE @)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREINR —_BE-_—_FR_ZFE-_—F=A1
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables as at 31 March 2022 =+ —HBAREEAEKREERRBONER
and 2021:
2022 2021
=== T —fF
(e[ RN 1M Gross carrying
amount amount
IREAE FRE4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAxT
Current (not past due) BNHER (kg HR) 109,877 135,094
Less than 3 months past due wH LR BEA 38,891 37,054
3 to 6 months past due wWHI3 =618 A 4,511 4,561
7 to 12 months past due wWER7 = 1218 A 1,151 456
More than 1 year past due BE F A 1,063 1,819
155,493 178,984
Liquidity risk REBESEKE
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash and AEBERREFEEERATENRS
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to RBREZEBYMKT  UBRNAREENEE
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of LBRERERERDHNTE - EEETH
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors its EHRERHEBESHEK -

working capital requirements regularly.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABEERESMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E1E (#)

(Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on AEENESRMBEERGLNRUMBERSR
the contractual undiscounted cash flows, are as follows: EMHBBEROT

As at 31 March 2022 R-ZEZZ-ZF=H=+—H

Morethan  More than
Within 1 year but 2years Total
1 year or lessthan butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2years 5years 5years  cashflows amounts

AR-FRE —ERE MENL AHR
REREE BmER BEER RENE HEREAR KAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR Tin TiEn Thn T TR

Trade payables ZHEMRTE 75,201 - - - 75,201 75,201
Other payables and accruals HUENZBRESER 244,411 255,248 12,040 224,414 736,113 658,625
Lease liabilities REaRE 334,017 187,973 200,428 13,847 736,265 705,402
Convertible bonds mHRES 7,130 7,130 298,386 - 312,646 235,709
660,759 450,351 510,854 238,261 1,860,225 1,674,937
As at 31 March 2021 R-EBE-_—F=H=+—H
More than More than

Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan ~ butlessthan ~ Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years S5years  cash flows amounts

AR—EN —EHE MENE AR
REXEE BRERM BRER RENE RERELE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL AT TR TR TR
Trade payables EHRAFE 46,657 - - - 46,657 46,657
Other payables and accruals HibENTERESER 168,700 18,129 248,637 - 430,366 401,562
Lease liabilties HEAR 218,104 189,938 115,029 6,383 529,454 502,240
Bank borrowings BIER 287,348 - - - 287,348 287,348
Convertible bonds hEkES 7,605 7,605 325,869 - 341,079 239,819

728414 210,672 689,435 6,383 1634904 1477626
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREARBEEREMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The below table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings as at 31 March 2021 with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
facilities agreements with banks. The amounts included interest
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors did not consider that
it was probable that the bank would exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment.

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings repayment
on demand based on scheduled repayments

SEE @)

TERBAR=-"ZT-_—F=A=1+—HEHE
RERBEFIERABRITERBEERITE]
B E BZEE NG EEREREROE
HAMN - ZSCHEBEEAOFERFE
B F B KIE - EEEAE B FAL -
EERBBRITTAABLITEE KA ER
RIBEHE o

B E AT — REBREEER
ERWBETEK

B TA

Over 1year  Over 2 years Total Total

Within but within but within Over  undiscounted carrying

1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cashflows amount

K% R REEHR

R—4R BREM BRERN REER ReRBEE a%AEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL AL TiEn TR TR TAL

At 31 March 2021 RZFZ-5=A=1-H 69,318 148,278 80,437 - 298,033 287,348
Interest rate risk =R = B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings, convertible bonds and lease liabilities. Bank
borrowings, convertible bonds and lease liabilities issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings and
fixed rate borrowings and manages the contractual terms of the
interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

i)

(ii)

EC Healthcare

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

37.

tREAREEREBMIAND
FE @)

T 2= B B (4)
(i)

IES =

TRHFAEER RS BARZER
2 FIEHER, -

2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERAI= &8 BRF= &8
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THT THL
Fixed rate borrowings: B E R R
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 - - 2.68% 3,463
Lease liabiliies HEAR 28 2.69% 705,402 2.78% 466,776
Convertible bonds gkES 32 7.94% 235,709 7.94% 239,819
941,111 710,058
Variable rate borrowings: FEREER
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 - - 2.24%-2.75% 283,885
Lease liabilities HEAR 28 - - 3.52% 35,464
- 319,349
941,111 1,029,407
Sensitivity analysis iy HBBREDH

At 31 March 2022, a change in interest rates would not
have any material impact to the Group.

At 31 March 2021, it was estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by approximately HK$2,667,000. Other components
of consolidated equity would not be affected in response to
a general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group as at that
date which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.
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RIBEZZF=ZA=+—H Fxg
HRTEHAKBEELENERY
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B 1 Bk B 12 0 B R AR BB R A A8 R
A,/ 1 0149 2,667,000 7T o H 4R
GBI TEAN RELE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Equity price and investment risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income. The valuation of the unlisted investments are determined
by reference to the financial forecast of the investees, the recent
transaction price of the same class of instrument or price/
earnings ratio of comparable companies. Investment fund risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of investment funds
will fluctuate due to changes in the prices of underlying securities
or the financial performance of the funds. All of the Group’s
unquoted investments are held for strategic purpose. Their
performance is assessed regularly based on the information
available to the Group.

In addition, the Group has taken out two life insurance policies
covering a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary which
include investment elements, which the price risk is similar to the
above investment fund risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax.
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits and fair value reserve (non-recycling).

The maximum risk resulting from these investments equals their
fair value.
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37.

tREREEREMIAND
E1E (#)

EEERRRERR

AEEEEREDBRIZAFEAAER
FHRAFEFAHMEER R 2 CREE
BV ERIMR AR E R E R AR o FELET
RENLEDESZERRE TS BIRA -
WWIEWF%*%FﬁiTE%F“
MRXEF REEGTARAREESH
IF@&%XEE@MLEH#IJFHEE %E’J{E
REEHHECHVHRR MK AR
FAEASENEREREDFHERKBEDN
HRBIRBEA S E /7] &R E B o

o REEE R —KMB AR —H3E

ZRBEREBEBRODASRE  ZEFREE
EREREZ ERERRARE IR EES

RRRAEE

TRIUREMA B M &8 R A ARG

AERABRBEZENBERT  ARERHRE

HREHEARBRNOERRIFLTESK
BN RFEESHS%NBRE - LEAEE
mkﬁﬂ%amﬂ&”ﬁﬁ%ﬁCKEAE
2RI A J|EE -

ZEREFEENESRBRERSENRER
FiE -
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37. cREREERSEHMIAMND
E1E (#)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

ERERRKRERR &)

Equity price and investment risks (Continued)

Change
Carrying Change in other
amount of in profit comprehensive
investments before tax income
REMW BR%E AR F REME2HE
IREE R E s = Y 2 B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET TET
As at 31 March 2022 RZEBE-_—_F=A=+—H
Unlisted investments — FVOCI FETRE — RAFETA
Hiv2mla 14,588 - 729
Unlisted investments — FVTPL FEMRE — BAFEEFA
B 143,893 7,195 =
158,481 7,195 729
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H
Unlisted investments — FVTPL JEEHIRE — RAFETA
B 95,396 4,770 -
Capital management BEXER

The Group’s main objectives with respect to capital management
include maintaining a solid and stable financing structure to
support its ongoing business growth so that it can continue to
maximise shareholders’ return, and providing an adequate return
to the shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital to the
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREARBEEREMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE @)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement AFEFTE

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value RAFEENESREERARE

Fair value hierarchy N FEER

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial TEREJINAEE @M T ARFERRIZL
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a BUHEEFTENQTE  WIRBREBSTB
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value WMELERNFEIBRAFHEIGAENTERD R=
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The BEAFEER ATEFENERTIRR
level into which a fair value measurement is classified is HERMAAEBENABERENEZ LD
determined with reference to the observability and significance of BT

the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 . FERGE: EFAZELBA
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for HIBRFTEMNATE - ARFFERA Bk
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date ERRTISHEREES B EARE AR

BB

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs . F_BREE: FRF_BREAK
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not BEr2MATE  THEE—ER
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs AR AR R ABRAEAT
are inputs for which market data are not available. AR by A SR o DA R AZUR

TR EEEIS 5 E M EIR

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant . FoEREE - FREATIUERE
unobservable inputs ABEAEN A FEE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

tREREERESMIAND
E1E (#)

TRITAEECHIANATEAER
e

RATEIROEE

Fair value measurement using

ERATSIZETALENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERTS EATEE EARAEE
FrRER BAHE BAZE
(B1BHR) (2B %) (£3ER) @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
As at 31 March 2022 R-BE--—f=ZA=+-H
Financial assets at fair value through AR B ABHNCREE
profit or loss - 3,954 139,939 143,893
Financial assets at fair value through &2 FE:T AR 2 B
other comprehensive income SREE - - 14,588 14,588
As at 31 March 2021 A\—E--F£=A=1+—-H
Financial assets at fair valug through ~ 1# A TES A BRI REE
profit or loss - 29,247 66,149 95,396

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities, except for certain unlisted equity investments
of HK$22,414,000 (2021: HK$nil) were transferred from level 2 to
level 3 due to the absence of recent transaction price of same
class of instruments.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair

value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The unlisted fund investments are not quoted in an active market
and may be subject to restrictions on redemptions. Management
considers the valuation techniques and inputs used in valuing
these investment funds as part of its due diligence prior to
investing to ensure they are reasonable and appropriate and
therefore the net assets value of these funds may be used as an
input into measuring their fair values.

In respect of the unlisted equity investment categorised into Level
2, the valuation of such is estimated by reference to the
transaction price at arm’s length for a same class of equity
instrument.

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3
fair value measurements

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment amounting to
HK$22,740,000 (2021: HK$21,730,000) is determined by
referencing to the fair value of underlying properties held by the
investee using the residual approach by taking into account the
redevelopment potential of such properties. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the estimated profit
margin of 10% (2021: 10%) on redevelopment. As at 31 March
2022, it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in estimated profit margin by 1% (2021: 1%)
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit for the year
by approximately HK$500,000 (2021: HK$521,000).

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment relating to a co-
living project amounting to HK$39,418,000 (2021:
HK$44,418,000) is determined by the income approach based
on the forecast of future cash flows. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the average occupancy rate for the next
five years (2022: 88%; 2021: 92%) and negatively correlated to
the discount rate (2022: 11.4%; 2021: 11.5%).

As at 31 March 2022, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/increase in average occupancy rate
for the next five years by 5% would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit for the year by approximately HK$13,019,000
and HK$13,357,000 (2021: HK$15,175,000 and
HK$18,034,000) respectively, while a decrease/increase in
discount rate by 1% would have increased and decreased the
Group’s profit for the year by approximately HK$2,835,000 and
HK$3,399,000 (2020: HK$3,929,000 and HK$3,120,000)
respectively.
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37.

tREAREEREBMIAND
& @)

E2BR NV EFEMANMGER
g 32 A BUHR

FEMESREAARRT S ERE 7
REXEIERIRG - EEERHZERER
EETHER PR AERTRBAR
BREASENKREMNEREEN — 8D
UEREAERAE  AUZEEENE
EFEF AT EE A FENBARE -

HOBRF2ERIFLTRAKREMS -
AE B2 ZRBRATANRFRZSER
M EHETTE ©

EIEBMAVETEMANMGER
g 32 ¥ A BUR

IE F IR E 89 A F{E 22,740,000 7 7T

—Z— —4£: 21,730,000/ 7T) h R E R
WEFFHEMENRTFEEKBRG
BELET Ui hEEMEETENE
BN - ATEFEEEFEENG
FHEME10%(ZE=—F 1 10%)EFHF -
R-ZEBE-_—_F=A=+—8 £
BERBIAEMBRT  HehEF RE
LM% (ZE - —F  1%) HEHAR
5 B F 5 FIR A1 N %9 500,000 7 7T
(ZZT=—% : 521,000/87T) °

MEAFREFHEEEANELMESIKRED
A F {E39,418,0008 7L ( — T = — 4 :
44,418,00078 70) TR B R RIRE REA
A RARAEETE - AT EEEE
REFHFEFHAER(ZZT 4 : 88%
—E - —F 1 02%) 2 FHERE - EHAREK(Z
T F 114%: —FB - —4F :11.5%)

286 -

R-ZBE-—_F=A=+—08" #tNFmE
HtEETEMNBERLT  KRRAFHFEH
AERTEIEIN5% » A& B E R F)
g 5 R A0 4713,019,0007% 7T K&
13,357,000 7L ( —ZF = — 4 : 15,175,000
7 7T 518,034,000 7t ) + i B IR K T
B IEAN1% S 5 B N R L A B A F
[& ' F 492,835,000 7T K& 3,399,000/ 7T

— T T 1 3,929,0007% 7T K& 3,120,000
BIT) °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.

EC Healthcare

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3
fair value measurements (Continued)

The returns of the life insurance policies are at the discretion of
the insurers. Accordingly, management assesses that the
redemption values of such policies approximate their fair values.

The Group’s other investments categorised in Level 3 were
managed by unrelated asset managers who applied various
investment strategies to accomplish their respective investment
objectives. The fair value of these investments is recorded based
on valuations supplied by the fund managers. These valuations are
measured by the percentage of ownership of the private equity’s
net asset value, which is an unobservable input. The fund
managers apply appropriate valuation techniques such as latest
transaction price, discounted cash flow, or a forward price/
earnings multiple arrived at by comparison with publicly-traded
comparable companies and after applying a liquidity discount. The
models are calibrated regularly and tested for validity using prices
from any observable current market transactions in the same
instruments or based on any available observable market data.

The movements during the year in the balance of the Level 3
measurements are as follows:

V”E&%ﬂlﬂmﬂ

E'l

& b A
FE (&
53

BRDFEFERANMGER
m&ﬁ)\%(#f%(

NEHRI BB R R A WA - B
e+ R AT {3 R O (4
HAFE

REBEDHEREIBHR 2 HMKRERER
ERBEERBICERNE S BRE BRI
FIEEEEIEAERE RSEREZNVE
TREESEIBRH ZAEAR - L5 M
BENERLEREEEFENREEELLA
AtEAER-BETABEHAER - ES
KERABEE N GERN - NEHIHE
MRBERE  HEPTARIEH(EEE
NABEBEZAALRARLERSGEH ¥
ARRBIERIR) - ZFRAEMUR—T
ENEMABRREM ISR ZEBRRIRE
AR TS BUIRE TR MO E AR
1 o

FREIERHEEREDHWT

Unlisted equity Unlisted Investmentsin  Unlisted equity

investments fund life insurance investment
- FVTPL investments policies -Fvocl Total

FLTRARE-

FETRARE BATET AL
—RATEF AR FLTESRE ASRERE 2EKE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAn TAn TiEn Tin
At 1 Aprl 2020 R-E-ZENA—H 23,752 44,418 - - 68,170
Additional contrioution BONEE 1,239 - - - 1,239
Fair value change NHEES) (3.261) - - - (3.261)

At 31 March 2021 and R-Z--5=fA=t-H

1 April 2021 R=F--4mA-H 21,730 44,418 - - 66,148
Additional contribution BNTE 1,710 - - - 1,710
Acquisitions WESE - - 58,352 14,588 72,940
Transfer from level 2 EBREE2ER 2414 - - = 2414
Fair value change LHERY (700) (5,000) (2,985) - (8,685)
At 31 March 2022 W-B-—%#=f=1-H 45,154 39,418 55,367 14,588 154,527

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried

at amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at the end of the reporting period.
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38. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

38. DN EBARRT

2022 2021
B —E-—4F
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5E FE T FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITEB AT IRE 1 1
Prepayments TR RIR 13,290 =
Financial assets at fair value A ER AR M2 RS
through other comprehensive TRMEE
income 9,900 -
Financial assets at fair value BAFER ABED
through profit or loss SREE 17,963 17,963
41,154 17,964
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - mek
other receivables Hith e FRIE 2,485 2,487
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE LU BB A B FIE 1,425,953 826,962
Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEY 205,063 286,443
1,633,501 1,115,892
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables HAtb T 5RIE 4,204 1,812
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,629,297 1,114,080
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABRABERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,670,451 1,132,044
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Convertible bonds AT AR (E 55 235,709 239,819
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,434,742 892,225
EQUITY T 29(a)
Share capital B 12 11
Reserves R 1,434,730 892,214
1,434,742 892,225

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

23 June 2022.

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie

=B HE
Director
EF
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39.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particular of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group.

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Name of subsidiary operation

AL/

WEARZRE R/ &%%

Able Lead Corporation Limited Hong Kong
(7 wuﬁ E ) E/%

Ace Miracle Enterprises Limited BVI

HEEERER

All Union International Investment Limited Hong Kong
(RRERREERAT) B

AmMed Cancer Center (Cental) Limited Hong Kong

BE
ATO Hair Club Limited Hong Kong
B

Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons Limited Hong Kong
(EREE THERAERAR) B

Best Union (China) Limited Hong Kong
((ER () BRAR) B

Bilion Energy Limited Hong Kong
(kFBRAT) B

Canadian Asian Neck and Back Institute Limited ~ Hong Kong
(BRBEMERRARLR) %

Centre of Rehabiltation & Exercising Hong Kong
Specialist Limited 7%
(EEmRREREEIRARAT

Crown Leader Limited Hong Kong
(BREARAR) By

EC Healthcare

Issued

share capital/
paid-up share capital
BRIRS/
BERA

HK$10,000
10,0005

Usst
X7

HKS1
&R
HK$2
2B
HK§$100
10087

HK$100
10087

HKS$1
AT

HK$1
18T

HK$100
10037

HK$10,000
10,0007

HK$10,000
10,0007
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39. AKEBRATMKRE

NTHEREITEZEREBE 2 E4E -
BERAEZHBARFS -

Effective percentage
of equity interest
held by the Group
rEERENER
REASL
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
E# Mg TEEE
- 97%  Provision of healthcare services
} 1/\Dx£§ﬁ&ﬁ%
- 100%  Investment holding
REBR
- 100%  Sales of skincare products
%QDXJ%FDD
- 100%  Provision for top notch cancer
diagnosis services
BREEDERE
- 100%  Hair treatment
BEEE
- 50%  Provision of dental services
RETHRS
- 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
and traditional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products
RERE  EREREGZARBN
REEEERZAER
= 100%  Investment properties
REWE
- 75%  Provision of chiropractic services
REAERH
- 51%  Provision for renabiliation services
REFERS
- 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
senvices
RESEBRRS
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE QA RMNIRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued AEBEENER
establishment/ share capital/ RERAL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HRRL/ BRARA/
WEARER R/ EEHE BRRA Ef g FEEH
Conya Group Limited Hong Kong HK$11,000 - 60%  Provision of dental services
(REEEBRAR) A 11,000%7 TR
Dermagic Skin Treatment Centre Company Hong Kong HK$770 - 85%  Provision of traditional beauty
Limited Bk 7087 services and sale of skincare and
(BEAARETOBRAR) beautty products
REEGEARBAREEEERE
REm
Dr. Pro and Dr. Reborn Medical Aesthetics Macau MOP26,000 - 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Centre Limited P 26,0002 beauty services
(BERBEERRTOARAR) RHEBEXRIRK
EHC Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
(EHRFEEERAF) A 10047 REHR
Elisland Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
R 1,000%7T servioes
REBERERE
Eternal Harvest Intemational Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision for veterinary mediical
(REEBERAT) % 10,0007 services
RERBEBERE
Excellent Power Investments Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMTES 1%7n REHR
Gala Equity Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RBEERRE B REHR
Gold Rise Global Limited Hong Kong HK$415 - 85%  Provision of traditional beauty
(SERKERAF) ik 4158 services and sale of skincare and
beauty products
REBSREARBIRHEEEERE
REm
Grand Best Union Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of administrative services
(EIEHARAR) % 1A RETIRS
Grand Best Union Services Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 90%  Investment holding
A 10077 REHR
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE X RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REFD

Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities

iMEL/ ERIRE/

WEARER R/ E$hY BRRE E# g FEEH

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Aesthetic Medical Beauty The PRC (Note 1) RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Provision of medical services
Clinic Company Limited i (FiE) AE10,000,0007T REEER
(BMEEXREXDFDPERAA)

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Enterprise Management - The PRC (Note 1) RMB500,000 - 90%  Provision of medical services
Company Limited i (FiE) AR®500,0007 REEER
(BEMEELEERERAR)

Hair Forest Treatment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Hair treatment

B 10,0007 PEER

Hairchitect Institute (Harbour City) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200 - 75%  Hair Treatment
(ZEMELAE (58 BRAT) R 1,200/ ERER

Health Easy Dental Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 60%  Provision of dental services
(BETHEEERAT) i 10077 TR T RIR

Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited Hong Kong HK$8,708,433 - 100%  Provision of dental services
(BRFREBMERLR) A 8,708,433 /570 TR

Health & Care Dental Services Limited Hong Kong HK$800,000 - 100%  Provision of dental services
(BRIHEBERLR) & 800,00037C RETHRHS

Health & Care (Macau) Dental Group Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100%  Provision of dental services
(B CRR) THEBERAA) P 25,0008 7T TR T RIR

High Group Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
(PBEXERAA) B 10077 RELK

Hong Kong Medical Advanced Imaging Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$80,000,000 = 42.6%  Provision of medical imaging

A 80,000,000% 7t (Note 2) services
(z2)  REBEZERE
Hong Kong Medical Advanced Imaging Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 = 35%  Provision of medical imaging
(TST) Limited % 35,000,000 7 services
REEEYERH
Hong Kong Medical Endoscopy Center Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 = 73%  Provision of medical surgery
B 10047 services
REERT MRS
Hong Kong Oncology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100%  Provision of medical services
B 10,000%7 REERRS
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE QA RMNIRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued AEBEENER
establishment/ share capital/ RERAL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
iMEL/ ERIRE/
WEARER R/ &%y BRRE E# g FEEH
Hong Kong Orthopaedic and Clinical Myotherapy  Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 = 45%  Provision of medical services
Limited A 20,000,000% 7 Note2) — REABERE
iR
Hong Kong Orthopaedic and Spine Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of medical services
BEEMRARETLERLA B 28T R SRR
Hong Kong Pain And Wellness Solution Limited ~ BVI UUS$10,000 - 75%  Investment holding
ABEMRES 10,000%7 REZR
Hong Kong Polyclinics Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 60%  Provision of medical services
B 1A RERERE
Hong Kong Polyclinics Limited BVI 1US$10,000 = 60%  Investment holding
RERERRE 10,000%7T REAR
Hong Kong Professional Vaccine Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of Vaccine services
B 10,000%7 RERE RS
Hongkong Professional Pediatrics Vaccine Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 9%  Provision of Vaccine services
R 10,0005 REEERE
Hong Kong Veterinary Imaging Center Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 51%  Provision of medical imaging
(BAEBYETUERAA) B 1,007 services
REBZZERS
Honor Hong Kong Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Sales of skincare products
(FEERERBRAA) B 1087 HEERER
Honour Year Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 55%  Investment holding
R 20,000/ RAZR
Humphrey & Partners Medical Services Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision for medical services
Management Limited 5 1AL BRI
iMedtech Limited BVI USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMRES 1%L REBR
Jade Master International Limited BvVI US$10 - 100%  Investment holding
HBEEREE 0% RERR
King Equity Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
(FEREERAR) 6 10,000/87 services
RESEEERE
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE X RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HRRL/ ERIRE/
WEARER R/ &%y BRRE E# g FEEH
Langham Crystal Eye Center Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100%  Provision of eye services
A 15,000,000/ 7T RIERRERS
Laugh and Shing Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
R 10047 RATRIRT
Mainwel Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000 - 78.3%  Provision of har services
(EHARAR) A 20007 RHBERH
Marvel Champion Group Limited BvI USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
(AEEEBRAR) ABEMRES 1%L REHR
Mber (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
i 10,000%7 REHR
Mber Limited BvVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
REEERRE e RERR
Mckenzie Capital Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 51%  Investment holding
i 40,000,000 7 REAR
Mckenzie Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision of medical services
(FREEEBRAT) ik 10,0007t RUBERE
Medic One Surgery Center Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
% 1R REEERE
My Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 75%  Leasing and hospital income
A 10047 RERARKA
New Elte Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$10 = 100%  Provision of medical and traditional
(FBEEERAA) Bt 10%7 beauty servioes and sale of
skincare and beauty products
REBEREEDRBIRHER
EREBER
New Medical Centre Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 51%  Investment holding
% 10,0007t RARR
New Union International Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(FHEREAERAT) B 1ET RUEERRS
New York Medical Group Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 100%  Provision of chiropractic services
(ABEEE) Bk 1,000 RHEEERS
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE QA RMNIRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued AEBEENER
establishment/ share capital/ RERAL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
SR/ BRARA/
WEAREH R/ EEHE BHRBA Ef BE  IEER
New York Medical Group (HO) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of chiropractic services
A 100%7T REABRE
Pathlab Medical Laboratories Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 73%  Provision of laboratory testing
(RuBBIRHERAR) &5 5,000,000 7 services
RUBEBRRE
Perfect Magnum Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
AEREREE %7 RARR
Plenty Business Limited BvVI US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
ABRERES 1% RARR
Presminent Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 51%  Provision of medical services
(EAERRLERAR) A 1,000,000/ 7 RUBERE
Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited BVI Us$10 - 70%  Investment holding
LBARRHES 1051 RARR
Prime Inspire Limited BvVI US$1,000 = 70%  Provision for mutti-channel
ABRERAES 1,000%7T networking services
RS RERRE
Prime Kids Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 51%  Provision Psychological Services
A 10077 RABDERE
Professional Aesthetic Surgery Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(EEEERFALERAT) ik 1T RLEBRE
Professional Medical and Surgery Center Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(EREBEATLERAF) ik 1A RALEERE
Qualigenics Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000 - 100%  Provision for medical services
(REEEARAT) % 3,000 AT RIRE
Reliable Global Group Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMTES 9 RAZR
Swiss Line by Dermalab Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100%  Sales of skincare products
(ENEBRAF) % 1,000%7 HEEEER
Team Expert Investment Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABRERES 1% RARR
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE X RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HRRL/ BRARA/
WEARER R/ &%y BRRE E# g FEEH
The New Medical Center Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 51%  Provision of medical services
i 15,000,000 RUEBERY
The New Medical Imaging Center Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of medical imaging
A 100787 services
REBEYERK
The One Dental Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
A 10047 RALTRIRE
The One Dental Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of dental services
) 1A RETRER
The One Dental Three Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
i 10077 RETHRS
UMH GP Network (Kwun Tong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 80%  Provision of medical services
% 3,000,000t RUBERE
UMH GP Network Holding Limited BvVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
REEEREE 1XT RERR
UMH GP Network Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of medical services
(BRRBEEEERAT) A 10047 REERRS
UMH Summit Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100%  Provision of medical services
(BREHERAR) % 12,000,000/ REBERS
UMH Treasury Services Alpha Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
A 108 BEEEES
UMH Treasury Services Beta Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
B 10,0007 BEEEER
Union (Group) Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$29,608 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(BA (RB)RERRAA) B 29,6087 and tradifional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products
RERE  EREREGEARBN
RHERBRZAER
Union Advanced Imaging Holding Limited BVI 1US$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding
RBEERRE 10,000%7 REHR
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. AHE QA RMNIRE @)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued AEBEENER
establishment/ share capital/ RERAL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HMEL/ ERIRE/
WEARER R/ &%y BRRE E# g FEEH
Union Capital Investment Holding Limited BVl USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RBRERRE 1%L REZR
Union Dental Hololing Limited BvI US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
ABRERES 1% REHR
Union Dermatory Holding Limited BVI US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
REEERRE 157 REAR
Union Enchanting Limited BvI USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
(BarCERAA) ABEMRESR 1%L REZR
Union General Surgery Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Provision of medical services
A 10047 RHEBERS
Union Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Provision of marketing services
LEERAA) 6 1A R EHERE
Union Health Services Holding Limited BvVI US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
HBEERER 1%T RERR
Union Honor International Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of management services
(HEERCEXERAT) B 10,000%7T RUERRY
Union Lab Holding Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RBRERRE 1%L REAR
Union Medical Association Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Owner of trademarks
& 1AL HREAA
Union Medical Capital Management Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
REEERRE B3 RERR
Union Medical Technology Holdings Limited BVl US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMRES 1%L REZR
Union Neurology and Orthology Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 75%  Provision of medical services
B 10047 RUEBERS
Union Oncology Holding Limited BvI 1US$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
REEERRE 10,000%7T REAR
Union Preventive Healthcare Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HEEERES 1%L REHR
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40.

Name of subsidiary

WEARERE
Union Trichology Limited

Wincom Limited
(&0ARAR)

Window-Discovery Tours Limited
(BREEERAR)

Young Aesthetics Medical Limited
(AXERERAA)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
#MAYL/
R/ EEHE

BvI
ABAARES

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Issued

share capital/
paid-up share capital
BRfiRE/

BRRA

13$20,000

20,000% 7T

HK§$100
10087

HK$800,000
800,000/

HKS100
100557

Note 1: The subsidiaries are wholly-foreign owned enterprises in the PRC.

Note 2: These two entities with effective interest held by the Group lower than
50% are subsidiaries of the Group as the Group controls the

compositions of the respective boards of directors.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

At 31 March 2022, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Union Medical
Care Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. Union
Medical Care Holding Limited does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

EC Healthcare
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39. KRB ATIKKRE @)
Effective percentage
of equity interest
held by the Group
EEEEENER
READLL
Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
Ef BE  IEER
- 75%  Investment holding
RERR
- 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
senvices
RUSBBERE
- 97%  Provision of a travel agency services
Rk ik R
- 9%  Provision of aesthetic medical
senvices
RHEBEERRK
M1 - ZEMBRBRTREIIEGBERE -
M52« NEEFH TR 50% B IR 5 89 5% i H
ERARNEENNBAR - THHAARE
xS aESSERK -
40. EERBRERES

RZEZZF=A=+—H EFRAEAL
SENEET AT RERIERAT/RE
B 4 B R B B 7 it AKX SZ &Y Union Medical
Care Holding Limited ° Union Medical Care
Holding Limited 37 & 47 &4 7] 4 2 325 AR B9 B
BHE* o
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41.

42.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
REPORTING PERIOD

(@) After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in
note 29(b).

(b)  On 5 June 2022, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement to subscribe for 7,200 new ordinary shares to
be issued by Creative Profit Development Limited (“Creative
Profit”), representing 30% of equity interest in Creative
Profit. Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Group
is committed to invest up to HK$275,000,000 in Creative
Profit for the construction of a building for medical use. The
Group has also undertaken to lease the building as a lessee
for an initial term of 5 years following the completion of the
construction.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In view of more diversified businesses the Group currently
operates, the management changed the composition of the
reporting segments and the presentation of the disaggregation of
revenue as disclosed in notes 4 and 5. Accordingly, the
comparative information in notes 4 and 5 has been restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

In addition, the amounts in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been expressed in thousand Hong Kong dollar
unless otherwise indicated starting from the current year, the
comparation information has also been restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation.
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M. REROFEFRER

(@) RBEPHELERR EFEFZIRER
1=

o H#E — HFEIF R BT 5 29(b)

b) MZE-_—FXARH G K"EBFZ
R E - UREAFZERERA A
([BIF ) 45 T 817 &9 7,200 f% %7 3 18
f% - A8 E R Al F #30% % o R IE
REEE  AEBERFLHAFIRES
#275,000,0008 7 - AREEER
AE - REB D AN AREEKE
ERABARBAE - 1L A5
£|z °

Py e

ENAEEERSENEREMZ T
EEEC kM4 REFTIHE RS 5 20
B R A S ERHHRA - Bt - BisE4
REFELRENCEY  UWFEARFEE
MEHRAN -

AN BB EHRAIN > AEBEEE B R
RPNSEAARNFERIGATELTRR
LB ER IS EFABREFEE TR 5
iﬁ °
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 43. EEMEMARREBE=-S ==

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS FZA=1+—HLFEELE¥MNH
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE 1B FMEARZEBN TSR
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA BEEZSUBHRETNELR  HESFE
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, AREERHREBEEZS_ZF=A=+—
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for AIEFEERERNE TIEF R—IBHE]
the year ended 31 March 2022 and which have not been FRIBBHHEREEAEATRRES A -
adopted in these financial statements. These developments WARRZEV BMETERN - ZF185]
include the following which may be relevant to the Group. BIEA T A gE AR E B FEE R 2R -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTHBEHR &

M E T RER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB MEERE RIS - B aiEut 2 =F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
BEGTERIEACHRNER] - WF - BERRE - BT HEABIFE50E —EZZF—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 1 January 2022
BERGFHERIFEITIRANER] - BAfAA — BITEHIBIKAE —E--%—A—8
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BBUBIMEER —FE— NFE - FFFHLFEHE —E--%—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BEGERIEARNER - HEESHABRBHIETE —EZ=F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
ERGERFE 1R LREBNBERELANERREF 2RNER] - S BHEHKE —T-=%—H—H
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 43. EfEfffEdAREBE=-Z= ==

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS F=ZA=+—BLFELEHRN
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE B85 - MEARZENAER
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued) @)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5IEHzz%
BIRME T HREEN
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
BEEGENE SRS - BFHE5THTE —E=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from 1 January 2023
a single transaction
BARGITERIE12RANEE] - fLE R GEFZEER A EHFE < ELERIA —E-=%—HA—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what REBEETEZSEIERTE R ER
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period HEEANTZ - BRIARL - XATRA
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of HMMZEENPRAIe g B W B mE
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated EEERATE -

financial statements.
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Suite 1601, 16/F, Central Tower
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PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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FTERHFBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BEAERSELRE

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.
BB

ERANBH 285K

FEXE 16121601 =

AR EE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Definitions

“AGM”

[BRBFARE]

“Articles of Association”

[HBAERAmR ]

“Audit Committee”
[BZZEg]

“Board”
34

“CG Code”

“Chinese Medicine

Practitioner(s)”

[ &

“Company”

[ARE ]

“Director(s)”
[E%]

“EBITDA”

[ BB E R # A < 87

EC Healthcare

the annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 23
August 2022
BEN _ZE__FN\A T HAETHNEARRRRBERE

the Company’s articles of association
RARWAABSERAE

the audit committee of the Board
EETEEREEY

the board of Directors

=g

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time
TR AIMEE 14 Tt B AT A (R RREET)

person(s) who is (are) registered as registered Chinese medicine
practitioner(s) of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong under the
Register of Chinese Medicine Practitioners kept in accordance with the
Chinese Medicine Ordinance
PIREBChBEEID)EFNREIMEMANEM AT A BEERZ 5 M
hEHAL

EC Healthcare &2 (formerly known as Union Medical Healthcare
Limited (B8 E B EBEEEARAF), an exempted Company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EC Healthcare B B &R (AIBESEREZEBERAR)  RFESHSEM
BIEVERR R BR AR - HRMABEAZFTER £

the director(s) of the Company
RARES

earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned property, plant and

equipment and amortisation

Rt AFE -~ BE - BEVE  BELRBINEREHE BT

276 Annual Report 2021/22



Definitions

“Greater Bay Area”

[AEE

“Greater China’
[ KA |

“Group”
[ A5 ]

‘gfa’
[4ergmmEiE ]

“Healthcare Professionals”

H]]D

[f2RERES |

\

“HKS”
%5t

“Hong Kong”

(&%)

city cluster cross the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau region, consisting of
Hong Kong, Macau and nine cities in Guangdong Province, namely,
Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Jiangmen, Shenzhen, Zhaoging,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai

BR-FE-RFI(BER) RANTE  2FE8 RFIRERENLERT
(BUERZE ~ @RIl ~ B~ 2N~ JIPY R YI - BB - RILRIKE)

Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
RER - B RFIRAE

the Company and its subsidiaries
Rl REK B AT

gross floor area
MIEEER

person(s) registered with the respective boards or councils before he/she is
allowed to practise in Hong Kong under the relevant laws of Hong Kong as
may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.
The 13 healthcare professionals comprise Chinese medicine practitioners,
chiropractors, dental hygienists, dentists, medical laboratory technologists,
medical practitioners, midwives, nurses, pharmacists, occupational
therapists, optometrists, physiotherapists and radiographers
FERERBFIBENRIEET » BARIAREM A NERNEEBENETERE
ZA EHEEESENREEEERMNALT - 1I3ERREEEEERERE

B TRMRIEE - TR BRRE - BAE  BEL BT R BEe
FERM ~ BRYLAD - ¥IRIEER AN K BT BRAm

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
%;/%/flﬁ ﬁé}/%ﬁ

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of

China
FEE ARANMBEBRERITHE
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Definitions

“Listing Date”

[ Em A E]

4

“Listing Rules’
[ B Al

MEA”
[ 8]

“Macau”
[P ]

“Macau Doctor(s)”

[RPIEe A |

“Medical Professionals”

[BREXAE]

“Memorandum and Articles of

Association”

[ =2 KM R 48R

“Model Code”

“Mr. Tang”

(&5 ]

“PRC”
[

EC Healthcare

11 March 2016, being the date on which the shares were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ZE-AF=A+T—B - RO EREBIMERLET A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B A PTRE 5 R MR A

merger and acquisition
& 0F U iE

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
R AR HEMBEDRPIRFRITTRR

doctor(s) licensed by and registered with the department of health in Macau
(RFIEFRIITE R BN B £ B)
BERFIERITTRERBRTEERT I RELNE

Healthcare Professionals, excluding Registered Practitioners
REERES - TRETME

the Company’s memorandum and article of association
PANSIHE R ED NP &

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

EARAIMEE10FTEC EMBITAERETESF T HMITETR

Mr. Tang Chi Fai, the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company

ARBER - UITEERTREHESELRLE

the People’s Republic of China
R AR AFE
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Definitions

“PRC Doctor(s)”
[ FR [ Ay b B8 A |
“Prospectus”

[HRER]

“Registered Practitioner(s)”

[ 21 8 = |

“Reporting Period”
[R5 HA

“Sales Volume”
[y eE5E]
“Share(s)”
[R5 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ %R |

“Stock Exchange”
[ B2 BT

medical practitioner(s) with the qualification of a doctor (2 £fi) or assistant
doctor (BL2£BIRERD) under the PRC Law on Medical Practitioners (FRZE A
RAFE# 3 EE0%) and is practicing at a medical or healthcare institution
BIER(PEARLMBEAN BN Z) AERBM XD BB EARNEE 8
B IRIEME

the prospectus dated 1 March 2016 issued by the Company
ARBRZZE—NF=A—HHZENBRER

registered dentist within the meaning of the Dentists Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 156), registered medical practitioner within the meaning of the Medical
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 161), registered chiropractor within the
meaning of the Chiropractors Registration Ordinance (Cap. 428), listed or
registered Chinese medicine practitioner within the meaning of the Chinese
Medicine Ordinance (Cap. 549), Macau Doctors and PRC Doctors
CFeaMigsl) (F156 %) Aigm A & - CBAEFMIEH)(F 161 %) Frig
MEEME L - CHBRMIEN) (F428%) s MAa g - (PEEEH) (5
549F ) FriEM Ry sk st eh 88 - JRPIES A f R B Ay th B8

financial year ended 31 March 2022
HECZT-_—_F=-A=+—HBILWBFE

being the total sales volume generated from contracted sales entered into,
and all products and services offered by the Group
EEIVHEAHEU RN EER BN AE MR RGIEENBHEERE

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with par value of
HK$0.00001 each

AR EII AR AR E B 0.00001 7 7T ) i A

holder(s) of Share(s)
SGEVESEEDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBMAERHMARATE
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Definitions

“Trained Therapists” our employees who have completed mandatory internal training developed
by our Doctors to provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty
services under our internal licensing programme

[ BB IEFIH e RAD ] B ek H AP B8 A 1 TE B9 5% I 1 N R I AR AR B P M BR A PTAE Fr AR R B8 R AR
B/ SEHFEDREHES

“YoY” year-on-year
[RIEE ] Eil

“%” per cent.
[%] Btk

EC Healthcare 280 Annual Report 2021/22



EC Healthcare
BB RER

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
REEHERMEIZERAR
(Stock Code & #3157 : 2138)

EC Specialists Premium EC Specialists Central EC Specialists EC Healthcare EC Veterinary
B2 /B SE & 8B 4 [E g2 | N Medical Centre &2 m =t 82
E/L\J\% [ = /0 Hﬁ}‘ u EBER EEEREREDD 2 BE B

\ SPECIALISTS \ TN N ‘
@HKAL - L, S e % ORTHO @revive (e T, sumrensess
18 2 58 5810 B .0 5 BEER  assomsses Central  cemmRr@EdD  rewromuenca stow J o

\}
HONG KONG ADVANCED IMAGING @ o B Om &

DEEEEE O s m T ERiRRER R EL O/ ERRH S s EEEEORER Y

Hong Kong International Cardiology Center

EC DENTAL cARE Bayl
yley & Jackson iy =0 = A
B /8B D HTB Dental Surgeons Ltd. CL' = ,1@ JEE_\F \L_L—-‘ #.ﬁ Eﬁ?}i&:gﬁ
==IRION I Al MEDICAL Mobile Medlcalu+

@@ FERITNE F R B RS T BRBHRI RS Z % % 6 %

CHIKIN TONG HK Orthopacdic & Clinical Myotherapy

qu

Health Check Centre.

#re:HEALTH QYO ERET 48 DR REBORN %/\ dm B HAREE MANNER

& B - M # & VIVID EYE CENTRE < FOREST
A

N\

< DERMAGIC
AESTY

Srou XEDE  rroDeRvalae  SWisSSline

TG T Be A Lady BY DERMALABE
ATO HAIR CLUB
O
202, SERIB) ) B FE L CM) M Premier Medical Centre Ot B A B W OB oM S G ) R R
R it BE B8 B ch ) Health & Care Dental Clinic Health & Care (Macaw) Dental Centre

AR
Maple Veterinary Hospital
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AmMed Medical Diagnostic Center Qualigeni
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